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Financial Highlights
MBREE

LGN Tl December 2021 Changes
2022%12H 2021412 A b=k
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREFT %
Key financial information TEHBER
Revenue WA 958,597 870,422 10.1
Gross profit E7 271,374 299,082 -9.3
Profit for the period HAFE A1) 8 125,060 110,050 13.6
— Including non-controlling interests ~ — B IEIEALHE R 3,037 11,828 -74.3
— Attributable to owners of the — RRBHER AEMN
Company 122,023 98,222 24.2
DLYel=Yo g (o T [o 272 December 2021
2022%12A 2021412 A
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR®EFTT
Total assets BERR 1,314,889 1,238,537
Total liabilities BfEER 533,693 378,326
Cash and bank balance Re RIRITEAEE 209,855 499,983
Total equity EmiEE 781,196 860,211
Interest attributable to the owners of the RRRGHER AEGER
Company 764,544 835,657
DLYelYo g [T [0 2728 December 2021
2022%12A 2021412 A
Key financial ratios BEFFE L =R
Gross profit margin EF =& 28.3% 34.4%
Net profit margin PP 13.0% 12.6%
Net profit margin attributable to the owners RRRER AEEFREE
of the Company 12.7% 11.3%
Basic and diluted earnings per share SRERREERF
(RMB) (AR¥T) 0.122 0.118

December 2022
20225124

December 2021

2021F12 A
Total property management contracted GFA as RBEH AR EESBREANRE
at the end of reporting period (sg.m.’000) E£EE (FTFEHK) 48,698 46,363
Total property management GFA under RRERARNEEBBEER
management as at the end of reporting period  £EE & (FF 77 K)
(sg.m."000) 34,543 31,110
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On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the results report of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Reporting
Period”).

2022 was a year of growth amid under resistance for the entire real
estate industry. Over the past year, the COVID-19 epidemic resurgence
subsisted throughout the year with economic situation improving from
the mist of the COVID-19 epidemic and kept on fluctuating. The real
estate industry entered into a new development cycle due to the
volatility of related industries. Looking back into 2022, we braved new
changes actively, made progress amid stability and sought high-quality
development to achieve fruitful results. The Group has been awarded
the “Top 100 Property Management Service Companies in the PRC” by
China Index Academy for nine consecutive years, moved up to 24th on
the ladder and maintained its leading position in the property service
market in Eastern China.

Only in hard times can courage be manifested and only
sharpening one’s edge can lead to success. In 2022, the Group
maintained its strategic focus, enhanced refined management as well as
quality and efficiency improvement and achieved continuous and steady
growth in revenue and scale, and continued to demonstrate its
development resilience.

During the vyear, the Group conducted new deliveries of multiple
high-quality projects. Especially in Guangzhou, Chengdu and other
first-tier and new first-tier cities, the Group completed its first project
delivery after establishing its presence and successfully embraced the
occupancy of over 20,000 new property owners. As of 31 December
2022, the GFA under management of the Group reached 34.54 million
sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 11.0%.
We further penetrated into the Yangtze River Delta region, tightly
constructed market network, improved regional density to achieve
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

intensive management and firmly deployed on central cities focusing on
core economic belts, thereby boosting certainties to the continuous
high-quality development of the Group. The Group further displayed its
competitive advantages in obtaining projects through market-based
competitions. As of 31 December 2022, 64.8% of the GFA under
management were properties developed by independent third-party
developers. The Group successfully took over various representative
and landmark urban projects, including the Sports Centre of
Shangcheng District in Hangzhou, a soccer arena for the 2022
Hangzhou Asian Games, the aviation logistics centre of Wuhan Tianhe
International Airport in Hubei, an aviation hub in Central China, and
Huzhou Museum in Zhejiang, a national class-2 museum.

The Group continued to step up its efforts in the non-residential
service sector and carried out layout planning on differentiated
business structures to enhance profitability. “Dexin space”, a high-end
service brand created by the Group, offered professional services to
urban premium business and office buildings and industrial parks. Take
the Hangzhou Entrepreneurship and Innovation Demonstration Base of
Peking University and Xingyun Kunpeng Centre, a key building in
Yuhang District, Hangzhou, as examples, the Group participated in the
asset operation and management of these projects, further improved
the additional value of project services and extended service industry
chains. The Group vigorously deployed on urban services, participated
in the urban renovation, achieved the comprehensive improvement and
renovation of old communities and served projects including Jiru
Homeland in Hangzhou as well as Minsheng Garden, Minfu Garden,
Minhe Garden and other communities in Huzhou with a total area of
over 520,000 sg.m. Meanwhile, we also successfully took over the
integrated project on urban and rural services in Lvling Town in Heze,
Shandong and operated pilot sites offering innovative services.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022
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The Group actively fulfilled its corporate social responsibility. In
response to the COVID-19 epidemic resurgence during the year, the
Group launched four caring measures through the “Companion”
platform. Faced with the unexpected lockdown of Shanghai and the
adjustments of epidemic prevention and control measures at the end of
the vyear, all of the Group’s grass-roots employees and our
management held their positions and provided emergency assistance
and warm-hearted services, safeguarding the health and safety of tens
of thousands of household families. As an official provider of property
management services to the Hangzhou Asian Games, the Group has
maintained a strong sense of social responsibility. The Group’s
corporate spirit is highly compatible with the spirit of the Asian Games.
The Group successfully held the Huzhou Deging Mogan Mountain
Bamboo Sea Marathon, practised low-carbon environmental protection
and the “green, intelligent, economical and civilised” concept of the
Asian Games. During the preparation period of the Asian Games (the
“Asian Games”), the Group provided environmental, safety, engineering
and customer services to protect the Hangzhou Asian Games in all
aspects and helped facilitate the Asian Games sentiment. Adhering to
the leadership of Party building, the Group integrated the grass-roots
Party building with serving the public and promoted the construction of
pilot sites on “Red Properties”. It has successfully established the brand
of Party building, namely the “4V Party Building in Establishing
Companion Communities”, and created the Support Zancheng
Community (ERE I /N&E), the first Red Property in Yuhang District,
Hangzhou. The model of “Red Butler Service Day” developed by the
Group has become a red prototype reported on the headline of Jinhua
Daily, in Jinhua, Zhejiang. The Group motivated employees to build a
party member volunteer team and actively participate in public welfare
activities. It developed the “Children’s Blue Sky” programme with
Zhejiang Women and Children’s Foundation and Dexin Blue Charity to
provide pairing assistance for children in difficulties in Chun’an County,
Zhejiang Province. Together with the Civil Affairs Bureau of Yuhang
District, Hangzhou City, the Group participated in the “Lightening the
Micro Wish of Troubled and Left-behind Children in Villages in Five
Western Towns” to assist left-behind children in Pingyao Town,
Hangzhou City, and worked together with Huzhou College to establish
the Huzhou College Education Development Foundation for providing
more quality opportunities to college students.

Times flies and spring comes after winter. In 2022, we focused on
the development of our principal businesses, innovated service
scenarios, intensified the building of enterprise service capability and
continuously improved service quality, constantly improving the
satisfaction and sense of happiness of property owners.
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Chairman’s Statement
FERSE

The Group continuously optimised the experience of property owners
through “the one city with one demonstration initiative”, “quality officer
plan” and other actions to improve service quality and property owners,
satisfaction. It actively responded to the Hangzhou municipal
government on “puilding an aesthetic home”, one of the top 10
practical works on people’s livelihood, and successfully built various
aesthetic communities such as Dexin Morning Mansion ({58 %) and
Dexin Zhenyuan (#&{£%&). The Group developed various municipal
premier residential projects in Hangzhou, Wenzhou, Jinhua and Hefei,
leading the benchmark on local service quality.

Customer demand has become the focus for the in-depth development
of value-added services. Through the analysis on community customer
groups, the Group achieved precise connection of property owners’
resources with value-added services and enhanced the construction of
the “15-minute community life circle”. In terms of home decoration
business, the Group launched the door and window systems
renovation, storage cabinets customisation and other businesses
through cooperating with leading enterprises in the industrial chains,
which was popular among the owners of newly-delivered properties. In
terms of the community retail business, the Group continued to
optimise business models and supply chains, realised the upgrading of
Best Neighborhood Selections (F&#8#1:E) 2.0, the new retail platform,
with  more high-quality resources to improve the coverage in
communities and build various popular community products.

Refined management and control has become the main development
theme of the Group under the new situation. With the target of
“stimulating frontline management and strengthening on-site
management”, we reduced management burdens and established a
three-tier coordinated management mechanism in the headquarters,
regions and projects aspects to form a management layout with
headquarters empowerment, regional construction and projects
response. Meanwhile, it insisted on the empowerment with technology
to facilitate cost reduction and efficiency enhancement. The Group
implemented the overall budget management system and improved the
management and operation efficiency of the Group through opening
and integrating the Group’s existing four-grid system (PU4& &),
Companion cloud platform, NC Cloud financial system and other online
platforms.
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FUTURE PROSPECTS

The development of industry will embrace the co-existence of crisis and
opportunities in 2023. In facing market turbulence, the Group is
optimistic about the value of industry development and proposes
focusing on four major strategies for high-quality development. The
Group will continue to solidify the foundation of profitability for
corporate development while enhancing satisfaction of property
owners.

Firstly, it will focus on the improvement of the service capability on
fundamental property management, refocus on the “quality-based”
development line, continue to strive for excellence in quality
management, and promote the upgrading of services and products
with the satisfaction of property owners as the core. Meanwhile, it will
concentrate on constructing the core business units of value-added
services, strengthen the diversified business pattern, continue to refine
the established business lines and consolidate the second growth curve
of the enterprise.

Secondly, it will focus on core markets, insist on the development
strategy of “cultivating in the Yangtze River Delta and mapping out in
the central cities of China” and vigorously improve the coverage density
of core urban projects. It will adhere to seeking development in market
expansion, display the advantages of independent third-party
market-based operation and inject strong impetus for the growth in
scale and the generation of profit.

Thirdly, it will focus on core profit and seek to increase operating
revenue with undivided attention. On top of meeting the demand of
property owners, it will drive business upgrades and enhance our
profitability, achieving growth in profit as well as revenue to reinforce
the resilience for corporate development. In the meantime, the Group
will also focus on forging competitive strengths with a special emphasis
on developing specialised subsidiaries such as those providing services
to commercial and official properties and green landscape management
services in close tandem with market development trends, with a view
to stimulating new niches for profit growth through the enhancement of
specialised capabilities;

Fourthly, it will focus on precision management and promote
organisational reform and technological empowerment to reduce
management costs. It will insist on efficiency improvement through
enhanced management, advance flat management and improve the
sensitivity and responsiveness in making business decisions and staff
efficiency.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHRE

Persevere the toughest and lofty the farthest. As we bid farewell
to winter and welcome the spring season, we must all persist in
efficiency enhancement through management initiatives, and also quest
for qualitative development. While consistently improving our service
quality and project quality, we will also actively embark on innovative
businesses and procure breakthrough and innovation in business units
under the strategic direction of “profit as fundamental aim, market as
means, service as product and quality as reputation”, in an effort to
forge the Group into a “provider of relations-oriented services for future
urban life” underpinned by qualitative development and stable ongoing
growth. In 2023 and at the moment of changes in the operating
environment, Dexin Services will march ahead with determined efforts.
We will live up to today and not be afraid of tomorrow.

Dexin Services Group Limited
Hu Yiping
Chairman
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Management Discussion and Analysis

OPERATION REVIEW

Business model of the Group

The Group has three business lines: (i) property management services;
(i) value-added services to non-property owners; and (i) community
value-added services, which constitute a comprehensive service
product for our clients, covering the entire property management value
chain.

° Property management services. The Group provides property
developers, property owners and residents with a wide range of
property management services. The property management
services of the Group primarily comprise (i) security services; (ii)
cleaning services; (jiij gardening services; and (iv) common area
facility repair and maintenance services for residential properties
and non-residential properties.

° Value-added services to non-property owners. The Group
provides a full range of property-related business solutions to
non-property owners, which primarily include property developers.
The value-added services to non-property owners of the Group
primarily comprise (i) the provision of sales office management
services; (i) the provision of preliminary planning and design
consultancy services; (i) the provision of property inspection and
repair services; and (iv) the provision of commercial consulting
services.

° Community value-added services. The Group also offers various
community value-added services to property owners and
residents, including () smart community solutions; (i) property
sales and assistance services; (iiij community resources
value-added services; (iv) clubhouse services; (v) home decoration
services; and (vl community retail and home services.

We believe that the property management services business line is the
foundation of the Group to generate revenue, expand business scale
and increase customer group for community value-added services to
property owners and residents. The Group’s value-added services to
non-property owners facilitate its early access to property development
projects and the establishment and development of business
relationships with property developers, thereby enhancing the Group’s
competitiveness and securing contracts for property management
services. The Group’s community value-added services business line is
conducive to strengthen the relationship between the Group and
customers and improve customer satisfaction and loyalty. We believe
that the three business lines of the Group will continue helping the
Group to gain bigger market share and expand its business scope in
the PRC.
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Property Management Services

In 2022, the Group adhered to the strategic vision of being a service
provider of future urban life relationship, achieved rapid growth in
contracted gross floor area (“GFA”) and GFA under management and
constantly expanded the increase in the GFA under management. As
of 2022, we had a total GFA under management of approximately

34.5 million sq.m., representing an increase of approximately 3.4 million
sg.m. or growth rate of 11.0% as compared with approximately 31.1

million sg.m. in 2021. The increase was primarily attributable to the

MEERRE

2022%F » REEBRFRRMTEEBEREE
MERES  ERAOEERE((BERED
MEEREAERNREEE  THHEEE®
BIL R - B2 2022F - RMINBREEREERE
493458 & F 7K 2021 FH3NAEEFH
KEMPSAEBFH K BEEE11.0% ° %
BEFEFAREEEEIMNEE/AEM - U
MBI E = EEEN -

increase in projects delivered by Dexin Group, as well as the increase

in business with independent third parties.

The following table sets forth our property management contracted
GFA and GFA under management as of the years indicated:

TERHINBEMRFERMNDRERSNRZ
EEAELEEREDSE

For the year ended 31 December

For the year ended 31 December

HZ12R31BLER BE12A3ALERE
2022 2021
2022 2001%
Projects under Projects under
Contracted projects management Contracted projects management
#WER EEEE #4098 HEEA
Number of Number of Number of Number of
projects GFA projects GFA projects GFA projects GFA
FEHE BEER HEME BEEE RS0l SRTIEE b R T
(sq.m.’000) (sq.m.’000) (sq.m.’000) (sq.m.’000)
(FEHX) (FEHX) (F¥HK) (FFHK)
As of the beginning ~ E E H4]
of the period 309 46,363 233 31,110 241 38,032 175 24,905
Newly contracted #1714 50 11,061 34 4,211 80 10,531 49 5,994
Reserve conversion  EEE( 0 0 21 2,761 0 0 21 2411
Acquisition I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Termination &1k (42) (8,726) (33) (3,539) (12) (2,200) (12) (2,200)
As of the end of ~EEHX
the period 317 48,698 255 34,543 309 46,363 233 31,10

A majority of our revenue from property management services is
generated from the services provided to properties developed by
independent third-party property developers. As of 31 December 2022,
we had 159 properties under our management that were developed by
independent third-party property developers with a total GFA under
management of approximately 22.4 million sg.m.
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The following table sets forth a breakdown of our total GFA under
management by property type as of the dates indicated:

BEEE W R D

TREHBEPRA PR ERLE D
EERZEEERA

As of 31 December

BZE12R31H
2022 2021
20225 20015
Revenue  Percentage GFA Revenue Percentage
KA 1174 BEER KA it
RMB’000 $0.m."000 RMB'000
ARETR TEAK  ARETR
Properties developed by Dexin Group =S EAMBEENE 8,655 208,419 34.2% 6,884 138,664 27.4%
Jointly developed properties BamEEnE 3,502 90,030 14.8% 3,660 100,610 19.8%
Properties developed by independent  BUE=H¥%
third-parties 22,386 311,247 51.0% 20,566 267,809 52.8%
Total st 34,543 609,696 100.0% 31,110 507,083 100.0%
Our Geographical Presence F ey Hu 2 5

Zhejiang Province and the Yangtze River Delta Region are among the
most economically developed regions in the PRC, with higher
urbanisation rates and resident disposable income. Most of our service
projects are concentrated in cities with higher competitive pricing levels.
We continue to expand into first-tier and second-tier cities nationwide,
and continue to increase the GFA under management and income from
core cities outside Zhejiang Province and the Yangtze River Delta
Region, further intensifying our competitive strength in the property
industry. For the year ended 31 December 2022, we have expanded
our geographic presence to 41 cities in China.

AT R BT = ANt E 2 B E R EMNT
BEr— BELCERERASTERARS - &
MRS R IE B KD RIBEE W EKFEHFE IR
BRWT - R TEHRE2E— WM T
BT AT R BT = AN DT EE
HAEMBEA  EERMEEMESFH - #HE
2022F 12 A31ALEFE - HMIMHIEDMHEE
BER B4 BT -
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The following table sets forth our total GFA under management by
region as of the dates indicated:

TREHBEMRAPRMZEHEIDNOEE
ZEES -

As of 31 December

#Z12A318
2022 2021
20225 20215
Revenue  Percentage GFA Revenue Percentage
KA fhikt REER KA (54
RMB’000 $0.m."000 RMB'000
ARETR TEAK  ARETR
Zhejiang Province Nink) 21,142 452,936 14.3% 19,679 383,898 75.7%
Yangtze River Delta Regjon RIZANTE
(excluding Zhejiang Province) (TREMIE) 10,137 132,719 21.8% 9,393 110,742 21.8%
Other regions AR 3,264 24,041 3.9% 2,038 12,443 2.5%
Total feh 34,543 609,696 100.0% 31,110 507,083 100.0%
Portfolio of Properties under Management EEVEES

While the majority of properties under our management are primarily
attributable to residential properties, we continuously sought to provide
property management services to non-residential properties in the
Reporting Period. The non-residential properties under our management
are diverse, including commercial complexes, office buildings, schools,
hospitals, industrial parks and municipal facilities. We believe that by
accumulating our experience and recognition for our quality property
management services to both residential and non-residential properties,
we will be able to continue to diversify our portfolio of properties and
further enlarge our customer base.

The following table sets forth our total GFA under management as of
the dates indicated:

BERMEENRLYREEEYE - HAE
A ERBIDTESKRIFEETMERENE
BERY - RMEENEENEFEFTEE
BHRBXGAE RFE BER Bk EX
B R THEG - HAEE BRERMAERESE
FFEEMERHEEEMEETERBEHERY
rBkBEE RMSEEEEZ T EELS
N — HRABMNESE -

TREINBMBERBRNEELEEEE

As of 31 December

#Z12A318
2022 2021
20224 2021%F

GFA Revenue Percentage GFA Revenue  Percentage
BEER BrA AN 2EERE L/ON 1t

sq.m.’000 RMB’000 5g.m.’000 RMB’000

FESK  ARETR FEIK ARETR
Residential properties FEME 25,545 428,510 70.3% 22,655 359,120 70.8%
Non-residential properties EEEME 8,998 181,186 29.7% 8,455 147,963 29.2%
Total a5 34,543 609,696 100.0% 31,110 507,083 100.0%
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X RERS

HE2022F 12 A1 HILFE - IEEF AR
IWAANREA189.0E &L BEE2021F 12 A
S1HIEFEEEASY AR EETER
BT BT HERGRERMERSE
BENERN=E AEEZEEEEAETER
KEZE B ARERRNIEEFEERSE
BRAREFEBEEGE -

Value-added Services to Non-property Owners

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from value-added
services to non-property owners amounted to RMB189.0 million,
increasing by 4.5% compared to that for the year ended 31 December
2021. This was attributable to the Group’s prudent consideration of the
payment rate of business partners to maintain year-on-year growth in
revenue from value-added services to non-property owners for the
Reporting Period given the higher gross profit margin for value-added
services to non-property owners compared to basic property services
despite the ongoing downside of the real estate industry.

For the year ended
31 December

For the year ended
31 December

2022 2021
HE2022%12/31H BE2021412 318
N3 I
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
WA 174 WA (=psd
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFR ARMEF L
Sales office management KI5 R %
services 114,191 60.4% 88,077 48.7%
Preliminary planning and design AT/T iR %
consultancy services 48,762 25.8% 54,366 30.1%
Property inspection and repair = & E1E R
services 8,984 4.8% 12,013 6.6%
Commercial consulting services & ¥ &8 R 1% 17,041 9.0% 26,458 14.6%
188,978 100.0% 180,914 100.0%
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Community Resources Value-added Services

In terms of community value-added services, our customers mainly
include property owners, residents and property developers, and we
offer a wide variety of community value-added services to make the
living more convenient and to foster community attachment and sense
of belonging. These services primarily include (i) smart community
solutions; (i) property sales and assistance services; (iii) value-added
services in public areas; (iv) clubhouse services; (v) home decoration
services; and (v community retail and home services. During the
Reporting Period, revenue from community value-added services was
RMB159.9 million, representing a decrease of 12.3% as compared with
RMB182.4 million for 2021.

#H B &R EERE

HEBEEREMNES  BMANEPEIZBEXE
T FPURMEMER  BMAaHEREHEE
Bzt EIgERY  FEEFEERE  HE
HEEREGEER ZERBETEBRE[)E
MHEBATER (MEHEEEBERS ()2
HEGEERS (V2R - WEERS
RVt ZEEMKERS - RAFRERE -
EIBEREBAZAREIG90BE T &
2021 F ARMBA182AFE L TE12.3% °

For the year ended
31 December

For the year ended
31 December

2022 2021
#H E2022%F12H318 EHZE2021F12A31H
IEFE IEFE
Revenue Percentage Revenue Percentage
[N 11174 ON (g g
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Smart community solutions &5 AE4t [& iR 5 2 28,807 18.0% 48,632 26.6%
Property sales and W EE R HARTE
assistance services 25,974 16.3% 54,467 29.9%
Community resources 1@ &R E AR
value-added services 30,893 19.2% 19,661 10.8%
Clubhouse services & AR 12,484 7.8% 12,984 7.1%
Home decoration services £ & R 25,654 16.0% 23,781 13.0%
Community retail and HEEENKE RS
home services 36,111 22.7% 22,900 12.6%
159,923 100.0% 182,425 100.0%

Smart community solutions are those provided to residential and non-
residential property developers by us through customised software
meeting their specific requirements for property management. Revenue
from new contracts reduced year-on-year owing to the conditions of
the real estate industry during the year. For the year ended 31
December 2022, revenue from smart community solutions amounted to
RMB28.8 million, decreasing by RMB19.8 million compared to
RMB48.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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Property sales and assistance services include primarily the provision of
property sales and assistance services to property developers and
owners, assisting property developers to market real estate properties
to owners and residents living in properties under our management.
Revenue from property services decreased as the size of market
transactions contracted owing to the conditions of the real estate
industry during the year, while our car park sales service was also
affected. For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from
property sales and assistance services amounted to RMB26.0 million,
decreasing by RMB28.5 million compared to RMB54.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021.

Community resources value-added services include primarily our
provision of certain value-added services to owners, assisting owners to
lease public areas and public facilities to third parties. The Group has
further tapped the value of community resources and enhanced
cooperation with strategic supplies to increase the rate of community
resource utilisation on an ongoing basis. For the year ended
31 December 2022, revenue from community resources value-added
services amounted to RMB30.9 million, increasing by RMB11.2 million
compared to RMB19.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.

Community retail and home service are mainly catered to the
ever-changing demands of owners and residents, as the Group
provides services such as cleaning, repair and maintenance and
community business to owners and residents through its subsidiary
Julin. For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from community
retail and home service amounted to RMB36.1 million, increasing by
RMB13.2 million compared to RMB22.9 milion for the year ended
31 December 2021. With a primary focus on seasonal products
required by owners, the Group consistently enhanced its service quality
to ensure more comfort and convenience in living for owners and
residents, as it reported growth in the user coverage of its
services-at-doorstep and production value per residential unit.

MEHERBHEBREZERRENMERET R
ETREMEBERIBHERYS - HBEIWERE
BREEREMAEEDENEETREFLHEHEE
EM¥E ZIFAHETEREVE  MERS
BRGER  BERBEBRATE  RMKENE
HISHERBINT B L - H220229F12 431
HIEFE  MEHEMBHERBBRAZEARE
26.0AE T BHZE2021F12831BILEEA
RESASHETTHRARKIS5AETT °

HEEREERSEZRERMAEERED
AETHERS  HBHEETHAAKEREAHK
RERE=F  AEEE—TERELEERE
B WIZABBHAINEE TEHRALESE
TEFIFAR o HE2022F 12 A1 HILFE &
BERGERBKAZEAREI00BE T RE
E2021F12A3IBEFEARBIQ7TEE T
EIMARKI12BETT °

HEZENRERFEZEEEE NEFTE
B HRMAR - A% B BBH B QB4
BEIRAFPRHBER  #HERE HEBE
SRTE - BE2022F12A31HILFE - #EE
EMRERBFUAZEAREIABET  BE
FE2021F12A31HEFEARBK2208E T
EMARB1S2BEE L - AEEFETFEEE
FrEmEGtER  TEHRARBES  FX%
FREFPHAEFEMFEERE  EPIIRRE
RAFEEEMEFEBEHYBRA -
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the Reporting Period, revenue of the Group amounted to
RMB958.6 million (2021: RMB870.4 million), representing an increase
of 10.1% as compared with that of 2021. Revenue growth was
primarily attributable to the Group’s business expansion and the
increase in GFA under management. The Group’s revenue was derived
from three major business lines: (i) property management services; (i)
value-added services to non-property owners; and (i) community
value-added services.

The following table sets forth a breakdown of our revenue by business
line during the years indicated, both in absolute amount and as a
percentage of total revenue:

Bt ¥ Bl R

L DN

RARERME  AEEEHRRAARKIS8.6H
B (2021FE : ARS704H5E L) @ &
2021 NN10.1% c EMAE T B HRAE
BEEBKERRTE@EEMAAE - AEB R
ARABZBEBEBR  (\WESERS S ()3
ETRERE Rl RIEERS -

TRFINATIRFEREFRE DU A R
(MBS EREBRKRANBDLIIR) -

For the year ended 31 December

HE12R31BLLFE
2022 2021
20224 20214

RMB’000 Percentage RMB’000 Percentage

ARETF T Tl ARETR flat

Property management services )% %& 12 iR 7% 609,696 63.6% 507,083 58.2%
Value-added services to FEXEFIBERY

non-property owners 188,978 19.7% 180,914 20.8%

Community value-added R IGE R
services 159,923 16.7% 182,425 21.0%
Total st 958,597 100.0% 870,422 100.0%

Property management services remained the largest source of revenue
for the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue from
property management services reached RMB609.7 million, accounting
for 63.6% of the Group’s total revenue. The growth in revenue was
attributable to the rapid growth in GFA under management. With a
deepened focus on its development strategy for Zhejiang Province and
Yangtze River Delta region, the Group was committed to expanding
basic services for third-party customers.
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Cost of Sales

The cost of sales of the Group is primarily comprised of (i) staff cost;
(i) security, cleaning and greening costs; and (i) utilities and
maintenance costs. For the year ended 31 December 2022, the cost of
sales of the Group was RMB687.2 million, representing an increase of
20.3% as compared with 2021. This was attributable to the Group’s
efforts to further increase its market share, service quality, and
business growth.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Based on the abovementioned factors, the gross profit of the Group
was RMB271.4 milion for the Reporting Period, representing a
decrease of 9.3% as compared with RMB299.1 million in 2021. The
gross profit margin decreased from 34.4% for 2021 to 28.3% in the
Reporting Period.

The following table sets forth our gross profit margin by business
segment for the periods:

HERE

AEBNEEXRAETERENE TRA : ()%
Fri&  BRRBKA : (NAASHERHMEE
RN - BHE2022F 12 A1 BILEE » AEE
REER RN B AREES7.2H &L 820214
#NN20.3% - AR AEE BE—FRE™T
SHBERREEE  MEBERAK -

EANREFE

ERUERRA  AEBAREHENERAA
REE27T14BETT » 2021 FE AR 29015 &
JC T B89.3% ° EF| K H2021F H34.4% =
RS HAR 928.3% ©

TRFINBRMRERES D B DNEN X

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A31BLFEE
2022 2021 Change
2022 20214 %
Property management services ) 2 %5 12 AR 75 25.1% 26.4% -1.3%
Value-added services to non-property owners — 3FE T2 {ERK 35.3% 42.3% -7.0%
Community value-added services RIS E R 32.1% 48.6% -16.5%
Total st 28.3% 34.4% -6.1%

The Group’s gross profit margin for 2022 decreased 6.1%, affected
primarily by decline in domestic real estate industry environment, the
average property management fee rate for property management
service, geographical concentration of GFA under management and
cost control ability.

Gross profit margin of value-added services to non-property owners
decreased from 42.3% for the previous year to 35.3% for the year
under review, reflecting decrease in the overall gross profit margin of
this segment owing to higher service cost incurred by us as affected
primarily by conditions of the domestic real estate industry.

AREBE2022FEEMNET[E6.1% » TEXER
FHETRRE N EYEEERS KRN FY
MEEEEBER  HEEEMIESEPERKAE
HRENHFE -

FETRERBENRH E—FE42.3% M F
EARFE3D3% TBEXBEAEHMETRRER
FE BANHEZHNRBAAR - SRS
MR EME T -
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Gross profit margin of community resources value-added services
decreased from 48.6% for the previous year to 32.1% for the year as
we were required to commit higher cost to obtain income owing
primarily to the decline of the domestic real estate industry amidst
recurring COVID-19 epidemic outbreaks and slowdown in the overall
demand for services in the commercial market, resulting in decrease in
gross profit margin for community resources value-added services.

Selling and marketing expenses

The selling and marketing expenses of the Group increased from
RMB14.1 million for 2021 to RMB15.9 million for the Reporting Period,
representing an increase of 12.4%.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group decreased from RMB146.3
million for 2021 to RMB136.0 milion for the Reporting Period,
representing a decrease of 7.0%, which was primarily attributable to
the realignment of our organisation framework and optimisation of staff
allocation to achieve cost reduction.

Net impairment losses on trade and other
receivables

The net impairment losses on trade and other receivables increased
from reversal of impairment loss RMBO0.7 million for 2021 to
impairment loss for the Reporting Period RMBG6.7 million. The increase
in net impairment reflected primarily a higher amount of impairment
provision for amount receivable from related parties made by the
Group for prudence purposes as compared with the corresponding
period of last year in view of changing credit risks owing to the
ongoing decline of the property industry during the year.

Other income

Other income increased from RMB14.5 million for 2021 to RMB34.7
million for the Reporting Period, which was primarily due to the
increase in revenue from government grants and the increase in
interest from guarantee contracts that we received for the benefit of
our Shareholders.

Other net gains

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other net gains of
RMB6.5 million (2021: other net losses of RMB11.6 million), which was
mainly due to the effect of foreign exchange gains (losses in 2021) and
gain on disposal of subsidiary during the Reporting Period.
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Finance income-net

The finance income-net of the Group increased from RMB3.2 million
for 2021 to RMB8.8 million for the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of 176.4%. Such increase is primarily attributable to the
increase in interests income from bank deposits and interests
receivables on loan receivables.

Income tax expenses

The income tax expenses of the Group increased from approximately
RMB35.4 million for 2021 to RMB37.6 million for the Reporting Period,
representing a significant increase of 6.3%. The increase in income tax
expenses was mainly due to the increase in profit before tax.

Profit for the year

Based on the reasons above, the net profit of the Group during the
Reporting Period was RMB125.1 million, representing an increase of
13.6% as compared with RMB110.1 million in 2021. Net profit margin
was 13.0%, representing an increase of 0.4% as compared with that
of 2021.

The basic and diluted earnings per share of the Company was
RMBO0.122 per share.

Trade and other receivables and prepayments

As of 31 December 2022, trade and other receivables and
prepayments amounted to RMB756.7 million, representing an increase
by RMB307.1 million compared to RMB449.6 million as of
31 December 2021.

As of 31 December 2022, trade receivables amounted to RMB345.1
million, increasing by RMB163.8 million compared to RMB181.3 million
as of 31 December 2021. The increase in trade receivables was
primarily attributable to the expansion in scale of the Group’s business
during the year.

As of 31 December 2022, other receivables amounted to RMB368.8
million, increasing by RMB265.1 million compared to RMB103.7 million
as of 31 December 2021. The increase in other receivables was
primarily attributable to the Group’s payment of security deposit to
Dexin China Holdings Company Limited and its subsidiaries (“Dexin
China Group”) for acquiring of exclusive leasing and sales rights on
parking spaces. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
circular of the Company dated 16 September 2022.

E= L N
AEBENRMEW A FER20021FH ARES.2
BEL EINEAREHBEAREKSSHE T -
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BARKI251EE L W2021F M AR
1101 B ETIER13.6% ° FFBEE513.0% °
2021 F 1 hN0.4% °

AR ERERARBERNEERBENDAR
#0.1227T °

BESRHbEKRIEL R EFRIE

HZE2022F12 4310 - B 5 R HAMAEWFIEL
MIENREAARKISBTEE L REE
2021F12AS1TEM AR K 4496 BELERA
R#®3071BAET -

HZE2022F12A318 - ESENRABEARE
345 1EE L BE Z2021F12A31BHAR
¥i1813E BT RARKI1638EE T - S
JEMGRIBRIE I EZEHERNFANEEEBHRIENE
NGIE

H E2022F12A318  Hith KB AR
368.8F &L WE E2021F12A31BHAR
103 7TE BT RARE2651HE T - Efb
FEMGRIBHYIE IN = 2 B R AN & Bl M &5 B %
BERARLRENB AR ((EEIEHER]) X
NREENEREEMNBRASHE FHEX
SMFFE - FEMALATHHAE2022F9H16
B2k -

20225 W o MERSKHAFTRAT

23



24

Management Discussion and Analysis
BB RO

Trade and other payables

Trade payables include mainly amounts payable for commodities or
services in the ordinary course of business, including procurement of
external labour service, materials and energy. Other payables include
amounts received on behalf of other parties on a temporary basis,
deposits received and other expenses payables. As at 31 December
2022, the Group’s trade and other payables amounted to RMB329.2
million, increasing by 31.9% compared to RMB249.6 milion as at
31 December 2021, which was primarily attributable to the Group’s
business expansion and the increase in service subcontracting to
independent third-party service providers following the growth of GFA
under management.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group pursues a prudent treasury management policy, and actively
manages its liquidity position to cope with any demands for capital for
daily operation and future development. Also, the Group actively
reviews and manages its capital structure on a regular basis to
maintain the advantages and security of a strong capital position and
adjust the capital structure in response to changes in economic
conditions.

The Group’s principal sources of liquidity come from the proceeds from
our business operations. The majority of the Group’s cash and cash
equivalents are denominated in RMB, which amounted to RMB209.9
million as at 31 December 2022, representing a decrease of 72.1%
from the cash and cash equivalents as well as restricted fund of
RMB750.8 million as at 31 December 2021.

As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s current ratio (current assets
divided by current liabilities) was 1.8 times (81 December 2021: 3.2
times).

As of 31 December 2022, the Group’s bank borrowings amounted to
RMB55.0 million (31 December 2021: nil) and the gearing ratio (total
borrowings divided by total equity) was 0.07 (31 December 2021: nil).

Foreign exchange risk

Substantially all of the Group’s revenues and expenditures are
denominated in RMB. As of 31 December 2022, the Group has not
entered into any hedging transaction. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
exchange rates and will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As of 31 December 2022, the Group did not have any capital
commitments contracted for but not provided for.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGE OF
ASSETS

As of 31 December 2022, the Company, its subsidiaries and
associates did not pay for any financial guarantees, provide guarantees
or mortgage for loans, nor have other significant contingent liabilities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES

On 21 December 2021, Hangzhou Junde (a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company), Deqging Xinhan and Hangzhou Kaichuan entered into an
equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Hangzhou Junde agreed
to acquire 39.2% of the equity capital of Hangzhou Kaichuan together
with the shareholders’ loan (in the amount of RMB9.8 million) for a total
consideration of RMB15.7 million from Deqing Xinhan, which was
registered in relation to the transfer of equity interests of Hangzhou
Kaichuan on 7 April 2022. On 26 October 2022, Hangzhou Junde (a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) entered into an equity
transfer agreement, pursuant to which Hangzhou Junde agreed to
dispose its interest in Hangzhou Kaichuan at a consideration of
RMB5.88 million to an independent third party. As at 31 December
2022, the shareholders’ loan was fully repaid and the disposal was
completed.

On 20 October 2022, Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd.
transferred its 100% equity interest in Hangzhou Rongyun Business
Service Co., Ltd. to Dexin Holding Group Limited for an amount of
RMB1.0 million. As at 31 December 2022, the transaction was
completed.

On 26 October 2022, Hangzhou Rongyun Business Services Co., Ltd,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the disposal
agreement with, among others, an independent third party to dispose
100% equity interest in Hangzhou Rongyun Business Services Co., Ltd
and the benefit of the aggregate amount outstanding and owing by
Hangzhou Rongyun Business Services Co., Ltd to the Group at a
consideration of approximately RMB968,000. The disposal was
completed on 26 October 2022 and the Group ceased to hold any
interest in Hangzhou Rongyun Business Services Co., Ltd accordingly.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group intends to utilise part of the net proceeds raised from the
listing to acquire or invest in other property management companies as
part of our strategies to expand our business scale and market share.
As of the date of this report, the Group did not have any other future
plans for material investments or acquisition of capital assets.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

As of 31 December 2022, there was no significant event for the
Company, its subsidiaries or associates after the end of the Reporting
Period.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 2,815 employees
(81 December 2021: 2,908 employees), of which the number of male
and female employees are 1,472 and 1,343, respectively (accounted
for 52.3% and 47.7% respectively), the overall headcount of the
Company remained stable.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s staff cost
amounted to approximately RMB305.0 million. the Group’s employee
remuneration policy has been determined by reference to factors
including remuneration rates of the local markets, overall remuneration
rates of the industry, inflation, corporate operational efficiency and staff
performance, among others. We offer competitive remuneration
packages to employees. The Group also contributes to social security
insurance for its employees in Mainland China, including medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity
insurance, unemployment insurance and housing provident funds in
accordance with pertinent PRC laws and regulations. The Board
reviews its remuneration policy, including the level and structure of
remuneration, from time to time. The Group conducts employee
performance appraisal on an annual/quarterly basis, the results of
which are adopted for assessment regarding annual/quarterly salary
adjustment, promotion, reward and commendation.
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The Group places a strong emphasis on the standards of talents, as it
formulates comprehensive internal staff training programmes on a
regular basis, organised by way of a combination of online and offline
formats to meet the needs of staff under different learning scenarios.
Online training is facilitated through a learning map set up to deliver job
position-specific courses covering all ranks from junior staff to senior
management, while tools such as mobile learning platforms and video
conferencing are employed to meet learning requirements subject to
different timing and space. Offline training is organised mainly by way
of training camps for key talents, in which different types of talents
compatible with the Company’s business development are swiftly
trained through a combination of learning and practice sessions based
on talent stocktaking and job competence models, as a dynamic
mechanism underpinned by “stocktaking — movement —
development” has been formed. To expand its team of back-up
talents, the Group has entered into cooperation in designated training
with Zhejiang Shuren University and other colleges to develop talents of
the new generation. Well-experienced staff have been appointed as
mentor to provide bespoke training and counseling during new staff
induction and training of back-up personnel. This arrangement has
safeguarded the ability of junior staff to perform their duties and
enhanced the management level of management officers at all grades,
thereby providing timely and effective support for the Group’s business
development. Moreover, the Group has established an occupational
safety and health system and implemented the GB/T45001 — 2020/
ISO 45001: 2018 occupational health and safety management system
and provides workplace safety training to employees on a regular basis
to enhance their awareness for work safety.

Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services

On 9 June 2022, the Company entered into the Parking Space
Leasing and Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement (the
“Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services Framework
Agreement”) with Dexin China, pursuant to which, the Group will
provide exclusive parking spaces sales and leasing agency services in
respect of the target parking spaces to Dexin China Group (the
“Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services”).

The initial term of the Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement commenced from the date on which it
is considered and approved at the extraordinary general meeting dated
11 October 2022 to 31 December 2024, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.
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The amount received in respect of the Parking Space Leasing and
Sales Agency Services under the Parking Space Leasing and Sales
Agency Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 income was RMB8 million. In addition, the Company
paid deposits of RMB250 million to Dexin China for the parking spaces
sales and leasing agency during the year.

The deposits charged for the parking spaces sales and leasing agency
of the Company regarding the annual cap in respect of the Parking
Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2022 and each of the two years ending
31 December 2024 is RMB250 million, RMB300 million and RMB300
million, respectively. Therefore, the deposit amount paid in respect of
the Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services under the
Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 has not exceeded
the annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2022 under the
Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services Framework
Agreement. For details of the transaction, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 9 June 2022 and the circular of
the Company dated 16 September 2022.

Loan Agreement With Hangzhou Ruiyang

On 16 December 2022, Shanghai Xuquan Trading Co., Ltd.* (/&
2EE AR 2AA]), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
as the lender, entered into a loan agreement with Hangzhou Ruiyang
Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.* (#u/Nimi5 (& 32 & 18 B IR A 7)),
a business partner of the Company, and an independent third party as
the borrower. Pursuant to the loan agreement, the lender has agreed
to advance to the borrower a loan in the principal amount of up to
RMB315 million, bearing an interest rate of 8% per annum and
secured by the Charged Assets. For the details of the loan, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 16 December
2022 and 22 March 2023.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

EENSHREEEERFE

Herebelow are the brief profiles of the Directors and senior
management of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2022.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Yiping (88— ), aged 56, was appointed as our Director on
22 October 2020 and was re-designated as our executive Director and
appointed as the chairman of our Board on 31 December 2020. He is
responsible for the overall operational management of business
development and strategic planning of our Group. Mr. Hu served as
executive director of Shengquan Property from March 2004 to
December 2004 and consecutively served as the executive director, the
chairman of the board and the director from April 2013 to September
2020, primarily responsible for its major business decisions.

Mr. Hu has over 25 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry
and property management. From January 1987 to August 1995,
Mr. Hu worked at Deging County Construction Surveying Design Studio
(=5 B2 L B 2R 5T FT), a PRC government authority responsible for
planning of urban and rural development and construction, where he
consecutively served as a technician for the survey and design office,
the assistant engineer and the engineer mainly responsible for design
work. He established Dexin Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. ({E{ZHEEE
BR 7] (formerly known as Zhejiang Dexin Real Estate Co., Ltd. (#f
TEEEEAER2AA]) and Deging County Real Estate Co., Ltd (12)5 %
REZBXAMR AT in September 1995 and has been the director and
chairman of the board of directors of since then, mainly responsible for
its overall development, investment strategies and major business
decisions. He has been an executive director and the chairman of the
board of Dexin China since August 2018, primarily responsible for its
overall development, investment strategies and major business
decisions.

Mr. Hu graduated from Zhejiang School of Construction (#L& &5 T
¥ E) in the PRC in January 1987 with a diploma’s degree in civil
engineering specialty, and from Zhejiang Yucai Workers’ University (4
IEA BT KE) in the PRC in June 1995 with an associate’s degree
in architecture. He obtained his bachelor’'s degree in financial
management (online course) from Tianjin University (K2 AXEZ) in the
PRC in 2013 and obtained his executive master of business
administration (EMBA) from Xiamen University (EF9K2) in the PRC in
September 2018. He obtained a qualification for senior economist (&
% 45 AD) issued by Zhejiang Human Resources and Social Security
Department (41L& A7 &Rt &{REEEE) in December 2007. He also
obtained a qualification for engineer issued by Huzhou Personnel
Department (81T A=) in September 1996. Currently, Mr. Hu is the
president of Zhejiang Real Estate Industry Association (T4 &= i E

PN

&) and the chairman of Huzhou Chamber of Commerce in Hangzhou

(RN T8N 7 ).

UTRAQAREHE2022F12 A31HILFEHNE
ENSREBABEN -

WITES

H—FRE 5658 0 R2020F10A22R &L
EAEERN2020F12A31BAEANTE
2 TEZTAESR -HABAEEEBKS
RRERE S EIE NBMKAE o #A5L£7482004
FIAE2004F 12 AZEEREMERNITES
W R2013F4 A E2020F9A B EEHITE
L EERFEFT TEAEEAEERE -

HAErEFEEMETENMEEEH EES
FBR25F LT o BB EMN1987F 1 A E1995
FORAEEBEGZEEMNRLT(AERTME
WNERAZZREOTEKRFEE) TE- I
b EAMREAERITE BEIR
MEkFEZEBERFTIIEN IR - ER19955
QR EEHESBEARAR (FIEBITIERE
EXBRAAIREESTEEXERAA) -
Blt—BHETEEREER TR EBEH
B -REHBBREEREBRBARE - B201858H
AR E—EHEAEEPEMNRTEERES
R FEAEERERE REBBUREKRE
TEIRER o

A ER1987T F1 A EERF BT AEZET
XER BEESIRBEXERHERF - WKH1995
FOAEERTEMIEAB IS  EBE
SHEKHER - HJNR2013FESFRE R EX
BB (TERE) ARIEE - R20184F9
AESTEEMAZSHREEAE TRHEIRE
+ E {7 (EMBA) - ER2007F 12 A EBHTTAE
ANBBRMEEREBEENS AL EME
7% o HINA1996F 9 A EBIHINT A E BB
MIRRMER - SHEERANIAEHERS
eREMMTHIEES R -

20225 W o MERSKHAFTRAT

29



30

Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
EENENEEEBRREFE

Mr. Tang Junjie (&%), aged 48, was appointed as our Director on
22 October 2020 and was re-designated as our executive Director and
appointed as our president on 31 December 2020. He is responsible
for the formulation and implementation of the business strategy, annual
operation planning and financial planning of our Group. Mr. Tang joined
our Group as the chairman of the board and general manager of
Shengquan Property in November 2018 where he was primarily
responsible for the formulation and implementation of the business
strategy, annual operation and financial planning.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Tang worked at Wenzhou Planning
Bureau of Zhejiang Province (#TT&BMMEEIB) (now known as
Wenzhou Natural Resources and Planning Bureau (& /N B %2 &R
#828//3)), where he served various positions from August 1996 to
January 2013, the deputy division chief of the municipal office,
primarily responsible for urban comprehensive transportation system,
urban planning and engineering approval, and the deputy
director-general of Longwan Branch, where he was mainly responsible
for detailed planning of the city and construction engineering approval.
From January 2013 to March 2018, he worked at Wenzhou High and
New Technology Industrial Development Zone (& /M T = #7 £l 2= % 59
#%[@), where he consecutively served as the deputy director and the
director of the land planning office at the Management Committee of
the Science and Technology Park of Wenzhou High-Tech Zone (/N
SHEREEEZE®), where he was mainly responsible for land use
planning and management and urban management; the division chief at
the Industrial Planning Division of Wenzhou High-Tech Zone (&M S
FREXMEIFE), where he was mainly responsible for strategic
planning of the management committee and investment and operation
of the high-tech industries; the director-general of the Planning and
Construction of Wenzhou South Zhejiang Science and Technology City
CEIN T E RN AR 81258 /B), where he was mainly responsible for
land development and utilization, spatial planning, implementation and
management of the construction projects. From March 2018 to
October 2020, he worked at Dexin Holdings as assistant to the
chairman of the board, where he was mainly responsible for strategic
investment and operation of the property management sector.
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Mr. Tang obtained his bachelor's degree in civil engineering and
architectural engineering from Zhejiang University (41T X&) in the PRC
in July 1996. He obtained his master’s degree in public administration
from Tongji University ([E& X&) in the PRC in November 2005.
Mr. Tang was awarded as the “2019 Top 100 China Property
Manager” (2019 Bl #) 2 4538 A 100 58) in 2019, “2020 Top 50 China
Property Manager Election of the Yangtze River Delta Region (the
Fourth)” (2020(% P [&E)H B4 3£ 4838 AT & = A50598) in December
2020 and “Top 30 Property CEO of the Year in China” (F %) % F &
CEO305%) in December 2021. Mr. Tang obtained a qualification for
Engineer of Urban Planning (82 TF2A0) issued by Wenzhou
Engineering Technician Position Second Review Committee (8 T T
R A B85S —5FEZ 89) in November 2001. Mr. Tang obtained
a qualification for Registered Urban Planner (s:ffk R 2I6T) issued by
MOHURD in January 2014. Mr. Tang is currently the director of China
Property Management Association, Vice President of Hangzhou
Property Management Association and Vice President of Wenzhou
Chamber of Commerce.

Ms. Zhu Xiaoli (5kHEEF]), aged 46, joined our Group in August 2016
as the assistant to the general manager of Shengquan Property. Ms.
Zhu was appointed as our Director on 22 October 2020 and was
re-designated as our executive Director on 31 December 2020. She
served as chief financial officer of the Company from 1 October 2021
to 21 July 2022. She is responsible for business of business
development centre, assisting the president in managing the value-
added business in community.

Ms. Zhu has over 18 years of experience in auditing and financing.
Prior to joining our Group, from July 2002 to April 2005 and from May
2005 to November 2011, she worked consecutively at Zhejiang
Wenhua Auction Co., Ltd. (/T XZEHEHBMR A F), an auction
company, and Zhejiang Wenhua Holding Co., Ltd. (#1iL 3G R
‘A 7)), an asset management company, where she served as financial
manager mainly responsible for the overall management of the
accounting department. From December 2011 to May 2014, she
worked at Zhong’an Group Co., Ltd. (RLZE£EER A R]), a company
principally engaged in real estate development, hotel and restaurant
management and investment consulting, where she worked as the
financial and audit supervisor of audit department mainly responsible
for the overall auditing of the company and its subsidiaries, inspection
and supervision of execution of the financial regulations. From June
2014 to August 2016, she worked at Dexin Holdings as the audit
manager, where she was mainly responsible for assisting person in
charge of the audit risk control center with auditing system, auditing
process and annual auditing plan.
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Ms. Zhu obtained her bachelor’'s degree in economics from Zhejiang
Academy of Finance & Economics (1T BF 4 &%) (now known as
Zhejiang University of Finance & Economics (HTi LR &8 KE)) in the PRC
in July 1999. Ms. Zhu obtained her bachelor's degree in civil
engineering (engineering management) from Zhejiang University (7L A
&) in the PRC through distance learning in February, 2017.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Jia Shenghua (B4 #), aged 61, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 June 2021 and is primarily
responsible for providing independent advice on the operations and
management of our Group.

Mr. Jia served as a lecturer from July 1989 to July 1991 and as an
associate professor from September 1991 to February 1995 at School
of Economics and Management of Northwest Agricultural University (78
b2 EKE), where he was primarily engaged in teaching and research
of land economic management. From March 1995 to November 1996,
he worked as an associate professor at School of Business
Administration of Zhejiang University (#’T X2%) and has been a
professor since December 1996 and tutor of doctoral students since
December 1999.
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In addition to the working experience above, Mr. Jia has been serving
as independent director or independent non-executive director of the
following listed companies:

Bk bt TYRERESH -
BB FNE U IFAITE SRR -

= EEBEAE

BAREREUT EHAA

Principal business, place of
listing and stock code

EEER - L R R58°

Period of service

BB %5 5 HA

Name of company

ATEH

Position(s)

- in)

Since June 2006 Greentown China
Holdings Limited (4% ¥

A R A A)

A real estate company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 3900)

H200656 A it WP EEZERARAR —RXRBIXMIRETOEBE

AR (B RS - 3900)

Since May 2015 Hangzhou Binjiang Real
Estate Group Co., Ltd.

(MBI F ES B

A real estate company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock
code: 002244)

MAERRA)
B20154E5 B #E MMNEBTIEEEERL —FIRFRNBEZSHLETHE
BRRAF HERNR (FHRE : 002244)

Since December 2018 Nacity Property Service

Group Co., Ltd. (R &P

A property management company
listed on the Shanghai Stock

MERBEERMDABR  Exchange (stock code: 603506)
D)

E20184F 12 A #E MEMERBEBRRY —FIRLESB5XZHMETHNYDE
BRAA EIR AR (FHFMRHES : 603506)

Independent non-executive
director, a member of the
remuneration committee
and the nomination
committee, and the
chairman of the
remuneration committee

BUENTES  FTMEEE
RiRE % B g B AR E M
ZEEXRE

Independent director

BUESE

Independent director

BUEZR

Since June 2021 Cosmos Group Co., Ltd. A real estate company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange

(stock code: 002133)

B202146 A # EFEEBRHMERRAT —FXRFRNIEERXSHMETNET
EAR (EFEHFMRE  002133)

Independent director

BUEZR
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Mr. Jia obtained his bachelor’'s degree in agricultural economics and
management from the Northwest A&F University (Fadb 2 E 7)) in the
PRC in July 1988. He obtained his doctor’s degree through successive
postgraduate and doctoral program in agricultural economics and
management from the Northwest Agricultural University (Fa1k 2 2 K 22)
in the PRC in July 1989. He has been a director of Zhejiang University
Property Research Center (#T/T K2 FE HE 7T+ L)) since December
2000. Mr. Jia was a director and shareholder of Anji Zhejiang
University Young Professor Science and Technology Pioneer Park Co.,
Ltd. (ZEMATFHER A ZE BB A F]) whose business license
was revoked on 27 December 2013. He confirmed that, to the best of
his knowledge and belief, as of the date of this annual report, no
claims had been made against him and he was not aware of any
threatened or potential claims made against him and there are no
outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the revocation of the
above company.

Mr. Rui Meng (R 8f), aged 55, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 21 June 2021 and is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management
of our Group. He has been a Professor in Accounting since January
2012 and a Parkland Chair in Finance (It E 4 BIZEHFHIK) since
March 2019 at China Europe International Business School (F BX B ER
TREPRR). From October 2015 to October 2019, he served as the
Zhongkun Group Chair in Finance (FF 354 [E ¢ B 22 H & 21%) at China
Europe International Business School.
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In addition to the working experience above, Mr. Rui served or has
been serving as independent director or independent non-executive

director of the following listed companies:

Bk bt TYRERESH -
MARBYESFHELIFNITESR

NEAGEHRENUNT L

Period of service

G35 & 58

Name of company

A4

Principal business, place of listing and
stock code

TERE LhRRG A

Position(s)

B

From November 2014 to
May 2020

201411 A&
2020%5A

From September 2015 to
September 2018

2015F9 8 &
20189 A

From June 2015 to
June 2021

201556 A%
202156 /1

Since April 2017

B2017F4 A1

Since August 2017

B2017F8 A

Since May 2018

BH2018F5A 12

Since May 2019

B2019F5 A

From June 2021 to
20 August 2021

B2021F6 AR E
202148 A20H

Shanghai Winner Information
Technology Co., Inc.
(EEEARBERHERAA)

HBEmRER R
ARAT]

Midea Group Co., Ltd.
EHOEERHEBRAF)

FNEERNERAT

COSCO Shipping Energy
Transportation Co., Ltd.
(PRGEERRNERAT)

RRBERRRD
BRAF

Shang Gong Group Co., Ltd.
(FT®RE (RE)RHER
NSi)|

LTHRR(RE)BRHERAF

China Education Group
Holdings Limited (F Bl &
SEERBRAR)

REHEREERERDA

Country Garden Services
Holdings Company Limited
(BERRBERERAF)

BEERBERERAA

Landsea Green Group Co, Ltd.
AFZEREERAR)
e sEBERAH

Sichuan Languang Justbon
Services Group Co., Ltd

m)IE R E R EERD
BRAF

A technological company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
300609)

—FRRIFESFR S EHRRR A E (F
%85 : 300609)

A technological company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code:
000333)

—ZERANBELRR S EHOREERE (F
%85 : 000333)

An energy company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1138)
and the Shanghai Stock Exchange (stock
code: 600026)

—ZERBR A ER(ROR : 1138) R L&
FEHRHH(EHRE  600026) L

PN A
VNG

A machinery company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600843)

—FREEBEXSFHETHOEEAR (B
5 : 600843)

An education company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 839)

—RRERAERETHHEEE (RHOK
5% : 839)

A property management company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 6098)

—FRERAER EMAMEER LA (RH
9% : 6098)

A real estate company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 106)

—RRBXAER ETREE
Al (BB R 106)

A property management company listed on
Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2606). Delisted on 20 August 2021

—KRERFMER EMOMEER
R (B K55 : 2606) °
7202148 A20 B BUE L iz

Independent director and the
chairman of the audit committee

BUESEREANZEETIR

Independent director

BUES

Independent director and a member
of the audit committee

BUBEREHZEGKE

Independent director

BUEZ

Independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit
committee

BUFRTESRENZECLIR

Independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit
committee

BUFHTEEREHZESER

Independent non-executive director
and the chairman of the audit
committee

BUFRTESRENZECEIR

Independent non-executive director

BUFRTES
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Notwithstanding Mr. Rui’s engagement as an independent
non-executive director of four companies listed on the Stock Exchange,
as advised and confirmed by Mr. Rui, he has sufficient time to act as
an independent non-executive Director based on the following:

(i) Other than serving as Professor in Accounting at China Europe
International Business School, Mr. Rui has not taken up any full
time employment in any capacity except serving as an
independent non-executive director in the above listed
companies. With his background and experience, Mr. Rui is fully
aware of the responsibilities and expected time involvements for
serving as independent non-executive director. He has not found
difficulties in devoting and managing his time to these companies
and he is confident that with his experience in being responsible
for multiple roles, he will be able to discharge his duties to our
Company; and

(i) Mr. Rui’s role in our Group is non-executive in nature and he will
not be involved in the daily management of our Group’s
business, thus his engagement as an independent non-executive
Director will not require his full-time participation.

Based on the foregoing, our Directors do not have reasons to believe
that the various positions currently held by Mr. Rui will result in Mr. Rui
not having sufficient time to act as an independent non-executive
Director or not properly discharging his fiduciary duties as a director of
our Company.

Mr. Rui obtained his bachelor’s degree in international economics from
the Institute of International Relations in Beijing (47 BB R T 75 E26%) in
the PRC in July 1990. He received a master of science in economics
from Oklahoma State University in the United States as well as a
master of business administration degree and a doctor of philosophy
degree in business administration from the University of Houston in the
United States in May 1993, December 1996 and August 1997,
respectively. Mr. Rui has been professional designated as a Certified
Financial Analyst by the Association for Investment Management and
Research since September 2000 and a Financial Risk Manager by the
Global Association of Risk Professionals since April 2010.
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Mr. Yang Xi (15ER), aged 42, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 21 June 2021 and is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management of
our Group.

From February 2008 to January 2015, he worked at Beijing Yisheng
Leju Information Services Ltd. (At RIa AL EE ERBEBR A F]), a real
estate online to offline service provider and a company listed on New
York Stock Exchange (stock code: LEJU), where he served as
editor-in-chief mainly responsible for publication editing of the websites.
From January 2015 to February 2019, he worked at Shanghai Weimi
Business Information Consulting Co., Ltd. ((E/& KR H1E B AA R
A d]), a company primarily engaged in business information consulting,
where he served as the chief operating officer mainly responsible for
operation and management of the company. Since February 2019, he
has been working at Beijing Zhongwuyanxie Information Technology
Co., Ltd. GtmF¥ifinE SR EABR2AFR), a company primarily
engaged in information technology, where he served as the general
manager mainly responsible for management of the company.

Mr. Yang obtained his bachelor’'s degree of arts from Beijing
Technology and Business University (1t /= TEAZ) in the PRC in June
2001. Mr. Yang has been serving as the deputy secretary general of
China Property Management Institute (FFEI#12E 2% 2) since July
2019. Mr. Yang was a supervisor and shareholder of Beijing Tianlun
Real Estate Brokerage Co., Ltd. (It R X fmEHELL 4 AR A7) whose
business license was revoked on 30 December 2008. He confirmed
that, to the best of his knowledge and belief, as of the date of this
annual report, no claims had been made against him and he was not
aware of any threatened or potential claims made against him and
there are no outstanding claims and/or liabilities as a result of the
revocation of the above company.

Each of our Directors has confirmed that there are no other matters
relating to his/her appointment as a Director that need to be brought
to the attention of our shareholders and there was no other information
relating to his/her appointment which is required to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our executive Directors and other members of our senior management
are responsible for the day-to-day operations and management of the
business of our Group. For the biographical details of our executive
Directors, please refer to “Executive Directors” in this section.

Ms. Zheng Peng (ZBl§), aged 42, was appointed as the chief financial
officer on 21 July 2022 and is responsible for the operation of the
Group’s financial management affairs, financial system construction and
overall supervision and management of financial management work.
Ms. Zheng has over 17 years of experience in accounting and financial
management industry. Ms. Zheng obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
Dongbei University of Finance and Economics (318148 A E2) in 2004.

She joined our Group in July 2017 as the finance manager of the
finance department in Hangzhou region and was mainly responsible for
the overall financial management of the Company in Hangzhou region.
Ms. Zheng also served as the deputy director at our financial
management centre (the “Centre”) in January 2020 and was mainly
responsible for the Group’s budget, accounts management and
financial information construction work and assisting the then chief
financial officer in taking charge of financial affairs operation. She was
promoted to be the deputy general manager of the Centre in March
2022 and was primarily responsible for the overall management of the
Group’s general financial affairs. She was further promoted to be the
general manager of the Centre in July 2022 and was responsible for
the overall supervision and management of the Group’s financial
matters.

Prior to joining the Company, Ms. Zheng served as an accountant in
the Huangshan State Taxation Bureau (EIIBEZRFHF) from April
2005 to August 2013. She also served as financial director of
Hangzhou Chengnan Real Estate Property Company (7)1 3 & & i &
Y2 N 7A]) from September 2013 to June 2017 and was mainly
responsible for the daily business and management of the finance
department.

Mr. Liu Yibing (21 &), aged 45, was appointed as our executive
vice president in June 2015 and is primarily responsible for the
operation and management of the investment development center and
enterprise business department of our Group and overseeing our
operations in Zhejiang district. He joined our Group as the manager of
the marketing department of Shengquan Property in March 2006,
primarily responsible for management of the marketing department.
Mr. Liu has over 14 years of experience in property management. Prior
to joining our Group, Mr. Liu worked at Hangzhou Lvheng Property
Management Co., Ltd. (MM EWHEEEEGR A F]), a property
management company.
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In addition, Mr. Liu served in several subsidiaries of our Group. From
March 2006 to June 2015, he consecutively served as manager of the
marketing department, regional manager of Hangzhou district, manager
and vice general manager of Shengquan Property and as its executive
deputy general manager since June 2015. Since June 2015, he also
serves as the director and general manager of Zhejiang Shengquan
Security Services Co., Ltd. (fIIBR2RELZREBRAE]). Besides,
Mr. Liu has been serving as the person in charge of several branch
offices of Shengquan Property since October 2013, where he is mainly
responsible for the overall operation. Mr. Liu obtained his associate’s
degree in tourism management from West Anhui University (B 78 £2F5%)
in the PRC in July 1999.

Mr. Chen Xin (PREF), aged 40, was appointed as an assistant to the
president in July 2018 and is mainly responsible for the strategic
development and brand building and promotion of the listed group. He
assists the president in managing the operation and quality control
centre, information technology centre, and oversees the operation of
the environmental company, Xier Technology, Youai Technology and
Dexiao Energy Company. He joined our Group in October 2013 as the
planning manager, general manager of the third business department
and assistant to general manager of Shengquan Property, primarily
responsible for the project named “Shengquan Youjia” (B2 2 E%), for
building smart community platform and expanding the community
business cooperation.

Prior to joining our Group, from July 2005 to April 2010, he worked at
Hangzhou Dukuai Newsreader Media Co., Ltd. (TN ZBERER A B A
fR A R]) (formally known as Hangzhou Newsreader Advertising Media
Co., Ltd. (MMNEHRABESEEERAF]) and Hangzhou Newsreader
E-Commerce Co., Ltd. (FM/NEBRAEFEEERAF), a company
principally engaged in commercial operation, where he served as an
account manager mainly responsible for planning and organization of
reader activities. From May 2010 to March 2011, he worked at
Zhejiang Transportation Travel Media Co., Ltd. (3L Bk EH AR
‘A d]), a company principally engaged in media events planning, where
he served as a planning manager of the planning department mainly
responsible for advertisement design and marketing plan. From
November 2011 to September 2013, he worked at Hangzhou
HONYAR Electrical Co., Ltd. (TiM 5§ /EE 22 AR A Al), an architectural
electric products manufacturing enterprise, where he served as the
manager of the public relations department mainly responsible for brand
building, corporate culture promotion and media relationship
maintenance.

Mr. Chen obtained his bachelor’'s degree in arts from Shanghai Jiao
Tong University (/833 A2) in the PRC in July 2005.
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Ms. Zhao Lixiang (#HEEi#l), aged 44, was appointed as our chief
human resources and administration officer in June 2013 and is
primarily responsible for the management of human resources and
administration affairs, construction of enterprise culture and
development of human resources service system of our Group.

Ms. Zhao has over 21 years of experience in human resources and
administration management. Prior to joining our Group, from January
2000 to December 2003, she worked at Huasheng Construction Group
Co., Ltd. (FEFAZHZEBEAR A A]), a company principally engaged in
construction, where she served as the manager of the overseas
business department mainly responsible for daily management of
human resources. From January 2004 to July 2006, she worked at
Zhejiang Jinke Daily Chemical Co., Ltd. (/T & &I B RE AR A7),
where she served as human resources manager mainly responsible for
improvement of human resources policies and procedures and other
daily affairs of human resources. From July 2006 to June 2010, she
worked at Shaoxing Shangyu Jinjin Hotel Co., Ltd. (A& FE &K
IS B BR/AF]), where she served as the head of general manager
office mainly responsible for the daily affairs of the general manager
office. From July 2010 to September 2011, she served as the manager
of administration and human resources department at Zhejiang Geshan
Pinyue Travel Co., Ltd. (MIFILMIZIKERR A F]) (formally known as
Zhejiang Geshan Pinyue Hotel Co., Ltd. (T3l il R BEE SR A
A])), where she was mainly responsible for the daily management of
human resources and administration affairs. From October 2011 to July
2012 and from August 2012 to June 2013, she successively served as
the human resources and administration director at Zhejiang Shimao
Junlan Hotel Management Co., Ltd. (Tt Z ZE HEEEE B R A7)
and Zhejiang Denghao Hotel Co., Ltd. GiT/L& = B/E AR A7),
respectively, where she was mainly responsible for the daily
management of human resources and administration affairs.

Ms. Zhao obtained her bachelor’'s degree in business management
from Nankai University (F8FA2) in the PRC through distance learning
in July 2018. She obtained the human resources management division
(Level 1) ((EEANEREE A B —#) issued by the Occupational Skill
Testing Authority of the Ministry of Human Resources and Social
Security (AR EREBEERFEE T H D) in November 2015.
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Mr. Wu Zhexiao, aged 36, joined the Group in March 2021 as the
general manager of the investment development centre, who is mainly
responsible for the overall work of the investment development centre,
including market strategic planning, capital market operation as well as
the development of investment and financing business, and served as
the general manager of the capital investment centre in July 2022.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wu was the manager of the investment
and development department of Dehua Tubao New Decoration Material
Co., Ltd. (FEEREEEMFMIMD AR AF]) from July 2010 to August
2012, responsible for the development of quality projects and the
development of corporate capital operation capability. He was the
secretary of the board of directors of Zhejiang Hongwei Supply Chain
Group Co., Ltd. (I REHEEEER K BRQF) from September
2012 to February 2017, mainly responsible for formulating corporate
development strategic planning and business plan and completing the
preparation work for listing. He joined Shengquan Property in March
2017 and served as the secretary of the board of directors of
Shengquan Property. He served as the general manager of the
strategic investment centre of Dexin Holdings Group from December
2018 to February 2021. Mr. Wu obtained the qualification certificate of
director secretary of Shenzhen Stock Exchange in December 2013, the
qualification certificate of director secretary of Shanghai Stock
Exchange in 2018, and the qualification certificate of Chinese legal
profession in 2019.

Mr. Wu received his Bachelor’'s degree in Finance from Jiangxi Normal
University (T FHRT# K2 in 2010.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty (Efifl{%), was appointed as our company
secretary on 31 May 2021. Ms. So currently serves as a vice president
of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited, a corporate
service provider. She has over 20 years of experience in the field of
company secretary. Ms. So obtained a master’s degree in Chinese and
Comparative Law from the City University of Hong Kong in 2004 and a
master’s degree in business administration from the University of
Leicester (long distance learning course) in 1999. Ms. So is an
associate member of The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries
and The Chartered Governance Institute in the United Kingdom since
1997.
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The Board is pleased to present this annual report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group has three business lines, namely (i) property management
services, (i) value-added services to non-property owners and (iii)
community value-added services, forming an integrated service offering
to its customers that cover the entire value chain of property
management.

Analysis of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 is set out in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated annual results of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2022 are set out on pages 96 to 171 of this annual report.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2022, details of the changes in the
property, plant and equipment of the Group for the Year are set out in
the Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

Donation

The total amount of donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 was approximately RMB2.0 million.
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RESERVES

Details of movement in reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and Note 32 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of reserves available for distribution to shareholders are set out
in Note 32 of the consolidated financial statements on page 161 of this
annual report. Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the share premium of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders provided that immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the Company will be in a
position to pay off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group’s future business development are set out in
the Chairman’s Statement, as well as the Management Discussion and
Analysis on pages 7 to 12 and pages 13 to 28, respectively, of this
annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis — EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD” in this annual report, the Group has no
significant events after the end of the financial year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES

The Group believes that high-quality employees who value its corporate
culture are essential elements to promote the Group’s sustainable
growth. The Group intends to attract and retain skilled and talented
employees from reputable universities of PRC through various
initiatives, including its creative trainee programs, competitive
compensation packages and effective incentive system.

For details regarding employees and staff costs and the emolument
policy of the Group, please refer to the section headed “Directors’
Report — Employees and Remuneration Policy”.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH SUPPLIERS

The Group is dedicated to develop good relationship with suppliers as
long-term business partners to ensure stability of the Group’s
businesses. We reinforce business partnerships with suppliers by
conducting ongoing communication in a proactive and effective
manner.

For further details regarding our major suppliers, please refer to the
section headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS

Customers’ satisfaction with our services and products has a profound
effect on our profitability. Our dedicated sales team is in constant
communication with our customers and potential customers to uncover
and create customer needs and help customers make informed
decisions. Identification of customers’ pain points alongside grasping
the market trend are critical for the Group to timely adjust the Group’s
operating strategies to match the market requirements. For details
regarding the Group’s major customers, please refer to the sections
headed “Directors’ Report — Major Customers and Suppliers”.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Principal risks and uncertainties which the Group faces include (i) its
future growth may not materialize as planned; (i) uncertainty as to
securing new or renewing the existing property management service
agreements on favourable terms, or at all; (i) uncertainty related to
acquisitions which may not be successful and the Group may face
difficulties in integrating acquired operations with its existing operations;
(iv) no control over a majority of revenue generate from connected
persons of the Company; (v) risks related to development in the
government policies and regulations regarding the PRC property
management services; and (vi) risks related to the increasing raw
material prices and labor costs.
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The Group is not subject to significant credit risk and liquidity risk. The
Group’s financial risk is mainly due to foreign exchange rate risk. As
the majority of the Group’s operations are conducted in the PRC and
are denominated in Renminbi. Foreign currency transactions mainly
comprise the receipt of listing proceeds and payment of professional
fees (denominated in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars). As
at 31 December 2022, the major non-RMB assets were cash and cash
equivalents denominated in Hong Kong dollars with a corresponding
amount of RMB2.0 million and cash and cash equivalents denominated
in United States dollars with a corresponding amount of RMBO0.2
million. Fluctuations in the exchange rate of Renminbi against foreign
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currencies may affect the Group’s results of operations. The Group  EAMEE K o 7N & B 18 7 4 E i e ONE )
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy and  Z&#HE°
manages its foreign exchange risk by closely monitoring movements in
foreign exchange rates. The Group will make foreign exchange hedging
arrangements as and when necessary.
PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE BE  HEBEAAT EHES
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES
Number of Total
Shares Highest Price Lowest Price Consideration
Repurchased Per Share Paid Per Share Paid Paid
FR3Z {4 FR3% {4
Trading Month X5 AMH BEEGEE BERREE BRaEKE MAXFEKLE
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(#&3T) (&) (#&3T)
July 7H 27,390,000 3.05 2.94 81,782,250
September 9H 10,600,000 3.00 2.95 31,702,400
December 12 43 8,100,000 2.90 2.90 23,490,000
Total At 46,090,000 136,974,650

The shares of the Company were listed on the Stock Exchange on the
Listing Date and during the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company has repurchased a total of 46,090,000 Shares on the Stock
Exchange at an aggregate consideration of HK$136,974,650. As at the
date of this announcement, all the Shares repurchased in 2022 have
been cancelled.
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CONTINUING DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS
PURSUANT TO THE LISTING RULES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Company does not have
any other disclosure obligations under Rules 13.20, 13.21 and 13.22
of the Listing Rules.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The forthcoming 2022 AGM will be held on Monday, 29 May 2023
and its notice and all other relevant documents will be published and
despatched to the Shareholders in April 2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

(@) For determining the entitlement of the
shareholders to attend and vote at the 2022
AGM

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 23 May 2023 to Monday, 29 May 2023, both days
inclusive and during which no share transfer will be effected, for
the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to attend
and vote at the 2022 AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and
vote at the 2022 AGM, all transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong, not later than 4:30 pm on Monday, 22 May 2023.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND
PERFORMANCE

It is the Group’s corporate and social responsibility in promoting a
sustainable and environmental friendly environment, and the Group
strives to minimize its environmental impact and comply with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations. The Group has
implemented reasonable measures in the operation of its businesses to
comply with all applicable requirements. Given the nature of the
Group’s operations, it is believed that the Group is not subject to
material environmental liability risk or compliance costs.

The measures the Group took to ensure compliance with the
applicable environmental laws and regulations include: (i) formulating
and improving management measures and operational guidelines for
energy conservation, emission reduction and waste management; and
(i) actively adopting environmentally friendly equipment and designs.

The Group had not received any material fines or penalties associated
with the breach of any environmental laws or regulations during the
year ended 31 December 2022.

The 2022 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Group
shall be published separately and will be posted on the websites of the
Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(www.dexinfuwu.com).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS AND TAX RELIEF

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association, nor restrictions against such rights under the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s
securities.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange since 15 July 2021 (the “Listing Date”). The net
proceeds amounted to HK$763.5 million. Reference is made to the
announcement of the Company dated 16 December 2022 and the
supplemental announcement of the Company dated 22 March 2023
(the “Announcements”). The prospectus of the Company dated 29
June 2021 originally indicated that approximately 65.0% of the net
proceeds would be used for the expansion of business scale and
increase in market share through multiple channels, and the net
proceeds that would be applied for this purpose amounted to
approximately HK$496.0 million. The unutilised portion of the net
proceeds originally intended for such purpose in the amount of
HK$426.6 million is not required for immediate use by the Group at the
moment. Having considered the commercial benefits to the Group in
deploying the unutilised net proceeds as a loan secured by the
Charged Assets (the “Charged Assets”), which comprise car parking
spaces, located at Dexin Airport City, Xiaoshan District, Hangzhou City,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC, which have an appraised market value of
approximately RMB630 million as valued by the property valuer using
the market approach which compares recent market evidence of
similar properties located in the neighbourhood area of the Charged
Assets; this allows the Group to improve the efficiency and the
effectiveness of the Group’s temporarily idle funds with better
investment returns.
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The table below sets out the allocation of the net proceeds before the  NREFINZE A& AT TS RIEFEDE
Announcements, the change in use and the revised position after FREEERBREFTEMNEMN
change in use:

Revised
Planned use allocation of
of net Unutilised net unutilised net Unutilised
proceeds as Unutilised  proceeds as  proceeds as  proceeds as Expected
disclosed in as at at at of timetable of the
the 1 January 16 December 16 December 31 December proceeds to be
Prospectus 2022 2022 2022 2022 utilised

20224
BEEEMR 20224 12168  &F2022F
WEFERE 120225 128168 HEXBAFM 124318
BHEZeHE 1A1H HEREBE BREFEZ féi K Ef ERF{RE
Ri& HABE FARREFH L EH FRRE AR
HKD million HKD million HKD million HKD million HKD million
ERAT HRAT BBRAT BBRAET BERET

1. Expand our business scale and improve 496.0 476.8 426.6 83.7 83.7 By December 2024
market share through multiple channels 2024512 27l
BRBEMNEBRAERBASRERS
517 8

2. Diversify and expand our service 76.4 76.4 71 741 7.1 By December 2024
offerings 2024512 27l
STACRBERBMNRBEER

3. Invest in information technologies and 76.4 74.8 70.2 70.2 66.9 By December 2024
our internal management system(s) to 202412 8 27 Al
improve service quality and customer
experience

RARRRMMRMNARER RS
DB ERBEENEFER

4. Improve human resource management 38.3 36.3 12.7 12.7 12.7 By December 2024
and enhance corporate culture 202412 8 27 Al
TEANBREBIRACE

5. Working capital and other general 76.4 69.5 7.5 7.5 4.3 By December 2024
corporate purposes 202412 8 27 Al
EEAERHM—RAFEM

6. Provide loans to borrowers 0 0 0 342.9 0
[ERAER

7635 7328 524.1 524.1 174.7

20225 W o MERSKHAFTRAT 49



50

Directors’ Report
EEEREE

Having considered (i) the commercial benefits to the Group in
deploying the unutilised net proceeds as a loan (which is collateralised)
will allow the Group to improve the efficiency and the effectiveness of
the Group’s temporarily idle funds with better investment returns; (ii) the
fact that the value of the Charged Assets far exceeds the principal
value of the Loan; (i) taking into account the due diligence and risk
assessment conducted on the Borrower; and (iv) other factors
mentioned in the Announcements, the Board is of the view that such
proposed change in the use of net proceeds is fair and reasonable
and in the best interests of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole.

The Board also confirms that enhanced internal control measures will
be put into place to ensure that the Group’s cash flow position will be
closely monitored, and that there are no material changes in the nature
of the business of the Company as set out in the Prospectus.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping (Chairman)

Mr. Tang Junjie

Ms. Zhu Xiaoli (resigned on 14 April 2023)
Ms. Zheng Peng (appointed on 14 April 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Jia Shenghua (resigned on 14 April 2023)

Mr. Rui Meng

Mr. Yang Xi

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (appointed on 14 April 2023)

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save for the related party transactions as disclosed in note 36 to the
consolidated financial statements, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year
ended 31 December 2022 or at any time during the year.

TERMS OF OFFICE AND SERVICE CONTRACTS
OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date, which may be terminated by not less than three months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not
less than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the
other.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract with any member of the Group that is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Group
are decided by the Board with reference to the recommendation given
by the Remuneration Committee.

Details of the Directors’ emoluments and emoluments of the five
highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, no emoluments were paid by
the Group to any Director or any of the five highest paid individuals as
an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as compensation
for loss of office.
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None of the Directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no other payments have been
made or are payable by the Group to or on behalf of any of the
Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective associates
had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to restrict competition activities with the Company, the
controlling shareholders of the Company (the “Controlling
Shareholders”), namely Mr. Hu Yiping and Shengfu International
Limited, entered into the deed of non-competition in favour of the
Company on 22 June 2021 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
Pursuant to the Deed of Non-competition, the Controlling Shareholders
have undertaken, among others, not to compete with the business of
the Group, and details of the Deed of Non-competition are set out in
the sub-section headed “Deed of Non-competition” in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written confirmation
to the Board in respect of their compliance with the undertakings in the
Deed of Non- competition (the “Undertakings”) during the Reporting
Period. Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling
Shareholders, the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed
the same as part of the annual review process. In determining whether
the Controlling Shareholder had fully complied with the Undertakings in
the Reporting Period for the annual assessment, the independent non-
executive Directors noted that: (a) the Controlling Shareholders
declared that they had fully complied with the Undertakings in the
Reporting Period; (b) no new competing business was reported by the
Controlling Shareholders during the Reporting Period; and (c) there was
no particular situation rendering the full compliance of the Undertakings
being questionable. In view of the above, the independent non-
executive Directors confirmed that, as far as they are aware, the
Controlling Shareholders had complied with all the Undertakings in the
Reporting Period.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2022.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company had not
entered into any equity-linked agreements.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

The Group was not involved in any material legal proceedings during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

LOAN AND GUARANTEE

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had not made
any loans or provided any guarantee for loans, directly or indirectly, to
the senior management of the Company, the Directors, the controlling
shareholders or their respective associates.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of Directors
or chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company and any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be
(i) notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO), or (i) entered in the register kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (iii) notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

Directors’ Report
EEEREE

EEAM

MEA AR AR EHEESNE R ERIRE
MNEERITHAENERMNEZE2022%12 A 31
Bl FERISL SR B R

R HE fib £ 5 5

RELE2022F12 831 HIEFE - RRAAWER]
SR AR RE RN R 1 o

BXKE#EHRR
HZE2022F12 A1 ILFE » REEMES &
T EARERFR ©

ERRER

HE2022F12A31BILFE » AEBUEEE
KEEAARNSREERE B  HREE
HEESENBBEAEHERRIREERER -

EFERRETHEAEREAATRA
HENZBE IR G - R RIEE
REHERERAE

R2022F 12 A31H » ARAESZHZSITHA
BERARRAREEMBEEEZE(TERLBHFR
HE M EXVED) RIR% 1D - 1B RE AR (D sk (E 1 &
PR ()VRIEESF R EEIEXVEET RS
HEANGARNT RBRAOEZ AR (BIE
BI85 R H B IR0 8 B IS & {ESkA8 A
BRERSOAR) » i) RIBEE S RHEIENE
3521 7B L AR R BT & B B R A0 55 KoKk
2 Sk(i)iRE LT AR BB SR RS E TR TT A
ERRTEFRZMRESTR([BESA]) B
MEARRNE) RBRFTMERELABIT ¢

20225 W o MERSKHAFTRAT

53



54

Directors’ Report
EEEREE

(i)

(ii)

Interest in Shares of the Company

(i)

RA LB I 6B

Number of Shares

Approximate
percentage of

Name of Director Nature of interest interested™ interest
EEEE EaE HEESMEGEBY BAESZE S
Mr. Hu Yiping (“Mr. Hu”) Interest in controlled corporation® 529,202,279 (L) 54.51%

HR— 5 (THA%E 4 D) FHABE R
Interest of spouse®

ForBiEas @

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares.

(2) Shengfu International is owned as to 91.6% by Mr. Hu and 8.4% by Ms. Wei
Peifen (“Ms. Wei”), the spouse of Mr. Hu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu and
Ms. Wei are deemed to be interested in the Shares held by Shengfu
International.

Interest in associated corporation of the
Company

(i)

() FEILIRTZALRZERHOTE -

@  EEBEEAPTEEE.6%NEBEENE
BRME Lt ((REt ) HH8.4% - RIFE
FREEGES PBREMALLREARES
B D B AR -

RAAEHEEHEE R ER

Number of Approximate
Name of associated shares percentage of
Name of Director corporation Nature of interest interested interest
BEERN
EEZE HaEEE - E EmE RHEEEY MOEZESEL
Mr. Hu Shengfu International Beneficial owner 458 (L) 91.6%
A%k A& = B EnEA A
Note: B 5
1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the shares of the associated 1) FRILIRTZATREEEZBRMDHTAE
corporation.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, as at the date of this annual report, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company has any interests
and/or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required to be (i)
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or
short positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) entered in the register kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or (i) notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS FTERRNRERD RHEERD ZER
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND it

UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the Company, #BARQATEMESTHTSITHABRE  N&
as at the Latest Practicable Date, the following corporations/persons & B AI{THE WAL (KRB EEH &
(other than the Directors or chief executives of the Company) had SiTHAERINRARF D BITRMDEE R
interests of 5% or more in the issued Shares of the Company &% & B3 & 16 /] 55 336 {5 8 2 A 5% 16 FT 8 Y
according to the register of interests required to be kept by the Eifz5% KA F#EL :

Company under section 336 of the SFO:

Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of
Name of corporation/person Nature of interest interested™ interest®
HAEESN
EE ANt &E M BRBEEY #SOEZE S
Shengfu International Limited® Beneficial owner 529,202,279 (L) 54.51%
BEEHEERARA EmfEAA
Mr. Hu® Interested in controlled 529,202,279 (L) 54.51%
corporation
HHEE® R EEER
Ms. Wei@ Interest of spouse 529,202,279 (L) 54.51%
Bzt ® fo B
Kaibang International Limited Beneficial owner 129,629,630 (L) 13.35%
LI EBR AR D F EnlEAA
HuaAn Fund-Huamei Investment QDII* Other® 70,558,000 (L) 7.27%
(ELRES-FEHEIREQDI), HuaAn Fund-Nacity
Property Service QDII* (% E & -F & QDII),
HuaAn Fund-Ruiyang QDII* (3 % &4 -5 QDII)
and other asset management plans represented
by HuaAn Fund Management Co., Ltd.*
(EZEeBEARAR)D
ELRAS -EFKEQDI EXES -—BEBYWE  H®
QDIl » EFZE S —InZQDI R ELE S ER
BRAFRKMEMEEEIRGE®
HONG KONG MEI LUN INT’L CO., LIMITED Beneficial owner 53,418,803 (L) 5.50%
(“‘HK Mei Lun”)®
BEEEmEBRARAG([EEERDW BEHEAA
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Approximate

Number of Shares percentage of

Name of corporation/person Nature of interest interested™ interest®

HEERDN

ZE ANT&E M BBEE" BOEREDLE

Ms. Shen Yuehua (“Ms. Shen”)® Beneficial owner 53,418,803 (L) 5.50%

MAEZT([R&X)™ EmEAA

Mr. Jin Liang (“Mr. Jin”)® Beneficial owner 53,418,803 (L) 5.50%

SRAEE(&FKED E=HEEA

Notes: B o

(1) The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in our Shares. 1) FEHILIRTRZALTRZERMOETE -

) Shengfu International is owned as to 91.6% by Mr. Hu and 8.4% by Ms. Wei, the  (2) B E BB AR B 91.6% A K R #A St £ O BC 8
spouse of Mr. Hu. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hu and Ms. Wei are deemed to be B+ B8 4% - RIFFHLBHEIEN - SHEE
interested in the Shares held by Shengfu International. EBRZ TR ANRRERREA RN E PG #EE -

@) HK Mei Lun is owned as to approximately 93.9% by Ms. Shen and 6.1% by Mr. Jin,  (3) EBEMBILZ LS 4993.9% M MLz T ELE
the spouse of Ms. Shen. By virtue of the SFO, Ms. Shen and Mr. Jin are deemed SEERE61%RIE - RIFFHFRBEES - bzt
to be interested in the Shares held by HK Mei Lun. e ERGEAREEETRBANRM R HEA R -

(4) HuaAn Fund-Huamei Investment QDII* (3% E & -ZE#IT & QDI), HuaAn Fund-Nacity — (4) ELHEe—FEHLEAQDI EXEe —EHAWEQDI
Property Service QDII* (% E & -F##¥QDI) and HuaAn Fund-Ruiyang QDII* (& MELZES -IHBQDIE—EEERNENREE
ZH £ -I%#QDIl) single asset management plans held 31,045,000, 6,523,000 and 31,045,000 * 6,523,000 }232,990,000f% 74 A &) %
32,990,000 shares of the Company, respectively. Their respective trustors are heoBERZBZETARNIERIREBRAR - FE
Zhejiang Huamei Investment Co., Ltd.* (T TEH KL EFR A F]), Nacity Property HMERBEE M BRA T RIINGE L EEES R
Service Group Co., Ltd.* (#8472 AR 7% 5= [# & 1) B BR 2 7)) and Hangzhou Ruiyang BRAA -

Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.* (/13515 £ fE # E IR H R A 7).
(5) Shareholding percentages in this table may not add up to 100% due to rounding. (5) ARERAAFE  ARAFBRER S LLABNRKE

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at the date of this annual report, no person (other than the
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had registered an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 21 June 2021, the Company adopted the share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”), which falls within the ambit of, and is
subject to, the requirements under Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules. The
purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognize and acknowledge
the contributions that the eligible participants had or may have made to
the Group. The Directors consider that the Share Option Scheme, with
its broad basis of participation, will enable the Group to reward
employees, Directors and other selected participants for their
contributions to the Group. It is expected that the Share Option
Scheme will () motivate the eligible participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and (ii) attract and
retain or otherwise maintain an on-going business relationship with the
eligible participants whose contributions will be beneficial to the long-
term growth of the Group.

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the Shares in issue on the day on which trading of the Shares
commences on the Stock Exchange, being 100,000,000 Shares, but
excluding any Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the
Over-allotment Option.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued
upon exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Company (including both
exercise and outstanding options) to each eligible participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the total number of Shares in
issue for the time being.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
from 15 July 2021 and the options granted have a 10-year exercise
period. The period during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion subject to
compliance with the requirements under any applicable laws,
regulations or rules, save that no option may be exercised more than
10 years after it has been granted.
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The subscription price per Share under the Share Option Scheme will
be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than the
highest of (i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant, which
must be a business day; (i) the average official closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii) the
nominal value of a Share on the date of grant.

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance of the
grant of an option.

No options were granted, exercised, cancelled or lapsed by the
Company under the Share Option Scheme nor were there outstanding
share options under the Share Option Scheme during the Reporting
Period and up to the date of this annual report.

A summary of the terms of the Share Option Scheme has been set out
in the section headed “D. Share Option Scheme” in Appendix IV of the
Prospectus.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed under the section
headed “Share Option Scheme” in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debt
securities including debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2022, revenue derived from its top
five customers accounted for 41.4% of the Group’s total revenue and
the revenue amount from the Group’s single largest customer, Dexin
China Group, accounted for 37.6% of the Group’s total revenue.

Other than Dexin China Group, or their joint ventures or associates, the
Group’s customers during the year ended 31 December 2022 were all
independent third parties.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors, their close associates
or any Shareholders who, to the knowledge of the Directors, own more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in
any of the Group’s five largest customers. During the year ended 31
December 2022, none of the Group’s major customers was also one
of the Group’s five largest suppliers.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the purchases from its top five
suppliers accounted for 23.8% of the Group’s total purchase cost and
the purchases amount from the Group’s single largest supplier,
accounted for 15.9% of the Group’s total purchases.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, none of the Group’s major
suppliers was also one of the Group’s five largest customers and all of
the Group’s major suppliers were independent third parties.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders who,
to the knowledge of the Directors, owned more than 5% of the
Company’s issued share capital, had any interest in any of the Group’s
five largest suppliers.
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EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As of 31 December 2022, the Group had a total of 2,815 employees
(31 December 2021: 2,908 employees). For the year ended
31 December 2022, the Group’s staff cost amounted to approximately
RMB305.0 million. the Group’s employee remuneration policy has been
determined by reference to factors including remuneration rates of the
local markets, overall remuneration rates of the industry, inflation,
corporate operational efficiency and staff performance, among others.
We offer competitive remuneration packages to employees. The Group
also contributes to social security insurance for its employees in
Mainland China, including medical insurance, work-related injury
insurance, retirement insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment
insurance and housing provident funds in accordance with pertinent
PRC laws and regulations. The Board reviews its remuneration policy,
including the level and structure of remuneration, from time to time.

The Group places a strong emphasis on the standards of talents, as it
formulates comprehensive internal staff training programmes on a
regular basis, organised by way of a combination of online and offline
formats to meet the needs of staff under different learning scenarios.
Online training is facilitated through a learning map set up to deliver job
position-specific courses covering all ranks from junior staff to senior
management, while tools such as mobile learning platforms and video
conferencing are employed to meet learning requirements subject to
different timing and space. Offline training is organised mainly by way
of training camps for key talents, in which different types of talents
compatible with the Company’s business development are swiftly
trained through a combination of learning and practice sessions based
on talent stocktaking and job competence models, as a dynamic
mechanism underpinned by “stocktaking — movement —
development” has been formed. To expand its team of back-up
talents, the Group has entered into cooperation in designated training
with Zhejiang Shuren University and other colleges to develop talents of
the new generation. Well-experienced staff have been appointed as
mentor to provide bespoke training and counseling during new staff
induction and training of back-up personnel. This arrangement has
safeguarded the ability of junior staff to perform their duties and
enhanced the management level of management officers at all grades,
thereby providing timely and effective support for the Group’s business
development. Moreover, the Group has established an occupational
safety and health system and implemented the GB/T45001-2020/I1SO
45001: 2018 occupational health and safety management system and
provides workplace safety training to employees on a regular basis to
enhance their awareness for work safety.
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The Group adopts a formal and transparent remuneration policy to
determine the remuneration packages of Directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries as the Group believes that the
successful implementation of its growth and business strategies rests
on a team of experienced, motivated and well-trained managers and
employees at all levels.

° The Remuneration Committee is mandated to formulate the
Group’s remuneration policy for the Board’s approval, and to
make recommendations to the Board on the Group’s annual
salary adjustment, the annual performance bonus and share
award.

o The objective of remunerating Directors is to ensure that there is
an appropriate level of remuneration to attract and retain
experienced people of high calibre to oversee the Group’s
business and development. Their remuneration is reviewed
annually with reference to companies of comparable business or
scale, and any changes are subject to Shareholders’ approval.

o Quality and committed staff are valuable assets contributing to the
Group’s success. In terms of talent training, the Group will further
enhance its employee training program with internal and external
resources. The employee training programs primarily cover key
areas in the Group’s business operations, which provide
continuous training to its existing employees at different levels to
specialise and strengthen their skill sets.

° In determining the remuneration and compensation packages of
the Directors and senior management, the Group will take into
account salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and performance
of the Group.

o In general, the Group determines employee salaries based on each
employee’s qualification, position and seniority. As required by
relevant regulations, the Group is subject to social insurance
contribution plans or other pension schemes prescribed by the
local governments and is required to pay on behalf of its
employees, a monthly social insurance funds covering pension
fund, medical insurance, work-related injury insurance, maternity
insurance and unemployment insurance, and the housing
provident fund, or to contribute regularly to mandatory provident
fund schemes on behalf of its employees.

The Company enters into labor contracts with all of its employees. The
Company offers its employees competitive remuneration packages that
include basic salaries, discretionary bonuses, performance-based
payments and year-end bonuses.
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To incentivise its employees and promote the long-term growth of the
Company, the Company has conditionally adopted a share option
scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”). Details of the Share Option
Scheme are set out in the sections headed “Director’s report — Share
Option Scheme”.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group did not
experience any significant labour disputes or any difficulty in recruiting
employees.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the pension obligations of the Company are set out in Note
15 of the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2022 are set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The related party transactions set out in Note 36 to the consolidated
financial statements include related party transactions disclosed under
accounting standards and related party transactions which also
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party transactions in
respect of the remuneration of Directors and chief executives of the
Company constitute continuing connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However, these transactions are
exempt from reporting, announcement and independent shareholders’
approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Directors believe the other related party transactions set out in Note 36
to the consolidated financial statements do not fall within the definition
of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected transactions”
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules (as the case may be). The
Company confirmed that it was in compliance with the disclosure
requirements in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31
December 2022 or a waiver from such provisions has been obtained
from the Stock Exchange.

The Group had entered into various transactions which constituted
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules for the year ended 31 December 2021 (where all such
continuing connected transactions required to be disclosed herein are
conducted in compliance with the Listing Rules) as follows:
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules requires there to be an open market in
the securities for which listing is sought and a sufficient public float of
an issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means that
at least 25% of the issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times
be held by the public. Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and to the knowledge of the Directors as at
the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained a sufficient public float as required under the
Listing Rules.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Other than disclosed in the sections headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions”, “Related Party Transactions” and “Management
Discussion and Analysis” and Note 36 to the consolidated financial
statements contained in this annual report, no contract of significance
was entered into between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and
the Controlling Shareholders or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2022 or subsisted at the end of the year and no
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or
any of its subsidiaries by a Controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries was entered into during the year ended 31 December
2022 or subsisted at the end of the year.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this annual report.

Non-exempt Continuing Connected Transactions
(subject to Reporting, Annual Review and
Announcement Requirements)

1. Property Sales Assistance Services

On 38 May 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our subsidiaries) entered into a master property sales assistance
services agreement (the “Master Property Sales Assistance
Services Agreement”) with Dexin China (for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which the Group agreed to,
through referral of potential buyers, provide sales assistance
services to Dexin Group in respect of the serviced apartments
developed or held by Dexin Group (the “Property Sales
Assistance Services”).
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The initial term of the Master Property Sales Assistance Services
Agreement commenced from the Listing Date to 31 December
2023, which may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree,
subject to compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Property Sales Assistance
Services under the Master Property Sales Assistance Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 is RMB1.1
million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Property Sales
Assistance Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2022 and each of the two years ending 31 December 2023 is
RMB17.2 million and RMB18.1 million, respectively. Therefore, the
amount received in respect of the Property Sales Assistance
Services under the Master Property Sales Assistance Services
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 has not
exceeded the annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2022
under the Master Property Sales Assistance Services Agreement.

Dexin China Commercial Consulting and Related
Services

On 3 May 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of our
subsidiaries) entered into a master commercial consulting services
agreement (the “Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting
and Related Services Agreement”) with Dexin China (for itself
and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which our Group
agreed to provide Dexin Group with commercial consulting
services, including but not limited to market research and
analysis, tenant sourcing and management and opening
preparation services for commercial complexes developed and
owned by Dexin Group (the “Dexin China Commercial
Consulting and Related Services”).

The initial term of the Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting
and Related Services Agreement commenced from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.
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The amount received in respect of the Dexin China Commercial
Consulting and Related Services under the Master Dexin China
Commercial Consulting and Related Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is RMB3.6 million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin China Commercial
Consulting and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2022 and each of the two years ending 31
December 2023 is RMB6.8 million and RMB6.8 million,
respectively. Therefore, the amount received in respect of the
Dexin China Commercial Consulting and Related Services under
the Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting and Related
Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 has
not exceeded the annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2022 under the Master Dexin China Commercial Consulting and
Related Services Agreement.

Continuing Connected Transactions subject to the
Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular
and Independent Shareholders’ Approval
Requirements

1(a). Dexin China Property Management and Related
Services

On 3 May 2021, Shengquan Property (for itself and on behalf of
its subsidiaries) entered into a master property management and
related services agreement (the “Master Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services Agreement’) with Dexin
China (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to
which Shengquan Property agreed to provide Dexin Group with
property management and related services, including but not
limited to (i) preliminary planning and design consultancy services;
(i) management services for the sales offices and the display
units; (i) (@) house inspection; (b) pre-delivery cleaning services;
(c) pre-delivery preparation; and (d) repair and maintenance
services for house and auxiliary facilities after delivery; and (iv)
property management services (such as cleaning and security
services) for the properties developed and owned by Dexin
Group, including but not limited to the unsold residential property
units, car parking lots, office buildings and commercial properties
(the “Dexin China Property Management and Related
Services”).
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1(b).

The initial term of the Master Dexin China Property Management
and Related Services Agreement commenced from the Listing
Date to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the
parties may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other
applicable laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services under the Master Dexin China
Property Management and Related Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is RMB93.2 million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin China Property
Management and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2022 and each of the two years ending 31
December 2023 is RMB99.2 milion and RMB108.4 million,
respectively. Therefore, the amount received in respect of the
Dexin China Property Management and Related Services under
the Master Dexin China Property Management and Related
Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 has
not exceeded the annual cap for the year ended 31 December
2022 under the Master Dexin China Property Management and
Related Services Agreement.

Mr. Hu Property Management and Related Services

On 283 June 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our subsidiaries) entered into a master property management and
related services agreement (the “Master Mr. Hu Property
Management and Related Services Agreement”) with Mr. Hu
(for and on behalf of the associates of Mr. Hu (excluding Dexin
Group but including the associates of Dexin China) (“Mr. Hu’s
Companies”), pursuant to which the Group agreed to provide Mr.
Hu’s Companies with property management and related services,
including but not limited to () preliminary planning and design
consultancy services; (i) management services for the sales
offices and the display units; (iii) (a) house inspection; (b) pre-
delivery cleaning services; (c) pre-delivery preparation; and (d)
repair and maintenance services for house and auxiliary facilities
after delivery; and (iv) property management services (such as
cleaning and security services) for the properties developed and
owned by Mr. Hu’s Companies, including but not limited to the
unsold residential property units, car parking lots, office buildings
and commercial properties (the “Mr. Hu Property Management
and Related Services”).
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2(a).

The initial term of the Master Mr. Hu Property Management and
Related Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date to
31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties may
mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Mr. Hu Property
Management and Related Services under the Master Mr. Hu
Property Management and Related Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2022 is RMB38.3 million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Mr. Hu Property
Management and Related Services Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2022 and each of the two years ending 31
December 2023 is RMB43.1 milion and RMB47.2 million,
respectively. Therefore, the amount received in respect of the Mr.
Hu Property Management and Related Services under the Master
Mr. Hu Property Management and Related Services Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2022 has not exceeded the annual
cap for the year ended 31 December 2022 under the Master Mr.
Hu Property Management and Related Services Agreement.

Dexin China Smart Community Solution Services

On 38 May 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our other subsidiaries) entered into a master smart community
solutions services agreement (the “Master Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement”) with Dexin China
(for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to which our
Group agreed to provide Dexin Group with smart community
solutions with hardware and software that integrate, among other
things, visitor management, traffic control, carpark management,
security control, energy conservation and fire control capabilities
for properties developed by Dexin Group (the “Dexin China
Smart Community Solutions Services”).

The initial term of the Master Dexin China Smart Community
Solutions Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties
may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

2(a).
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2(b).

The amount received in respect of the Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services under the Master Dexin China
Smart Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is RMB7.0 million.

The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin China Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 and each of the two years ending 31 December
2023 is RMB19.7 million and RMB20.6 million, respectively.
Therefore, the amount received in respect of the Dexin China
Smart Community Solutions Services under the Master Dexin
China Smart Community Solutions Services Agreement for the
year ended 31 December 2022 has not exceeded the annual cap
for the year ended 31 December 2022 under the Master Dexin
China Smart Community Solutions Services Agreement.

Mr. Hu Smart Community Solution Services

On 283 June 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our other subsidiaries) entered into a master smart community
solutions services agreement (the “Master Mr. Hu Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement”) with Mr. Hu (for
and on behalf of the associates of Mr. Hu (excluding Dexin Group
but including the associates of Dexin China), pursuant to which
our Group agreed to provide Mr. Hu’'s Companies with smart
community solutions with hardware and software that integrate,
among other things, visitor management, traffic control, carpark
management, security control, energy conservation and fire
control capabilities for properties developed by Mr. Hu’s
Companies (the “Mr. Hu Smart Community Solutions
Services”).

The initial term of the Master Mr. Hu Smart Community Solutions
Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date to 31
December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties may
mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Mr. Hu Smart Community
Solutions Services under the Master Mr. Hu Smart Community
Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended 31 December
2022 is RMB9.3 million.
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The annual cap in respect of the Master Mr. Hu Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 and each of the two years ending 31 December
2023 is RMB26.7 milion and RMB28.0 million, respectively.
Therefore, the amount received in respect of the Mr. Hu Smart
Community Solutions Services under the Master Mr. Hu Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 has not exceeded the annual cap for the year
ended 31 December 2022 under the Master Mr. Hu Smart
Community Solutions Services Agreement.

Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational
Services

On 23 June 2021, the Company (for ourselves and on behalf of
our subsidiaries) entered into a master serviced apartment
operational agreement (the “Master Dexin Holdings Serviced
Apartment Operational Services Agreement’) with Dexin
Holdings (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries), pursuant to
which our Group agreed to provide Dexin Holdings and its
subsidiaries (“Dexin Holdings Group”) with serviced apartment
operational services, including but not limited to formulation of
marketing strategy, interior decoration designing services and
formulation of standardized management procedures for serviced
apartments developed by Dexin Holdings Group (the “Dexin
Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational Services”).

The initial term of the Master Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment
Operational Services Agreement commenced from the Listing Date
to 31 December 2023, which may be renewed as the parties
may mutually agree, subject to compliance with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable
laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Dexin Holdings Serviced
Apartment Operational Services under the Master Dexin Holdings
Serviced Apartment Operational Services Agreement for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is RMB9.8 million.
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The annual cap in respect of the Master Dexin Holdings Serviced
Apartment Operational Services Agreement for the year ended 31
December 2022 and each of the two years ending 31 December
2023 is RMB22.0 million and RMB23.1 million, respectively.
Therefore, the amount received in respect of the Dexin Holdings
Serviced Apartment Operational Services under the Master Dexin
Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational Services Agreement for
the year ended 31 December 2022 has not exceeded the annual
cap for the year ended 31 December 2022 under the Master
Dexin Holdings Serviced Apartment Operational Services
Agreement.

Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services

On 9 June 2022, the Company entered into the Parking Space
Leasing and Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement (the
“Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement’) with Dexin China, pursuant to which,
the Group will provide exclusive parking spaces sales and leasing
agency services in respect of the target parking spaces to Dexin
China Group (the “Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency
Services”).

The initial term of the Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement commenced from the date on
which it is considered and approved at the extraordinary general
meeting dated 11 October 2022 to 31 December 2024, which
may be renewed as the parties may mutually agree, subject to
compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.

The amount received in respect of the Parking Space Leasing and
Sales Agency Services under the Parking Space Leasing and
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement for the year ended
31 December 2022 income was RMB8 million with deposits paid
RMB250 million. In addition, the Company paid deposits of
RMB250 million to Dexin China for the parking spaces sales and
leasing agency during the year.
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The deposits charged for the parking spaces sales and leasing
agency of the Company regarding the annual cap in respect of
the Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022
and each of the two years ending 31 December 2024 is
RMB250 million, RMB300 million and RMB300 million,
respectively. Therefore, the deposit amount paid in respect of the
Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services under the
Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services Framework
Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2022 has not
exceeded the annual cap for the year ended 31 December 2022
under the Parking Space Leasing and Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement. For details of the transaction, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 9 June 2022 and
the circular of the Company dated 16 September 2022.

Confirmation from Independent Non-executive
Directors

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-
executive Directors have reviewed the CCT Agreements, and confirmed
the transactions under the CCT Agreements have been entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(8) according to the agreements governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a
whole.

The independent non-executive Directors further confirmed that the
annual caps in respect of the continuing connected transactions under
the CCT Agreements are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole, and that the transactions
were conducted in accordance with the pricing policies disclosed in the
Prospectus.
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Confirmations from the Company’s Independent
Auditor

In accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Group has
engaged its auditor (the “Auditor”) to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements
Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and
with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The Auditor
has issued its unqualified letter containing its findings and conclusions
in respect of the aforesaid continuing connected transactions
conducted by the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 and
confirmed that nothing has come to its attention in relation to the
above continuing connected transactions with regard to the matters set
out in Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been delivered by the Company to
the Stock Exchange.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There are no important events after the Reporting Period and up to the
date of this annual report which require disclosure.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of any
act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant to the
Articles of Association.

Such permitted indemnity provision has been in force for the year
ended 31 December 2022. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that
may be brought against the Directors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company recognizes the importance of good corporate
governance for enhancing the management of the Company as well as
preserving the interests of the shareholders as a whole. The Company
has adopted the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (“CG Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as
its own code to govern its corporate governance practices.

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company had complied with the
relevant code provisions contained in the CG Code during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company with an aim to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out in the Corporate Governance
Report on pages 75 to 90 of this annual report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed together with the management and
external auditor the accounting principles and policies adopted by the
Company and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

AUDITOR

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 26 April
2022, PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC”) has resigned as the auditor of
the Company with effect from 25 April 2022. The Group has appointed
Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited (“Zhonghui Anda”) as the new auditor of
the Company with effect from 26 April 2022, to hold office until the
conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company. The
financial statements have been audited by Zhonghui Anda.
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CHANGES IN THE BOARD AND THE
DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report,
save as disclosed in this report, the Directors confirm that no
information is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS

The Group did not have any future plans for material investments as of
the date of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance.
During the Reporting Period, the Group had complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in all material aspects and have obtained all
applicable material licenses, approvals and permits from relevant
regulatory authorities. During the year ended 31 December 2022, there
was no material breach of, or non-compliance, with applicable laws
and regulations by the Group.

On behalf of the Board
Hu Yiping
Chairman
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Corporate Governance Report

The Group is committed to maintaining and strengthening high
standards of corporate governance by focusing on principles of
integrity, accountability, transparency, independence, responsibility and
fairness, in order to safeguard and protect the interests of the
Shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability
system. The Company has adopted the principles and code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code as the basis of the Company’s
corporate governance practices, and the Corporate Governance Code
has been applicable to the Company with effect from the Listing Date.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has complied
with all applicable code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance
Code, except for the deviation from code provisions C.5.3 and D.1.2.
According to the code provision C.5.3, notice of at least 14 days
should be given of a regular board meeting to give all directors an
opportunity to attend. According to the code provision D.1.2,
management should provide all members of the board with monthly
updates giving a balanced and understandable assessment of the
issuer’s performance, position and prospects in sufficient detail to
enable the board as a whole and each director to discharge their
duties under Rule 3.08 and Chapter 13. The Board confirmed that
such deviation from the code provisions was unintentional and it will
continue to review and monitor the practices of the Company for the
purpose of complying with the Corporate Governance Code and
maintaining a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company, and disclose its compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code in the future announcements and financial reports.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board takes on the responsibility to oversee all major matters of
the Company and is charged with promoting the success of the
Company by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has
general powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are delegated by
the Board to the management of the Company, who will implement the
strategy and direction as determined by the Board.

The Board will review the structure and composition of the Board from
time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to maintain a
high standard of corporate governance practices of the Company. The
Board has a balance of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the business of the Company. The Company has also
adopted a board diversity policy which sets out the objective and
approach to achieve diversity of the Board.
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The Board currently comprises six Directors, including three executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board during the year ended 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hu Yiping
(Chairman of the Board, Executive Director and Chairman)

Mr. Tang Junjie (Executive Director and President)

Ms. Zhu Xiaoli (Executive Director and President Assistant)
(resigned on 14 April 2023)

Ms. Zheng Peng (Executive Director) (appointed on 14 April 2023)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Jia Shenghua (resigned on 14 April 2023)

Mr. Rui Meng

Mr. Yang Xi

Dr. Wong Wing Kuen Albert (appointed on 14 April 2023)

No Board member has other relationship with the other Board
members of the Company.

Code provision C.2.1 of the Code states that the roles of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The chairman, Mr. Hu Yiping, focuses on the
overall management of the investment strategies and business
development of the Group. The executive Director and president, Mr.
Tang Junjie is responsible for day-to-day business and management of
the Group. Such division of responsibilities helps to reinforce their
independence and to ensure a balance of power and authority.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company on 21 June 2021, respectively and each of the non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors has
entered into their respective letters of appointment.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 was
approximately RMB3.8 million.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED  ANNUAL REPORT 2022

REFed \2EFEN BR=-"2NTES
MR=ZBEUIFATES -

HE2022F12A3IB I FEREEAFHRA
B EEgNBKRIT :

PITES
#— TS

(EEEFERE BiTEEFEER)

BRGSE (BT EEFAE)

KENLZ L (B 7TELFATLE)
(R2023%F4 A14HBHE)

BS 2+ (B 77E F)(R2023F 4 A 14 B EERT)

BIAKEPTES

B LA (202354 A14 B EHE)
WHRTE

BERSE A

FokHEE £ (R2023F4 A14B EEE)

EEgRBEAQAEMESENE L ERLM
FAE -

SR STRIGEX B C.2 1 1EHIRR - EFEEITHRAR
BNABEARD Y AEHA—-ARBRE -
TRP-—FERERARARENEBRRERKE
BREGRE RTEFTRERERALLER
BEASEAEEBREE -BERDHHMAE
WS E - WHEORTE ) MR EUS P -

BHITESECHHIN2021F6 A21 B EAR 7
AR EL  BRIERITEE RB I IENTT
BEEOEBERIVERTK -

HE2022F 12 A1 HILFE - MEFEMNE
B4asE (BIE8e  Fe  BRINSFTEIMHR - MU
RO AEEROBTIAES BB EFREE
MR AR EMEMEN) HNAARKEISHS

JC °



Corporate Governance Report

PN A

1k E/D#&%

The remuneration of the Directors and senior management is
determined with reference to salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and performance
of the Group.

During the year ended 31 December 2022 the Company has three
independent non-executive Directors, which meets the requirement of
the Listing Rules that the number of independent non-executive
directors must represent at least one-third of the Board and should not
be less than three.

The Company has received a written confirmation of independence
from each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules, and considers them to be independent.

The Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. During the year ended
31 December 2022, the Company has engaged Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty,
a vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong)
Limited (a company secretarial service provider), as the company
secretary.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. So has
undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

On the first occasion of each Director’s appointment, the Company has
arranged a comprehensive induction to ensure that he/she has a
proper understanding of the Company’s operations and business and
is fully aware of the director’s responsibilities under the Listing Rules
and other relevant statutory requirements. The Company will arrange
suitable training for all Directors in order to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills as part of their continuous professional
development.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all Directors has attended
training session arranged by the Company which was provided by the
professional advisers relating to the topics of the duties and continuing
obligations of directors in listed companies, notifiable transactions and
update on the Listing Rules.
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Herebelow is a summary of training received by the Directors for the
year ended 31 December 2022:

TR AEERNEE2022F12 A31 B ILFEER
RIS -

Name of Directors EEHS Training

=4
Mr. Hu Yiping H—F st v
Mr. Tang Junjie EEAEEE Vv
Ms. Zhu Xiaoli KRR L v
Mr. Jia Shenghua BEEELAE v
Mr. Rui Meng PBg o A v
Mr. Yang Xi HER A v

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all the Directors attended
the aforementioned comprehensive induction training and read the
relevant materials to keep themselves abreast of regulatory
developments and changes.

Code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code requires that
board meetings should be held at least four times a year at
approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of the majority
of the Directors, either in person or through electronic means of
communications.

The Directors expects to convene at least four regular Board meetings

in each financial year at approximately quarterly intervals in accordance
with code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022, 5 Board meetings were held
by the Company. The table below sets out the details of Board
meetings attendance of each Director during the year ended 31
December 2022.

HE2022F 12 A31HILFE » KR RIZBH5
W TREFINEE2022F12 A31 B IFES
EERNFESTSERNFS -

Attended/Eligible to
attend Board meeting

HE EHEEEESEHRY

Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Hu Yiping H—FkE

Mr. Tang Junjie ElEG L E

Ms. Zhu Xiaoli KR £
Independent Non-executive Directors BIUFRITESE
Mr. Jia Shenghua BEEELE

Mr. Rui Meng MBS E

Mr. Yang Xi HER A

5/5
5/5
5/5

5/5
5/5
5/5

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Board
reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors and
senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of
the Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance
Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
available on the website of the Company and that of the Stock
Exchange.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expense.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and the
Corporate Governance Code. The Audit Committee consists of three
members, namely Mr. Jia Shenghua, Mr. Rui Meng and Mr. Yang Xi, all
of whom are independent non-executive Directors. Mr. Rui Meng has
been appointed as the chairman of the Audit Committee, and Mr. Rui
Meng has the appropriate professional qualifications or related financial
management expertise as required under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing
Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, but are not limited
to (i) assisting the Board by providing an independent opinion on the
effectiveness of financial reporting process, internal controls and risk
management system of the Group; (i) overseeing the audit procedures
and performing other duties and responsibilities designated by the
Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 5 meeting of the Audit
Committee was held and the attendance record of the Audit
Committee members is set out in the table below:

EREST

ARRARRE EHRANEI2VEREEXE R TR
R BEZEZESURAEEMBERE - T
ZEEBRE-2XE ABIIFNTESFEL
ERLE  NBEALENURGRELE - WHLLER
RERBRZBEER WHEERELTR
AIFE310Q) R EKMEE BX AR AR
HEEER -

BEREZEENETERELE(BTED) « ()H
MEES  BMAEENPISHRERF - REZE
FIREBREERSFNERIERMEBIER 5 (i)
EREAEFIETESSRRNEMBE R
5E-

HE2022F 12831 HILFE » EXRLZEE G
TSR ERNERLZEEKEMEFELEEAR
T :

Attended/Eligible to attend

HE TEHREEHRRE
Directors £
Mr. Jia Shenghua BAERE 5/5
Mr. Rui Meng MBSk E 5/5
Mr. Yang Xi BER S A 5/5

The Audit Committee reviewed the financial reporting system,
compliance procedures, internal control (including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions)
and risk management systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal
audit function and processes and the reappointment of the external
auditor. The Board had not deviated from any recommendation given
by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or
dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed the annual results of the Company
and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2022.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to paragraph B.3 of the Corporate Governance Code as set
out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules, the Group has established a
Nomination Committee with written terms of reference. The Nomination
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Hu Yiping, Mr. Jia
Shenghua and Mr. Rui Meng. Mr. Hu Yiping has been appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, (i) reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board; (i) assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; and (iii) making recommendations to the Board on
relevant matters relating to the appointment of the Directors.

For the period ended 31 December 2022, 1 meeting of the Nomination
Committee were held and the attendance record of the Nomination
Committee members is set out in the table below:

REESE

BRAETRADMEA4PIE(EEERTRADE
B3R - AEECKUIERERE S HIEE @B
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MEFSRLERRS

HEC022F 12 A31 HILHIME @ IRREEQY
TIRgRRREERZEEKNEMEFBLEIHR
&

Attended/Eligible to attend

Wi FEHEERRE
Directors BEE
Mr. Hu Yiping H— LA 1/1
Mr. Jia Shenghua EAELE 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng W Ef ST 1/1

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
has reviewed the nomination policy and the Board Diversity Policy;
assessed the independence of independent non-executive Directors;
and made recommendation to the Board in relation to the re-election of
retiring Directors at the annual general meeting.

The Nomination Committee has conducted an annual assessment of
the independence of each independent non-executive Director and
made recommendations to the Board on the appointment of Directors
and senior management of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022.

HZE2022F12A31BHIEFE @ REZEGER
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Pursuant to Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules and paragraph E.1 of the
Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing
Rules, the Group has established a Remuneration Committee with
written terms of reference. The Remuneration Committee consists of
three members, namely Mr. Jia Shenghua, Mr. Tang Junjie and Mr. Rui
Meng. Mr. Jia Shenghua has been appointed as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, but are not
limited to (i) making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of remuneration for directors and senior management and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent process for developing
such remuneration policy; (i) determining the specific terms of the
remuneration packages and equity plan for all directors and senior
management; and (i) reviewing and approving performance-based
remuneration with reference to the corporate goals and objectives
resolved by the Board from time to time.

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 1 meeting of the
Remuneration Committee was held and the attendance record of the
Remuneration Committee members is set out in the table below:

HFWNEST

BRCETAR R E3.25 6 R LR RS+
MAFECEEERTADFREAR  REBE X
VHMEzerREEmMBERSE FMEES
M=RKEBMEK  DRIRELEELLE  FEE
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ZE®XF -
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I B A Fr BN 7 R K ARt B R BB RAR 0 M2
ZEFETHBERANERBEBELRE MEHM K
i e

HE2022F12A31BHILFE » HFHEEo g8
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I

Attended/Eligible to attend

HiE FEHEEHRRE
Directors S
Mr. Jia Shenghua BAELE 1/1
Mr. Rui Meng NEETAE 1/1
Mr. Tang Junjie BEEALE 1/1

The Remuneration Committee discussed and reviewed the service
agreement, appointment letter and remuneration policy and terms of
Share Option Scheme for Directors and senior management of the
Company, and made recommendations to the Board on the service
agreement, appointment letter and remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules. The provisions under the Listing Rules in relation
to compliance with the Model Code by the Directors regarding
securities transactions have been applicable to the Company since the
Listing Date. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by
the Company, that they have complied with the Model Code for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

NOMINATION POLICY

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”) which sets out the selection criteria and procedures to
nominate board candidates.

The Nomination Policy aims to nominate suitable candidates to the
Board. Pursuant to the Nomination Policy, the Nomination Committee
shall identify suitable board candidates and make recommendation to
the Board, after assessing a number of factors of a candidate,
including, but not limited to, reputation for integrity, accomplishment
and experience, commitment in respect of available time and relevant
interests, independence of proposed independent non-executive
Directors and diversity in all aspects. The Board shall have the final
decision in relation to its nomination of any candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, and recommend revision to the Board for consideration
and approval.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the Shareholders, provided that the declaration and distribution of
dividends is not in excess of the amount recommended by the Board.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be
subject to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any dividend
payout, the Board shall also take into account, among other things, the
Group’s financial results, Shareholders’ interests; general business
conditions and strategies, financial condition, capital requirements,
taxation considerations, contractual, statutory and regulatory restriction
(if any), and any other conditions the Directors may deem relevant at
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such time. Any payment of the dividend by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands and the Articles of Association.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific
periods.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy which sets out
the approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company
recognises the benefits of having a diversified Board and sees
increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in
supporting the attainment of the Group’s strategic objectives and
sustainable development. The Group seeks to achieve diversity of the
Board through the consideration of a number of factors, including but
not limited to professional experience, skills, knowledge, education
background, gender, age and ethnicity. In addition, members of the
Board has a balanced mix of experience including overall management,
brand enhancement, business development, legal, financial, audit and
accounting experience. The ages of the Directors range from 41 to 58
years old and their educational backgrounds range from civil
engineering, corporate management, public administration, financial
management, agricultural economics and management, international
economics to journalism and communication studies.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy with the aim of
achieving an appropriate level of diversity among Board members
according to the circumstances of the Group from time to time. In
summary, the Board Diversity Policy sets out that when considering the
nomination and appointment of a Director, with the assistance of the
Nomination Committee, the Board would consider a range of diversity
of perspectives, including but not limited to the professional
experience, skills, knowledge, education background, gender, age and
ethnicity, in order to better serve the needs and development of the
Company. All Board appointments will be based on merits and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having due
regard to the benefits of diversity to the Board.

The Board currently has one female Director and as such has achieved
gender diversity in respect of the Board. We will strive to enhance
female representation and achieve an appropriate balance of gender
diversity with reference to the stakeholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. We will also
ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at mid to
senior level and we are committed to provide career development
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opportunities for female staff so that we will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to our Board in near
future.

The Company plans to offer all-rounded trainings to female employees
whom we consider to have the suitable experience, skills and
knowledge of our operation and business, including but not limited to,
business operation, management, accounting and finance, legal and
compliance and research and development. The Nomination Committee
will review the Board Diversity Policy from time to time to ensure its
continued effectiveness.

REMUNERATION PAYABLE TO MEMBERS OF
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the then applicable code provision B.1.5 of the Corporate
Governance Code, the annual remuneration of members of the senior
management (other than Directors) by band for the year ended 31
December 2022 is set out below:

S EHAALME TREBREHERS -
PR T A S IR B4 M 7 4 12 S B 1
BEERERBES -

ARAFEIRBEMRASEBRMALEREHM
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FE & 4R S B E R S 37 M

RIFZEHERMCEERTREBASESTANE
X HE2022F12A31BILFE  SRERE
RE (BEEBRIN 2FHRAREI T

Salary F=

Number of members of
senior management

BREEEREAN

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,00078 7T

3

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company appointed Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited as the external
auditor for the year ended 31 December 2022.

Details of the fees paid/payable in respect of the audit and non-audit
services provided by Zhonghui Anda CPA Limited for the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in the table below:

B £ B B

HZE2022F12 A1 BILFE - KRARIZEFIE
LES MBI AR A ) E TN EBZ ERAT -

TREFEINEE2022F 12 A31 B ILEE G ELR
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RGBT TET B RS

Services rendered

iR B9 AR 75
(RMB’000)
(NR®FT)

Annual audit of the financial statements HAEEPFRROFEET
of the Group 2,700
Non-audit service fee IEZBRTS & 179
Total BF 2,879
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during the
Reporting Period. A statement from the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out on pages 91 to
95 of this annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2022, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimates that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Risk Management and Internal Control System

During the reporting year, the Group has complied with Code D.2 of
the CG Code through the establishment of an appropriate and effective
risk management and internal control system. Management is
responsible for the design, implementation and monitoring of such
system and the Board continuously monitors the performance of
management in discharging its responsibilities and has engaged an
external independent internal control consultant to review the Group’s
risk management and internal control system for the year. The review
procedures performed by the independent internal control consultant
include reviewing the existing risk management and internal control
system, assessing the adequacy of material internal controls for the
Group, and reporting key risk information and internal control findings
to the Board and management, and the management has reported the
internal control findings and risk assessment results identified by the
independent internal control consultant to the Board and has
implemented an action plan and will provide the Board with regular
updates on the remediation progress.

Reviewing the Effectiveness of Risk Management
and Internal Control System

The Board takes the lead to evaluate the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group by reviewing the major operations of the
Group on a rotational basis every year with review period covering the
full financial year. During the reporting year, the Board has conducted
a review of the Group’s risk management and internal control system,
including but not limited to (i) changes in the nature and extent of
significant risks and the Company’s ability to respond to changes in its
business and external environment, (i) the scope and quality of
management’s continuing oversight of the risk and internal control
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system, (i) communication of oversight results with the Board and the
Audit Committee to assess the scope and frequency of the
effectiveness of the Company’s control and risk management, (iv)
significant control deficiencies or weaknesses identified, and (v) the
effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting process and
compliance with the Listing Rules, and (vi) review of the risk
management and internal control reviews conducted by the
independent internal control consultant during the year.

Based on the above review, the Board is of the opinion that the
Group’s risk management and internal control system are effective and
adequate and no material issues have been identified that may have an
impact on the financial controls, operational controls, compliance
controls and risk management functions of the Group. In addition, the
Board also considers that the resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training courses and budget of the Company’s accounting,
compliance, legal and financial reporting functions were adequate and
effective during the reporting year.

INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company takes seriously of its
obligations under the new Part XIVA of the SFO and the Listing Rules.
The Company has adopted a continuous disclosure compliance policy
which sets out guidelines and procedures to the Directors and officers
of the Group to ensure inside information of the Group is to be
disseminated to the public in equal and timely manner. Briefing session
is held regularly for officers to facilitate their understanding and
compliance with the policy.

SHAREHOLDERS

Convening of Extraordinary General Meetings by
Shareholders

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Pursuant to
the Articles of Association, general meetings shall also be convened on
the written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the Company of
any one or more members of the Company holding, at the date of
deposit of the requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene the general meeting in
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the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Putting forward proposals at general meetings

To safeguard Shareholder’s interests and rights, separate resolutions
are and will be proposed at general meetings on each substantial
issue, including the election of individual Directors.

The procedures for Shareholder to propose a person for election as a
Director is available on the Company’s website (https://www.
dexinfuwu.com).

Shareholders may lodge written notice to the joint company secretaries
of the Company at 40/F, Dah Sing Financial Centre, 248 Queen’s
Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, provided that the minimum length of
the period, during which such written notice is given, shall be at least
seven (7) days and that the lodgment of such notice shall commence
no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the notice of the general
meeting appointed for such election and end no later than seven (7)
days prior to the date of such general meeting. The written notice will
be verified with the joint company secretaries of the Company and
upon their confirmation that the request is proper and in order, they
will ask the Nomination Committee and the Board to consider to
include the resolution in the agenda for the general meeting proposing
such person to be elected as a Director.

There are no provisions in the Articles of Association for the
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general meetings.
Shareholders who wish to put forward proposals may request the
Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance
with the procedures set out in the above paragraph.
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PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by
contacting the Company or directly by raising the questions at an
annual general meeting or extraordinary general meeting. The contact
details of the Company are set out in the Company’s website
(www.dexinfuwu.com).

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the following:

Address:
7/F, Hangzhou Zhiyi Dexin Building, No. 588, Huanzhan East Road,
Jianggan District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, PRC

Principal place of business in Hong Kong:
40th Floor, Dah Sing Financial Centre, No. 248 Queen’s Road East,
Wanchai, Hong Kong

Telephone:
+400-905-7060 (Customer Service Centre — Hangzhou, PRC)
+86 0571-88173911

E-mail address:
ir@shengquanwuye.com

Shareholders may also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings
to the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong
Kong Investor Services Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. At the forthcoming annual general meeting,
Directors (or their delegates as appropriate) will be available to meet
Shareholders and answer their enquiries.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The memorandum and articles of association of the Company has been
amended and restated with effect 15 July 2021, and it is available on
the respective website of the Stock Exchange and the Company. Save
as disclosed above, during the year ended 31 December 2022, there
has not been any change in the Company’s constitutional documents.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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ZHONGHUI
TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Dexin
Services Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages 96 to 171,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at
31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at
31 December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirement of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAS”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matter is the matter that, in our professional judgment, was

of most significance

in our audit of the consolidated financial

statements of the current period. This matter was addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on this matter.

1.

Trade and other receivables

Refer to the Note 22 of the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the impairment and estimation for expected
credit loss allowance (“ECL”) for trade and other receivables. This
estimation is significant to our audit because the balance of trade
receivables and other receivables of RMB345,079,000 and
RMB368,802,000, respectively, as at 31 December 2022 and
impairment loss recognised for the year ended 31 December
2022 of RMB6,732,000 are material to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, the Group’s estimation involves
application of judgement and is based on assumptions and
estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the customers;

—  Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment and ECL
assessment;

—  Check the computation of ECL calculation;

— Assessing ageing of the debts;

—  Assessing creditworthiness of the customers;

—  Checking subsequent settlements from the customers; and

— Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s estimation for expected credit loss

allowance for trade and other receivables is supported by the
available evidence.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report

Loan receivables

Refer to the Note 22 of the consolidated financial statements

The Group tested the impairment and estimation for expected
credit loss allowance (“ECL”) for loan receivables. This estimation
is significant to our audit because the balance of loan receivables
of RMB316,702,000 as at 31 December 2022 is material to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, the Group’s
estimation involves application of judgement and is based on
assumptions and estimates.

Our audit procedures included, among others:

—  Assessing the Group’s procedures on granting loans limit and
repayment periods to borrowers;

— Assessing the Group’s relationship and transaction history
with the borrowers;

—  Assessing the value of the collateral;
—  Evaluating the Group’s impairment assessment;
—  Assessing creditworthiness of the borrowers; and

—  Assessing the disclosure of the Group’s exposure to credit
risk in the consolidated financial statements.

We consider that the Group’s estimation for expected credit loss
allowance for loan receivables is supported by the available
evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2022

Hith &+

EERAUEMERAREME BN BIEM
BER ERARFHRETEEGEEMBHRE
REBEHNZEBERE) WEFR -

BEEHGRAMBRRIFENER L ERERM
EH MESTEHEMENEREMTEAN

P 4k EA
*zuﬂmn i e

HESEREEYBRAME BFNAEER
BIEEMER  KMEEEMENEERESR
MBREARESEERERETEENENETE
BRNH  UFHFEEAERRML - HEE
ERBETH TFRREMER BT ERER
Bl - BESAREEHEFTE -5l BFHA
EH RS

ESHMGEMBRRARENERE

EFAAREREERHHARMMAGENES
1 76 30 2 B B8 2 B ) B A
HERAANGAHBRE  URHEERA
HELGAM B REMEBUENNBELE
B ETEERR R ERMERNE
A SRBEL -

EREUSEVBRERE EFARENM &
SEFELENRN  URBEESELEAH
MEIR(WER) - FRIFEFRE BEREBER
HIFIEEE - FERU I EE AN EFR AT ITHY
7% BRARAUFECERERNG L -



Independent Auditor’'s Report
B A RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA’s website
at:  https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/
Our-views/auditre.

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Li Chi Hoi

Audit Engagement Director

Practising Certificate Number PO7268
Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
meEmkHMEAEWEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5 ARETR ARET T
Revenue KA 8 958,597 870,422
Cost of sales $HE AR (687,223) (571,340)
Gross profit EM 271,374 299,082
Other income H A 10 34,711 14,494
Other gains/(losses) — net Hib ez (B1R) F8 11 6,523 (11,583)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHERAX (15,864) (14,111)
Administrative expenses TR X (136,041) (146,322)
(Impairment loss)/reversal of B 5 Kk H Ath fE W 5/ IE 2
impairment on trade and other CREEE) RERE
receivables (6,732) 682
Share of result of associates JE{GEE N R 4R (131) —
Share of result of a joint venture BlE—RHeEaEER 27 —
Operating profit R E 153,867 142,242
Interest income FEWA 10,783 3,782
Finance costs Bl & Bk AN (1,981) (598)
Finance income — net & U A FH B 12 8,802 3,184
Profit before taxation B %t 5 #1784 162,669 145,426
Income tax expenses FriSfi 2 13 (37,609) (35,376)
Profit and total comprehensive FRABREZEIEEEE
income for the year 14 125,060 110,050
Profit and total comprehensive LT & 75 FE 4 5 A F1E &
income for the year EmEl R :
attributable to:
Owners of the Company RAEHER A 122,023 98,222
Non-controlling interests FE 12 I e 2 3,037 11,828
125,060 110,050
Earnings per share =1k
— Basic and diluted (RMB) — HEAREE(ARE) 17 0.122 0.118
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e B SR 3R

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B = AR¥TIT AERET T
Non-current assets EREBEE
Property, plant and equipment and Y BEMEER
right-of-use assets EREEE 18 10,876 11,673
Intangible assets mEE 19 2,978 2,403
Deferred income tax assets FEIEFTSTE E 29 8,730 7,369
Investment in associates REEE N FIHIRE 20 2,809 2,450
Loan and other receivables B R % EoAth E I 5k IR 22 315,000 5,880
340,393 29,775
Current assets RENEE
Inventories FE 21 7,949 8,349
Trade and other receivables and E 5 K& Efth B U FRIA LA &
prepayments TE T 5RIR 22 756,692 449,579
Pledged bank deposit BEHEFRITFER 23 - 250,851
Cash and cash equivalents RehBE2EEYD 23 209,855 499,983
974,496 1,208,762
Current liabilities HRENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 K E b e 5B 24 329,246 249,562
Contract liabilities BHEE 26 107,353 107,753
Borrowing fEm 25 55,000 —
Lease liabilities HEBE 28 1,190 3,420
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT{S R B fE 39,878 17,022
532,667 377,757
Net current assets RBEEFE 441,829 831,005
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT #EERRIARG
LIABILITIES 782,222 860,780
Non-current liabilities EREER
Lease liabilities HEAE 28 1,026 569
1,026 569
NET ASSETS BEFE 781,196 860,211
Capital and reserves BEXREE
Share capital fi& 7 30 8,115 8,462
Reserves 1 32 756,429 827,195
Equity attributable to owners EATHEAANEIEER
of the Company 764,544 835,657
Non-controlling interests Bl g 16,652 24,554
TOTAL EQUITY R 781,196 860,211

The consolidated financial statements on pages 96 to 171 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24
March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by:

Hu Yiping
#H—F
Director

EF

FEEF 171 AMNERA MBS HEE R20234F
SRR EESES L ES RETEIHATE

FREREF

Tang Junjie

EEE

Director

EBEF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
e X

Attributable to owners of the Company

AATHENELE
Non-
Share Share Capital  Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserves reserves profits Total interests equity

kxRl 2 EFRE ARG REAR Wi FERER  ER0E
RMB'0OO ~ RVMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR

At 1 January 2021 R2021%F1 A1H - - (19,099) 18,932 76,037 75,870 12,558 88,428
Profit and total comprehensive income  ERFIE R 2 @ kB8

for the year — — — — 98,222 98,222 11,828 110,050
Capital injection by a non-controlling FHERERLE

interest - - — - - — 168 168
Issue of shares BT 2,221 659,344 — - — 661,565 — 661,565
Capitalisation issue BERET 6,241 (6,241) - — - - — -
Transfer to statutory reserves BT ETHE - - - 8,675 (8,675) - — -
At 31 December 2021 R2021%F12A31H 8,462 653,103 (19,099) 27,607 165,584 835,657 24,554 860,211
At 1 January 2022 R2022F1A18 8,462 653,103 (19,099) 27,607 165,584 835,657 24,554 860,211
Profit and total comprehensive income ~ FRFIER2E K LE

for the year = = = = 122,023 122,023 3,037 125,060
Capital injection by non-controlling JFERERTE

interest = = = = = = 890 890
Purchase of additional interest in a BE—HKEARMEN

subsidiary x4 = = (21,459) = = (21,459) (11,829) (33,288)
Repurchase and cancellation of shares  f& [ R aE k15 (347) (98,415) (21,146) - - (119,908) - (119,908)
Dividend paid BERE = = = = (51,769) (51,769) = (51,769)
Transfer to statutory reserves BB ETHE - - - 3,636 (3,636) - - -
At 31 December 2022 H2022F12 A31H 8,115 554,688 (61,704) 31,243 232,202 764,544 16,652 781,196
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
meElRERER

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Cash flows from operating activities CEFEBELEHRESRE
Profit before taxation Bk #52 Ai A1) 162,669 145,426
Adjustments for: AT SBEIELHFHEE
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment W - BB KA &
and right-of-use assets FHEEETE 7,793 10,688
Amortisation of intangible assets & 628 554
Impairment loss/(reversal of impairment) on B 5 N H fth fE WL ERIE
trade and other receivables ZRAEEE,CRE
#m) 6,732 (682)
Interest income B WA (10,783) (3,782)
Share of result of associates FEEEE ARl EE 131 —
Share of result of a joint venture ElE—fRaeEhEEE 27) —
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—HBEARZ
& (4,273) -
Loss on disposal of a joint venture HE—HEELEY
g 27 —
Finance costs & KA 1,981 598
Loss on disposal/written off of property, plant HEWE BB KRB
and equipment ZEE MEmE
NG 39 31
Operating cash flows before movements in BEESHE KL
working capital REeRE 164,917 152,833
Change in inventories GFEZH 102 (702)
Change in trade and other receivables and B 5 K H b j& Y R IE A
prepayments MBS FIE 2 E &) (456,026) (137,073)
Change in trade and other payables B MEMEMARIEZ
23 83,752 42,293
Change in contract liabilities BHEEEE (49) (4,092)
Cash (used in)/generated from operations &2 (RA) FRRSE (207,304) 53,259
Income tax paid BEAFSH (16,269) (50,131)
Net cash (used in)/generated from operating  #£%&% (FiH) FiER
activities 2FHE (223,573) 3,128
Cash flows from investing activities BREFIBNRERE
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at HEZEAARBEFTEAEE
fair value through profit or loss FEABENERE
E PTiS sIE 2,800 168,095
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through B ERAALBEFEAE
profit or loss FH T ABRNERE
=3 (2,800) (163,500)
Repayments from third parties EFE=ZFHEXK 165,756 -
Loans to third parties ME=HRENER (333,600) (137,656)
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEWME  WBEREE (6,759) (8,075)
Purchases of intangible assets BEBTEE (1,203) (942)
Interest received B FI B 10,783 2,727
Investment in an associate REEE QAR E (490) (980)
Investment in a joint venture R—HAEEEENEE (250) —
Proceeds from disposal of joint venture HEGEDEMSRIE 250 -
Decrease in restricted cash R #l)3R & W > 555,351 =
Increase in restricted cash PR 2R & 12 0 (304,500) (250,609)
Cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries TEMBARMIEERA 455 —
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing R&FEIFRE (FiH)ES
activities B8 85,793 (390,940)
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ConsolidoTed Statement of Cash Flows
n‘/T\ IE:@UH;E%%

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBFIT
Cash flows from financing activities S FEEMNRERE
Dividends paid AR A (51,769) -
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITERPTEFRIE 55,000 40,000
Repayments of bank and other borrowings & i%’fﬁﬂ&ﬁﬁﬁf%?ﬁ\ = (40,000)
Equity transaction with non-controlling interest BB IRV AR 2 MO AR BB X (33,288) =
Capital injection by non-controlling interest IR R E 890 168
Interest paid EARFE (1,873) (369)
Repayment of lease liabilities 1%?1%@%%% (1,400) (2,781)
Repurchase of shares ﬁ% o] f% {5 (119,908) —
Proceed from issue of shares BT D 2 FR15 508 — 661,565
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing RUEEEN (FTA) FiBHES
activities T (152,348) 658,583
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash HEREEEEY RDY),
equivalents ¥EhniEEE (290,128) 270,771
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning FOHReRASEEY
of the year 499,983 229,212
Cash and cash equivalents at the end FEREERELEEYD
of the year 209,855 499,983
Analysis of cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEUMZ T
Bank and cash balances R RIR e s 209,855 499,983
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e B R R MR

GENERAL INFORMATION

Dexin Services Group Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in the Cayman Islands on 22 October 2020 as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Act. The
address of the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, PO Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The Company’s shares were listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 15 July 2021.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Company and its
subsidiaries are collectively referred to as the “Group”. The
Company’s ultimate holding company is Shengfu International
Limited. The ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group is
Mr. Hu Yiping (38—, “Mr. Hu” or the “Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”). RMB is the functional currency of the Company and the
Company’s subsidiaries.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountant (the “HKICPA”), and the applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
that are measured at fair values at the end of each reporting
period, as explained in the accounting policies set out below.
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ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the new and
revised Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (the
“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (the “HKICPA”) that are relevant to its operations
and effective for its accounting year beginning on 1 January
2022. HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (the “HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards (the
“HKAS”); and Interpretations. The adoption of these new and
revised HKFRSs did not result in significant changes to the
Group’s accounting policies, presentation of the Group’s
consolidated financial statements and amounts reported for the
current year and prior years.

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective. The application of these new
HKFRSs will not have material impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain key assumptions and
estimates. It also requires the directors to exercise its judgements
in the process of applying the accounting policies. The areas
involving critical judgements and areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to these consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of
these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Merger accounting for business combination
under common control

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the combining entities as if they had been
combined from the date when they first came under the control
of the controlling party.

The consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income and consolidated statements of cash
flows include the results and cash flows of the combining entities
from the earliest date presented or since the date when the
combining entities first came under the common control, where
this is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The consolidated statements of financial position have been
prepared to present the assets and liabilities of the combining
entities as if the Group structure as at 31 December 2020 had
been in existence at the end of each reporting period. The net
assets of the combining entities are combined using the existing
book values from the controlling party’s perspective. No amount
is recognised in respect of goodwill or gain on bargain purchase
at the time of common control combination, to the extent of the
continuation of the controlling party’s interest.

There was no adjustment made to the net assets nor the net
profit or loss of any combining entities in order to achieve
consistency of the Group’s accounting policies.

Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
entity. The Group has power over an entity when the Group has
existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s returns.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential voting
rights as well as potential voting rights held by other parties, to
determine whether it has control. A potential voting right is
considered only if the holder has the practical ability to exercise
that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date
the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results in a
loss of control represents the difference between (i) the fair value
of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that subsidiary and (i) the Company’s
share of the net assets of that subsidiary plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
translation reserve.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in subsidiaries not
attributable, directly or indirectly, to the Company. Non-controlling
interests are presented in the consolidated statement of financial
position and consolidated statement of changes in equity within
equity. Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as
an allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income for
the year between the non-controlling shareholders and owners of
the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions (i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as
owners). The carrying amounts of the controlling and
non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect the changes in
their relative interests in the subsidiary. Any difference between
the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted
and the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to the owners of the
Company.

Business combination and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the acquisition of
a subsidiary in a business combination. The cost of acquisition is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets given,
equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and contingent
consideration. Acquisition-related costs are recognised as
expenses in the periods in which the costs are incurred and the
services are received. |dentifiable assets and liabilities of the
subsidiary in the acquisition are measured at their
acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the cost of acquisition over the Company’s share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities is recorded as goodwill. Any excess of the Company’s
share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss as a gain on bargain purchase which is attributed to the
Company.

In a business combination achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest in the subsidiary is remeasured at its
acquisition-date fair value and the resulting gain or loss is
recognised in consolidated profit or loss. The fair value is added
to the cost of acquisition to calculate the goodwill.

If the changes in the value of the previously held equity interest
in the subsidiary were recognised in other comprehensive income
(for example, equity investments at fair value through other
comprehensive income), the amount that was recognised in other
comprehensive income is recognised on the same basis as would
be required if the previously held equity interest were disposed
of.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Business combination and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be
impaired. Goodwill is measured at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. The method of measuring impairment losses
of goodwill is the same as that of other assets. Impairment
losses of goodwill are recognised in consolidated profit or loss
and are not subsequently reversed. Goodwill is allocated to
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the
synergies of the acquisition for the purpose of impairment
testing.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’ proportionate share
of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s identifiable assets and
liabilities at the acquisition date.

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of an entity but is not
control or joint control over those policies. The existence and
effect of potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible, including potential voting rights held by other entities,
are considered when assessing whether the Group has significant
influence. In assessing whether a potential voting right contributes
to significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial ability
to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the
associate in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable
assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The goodwill is
included in the carrying amount of the investment and is tested
for impairment together with the investment at the end of each
reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate. If the associate
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results in a
loss of significant influence represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value
of any investment retained in that associate and (i) the Group’s
share of the net assets of that associate plus any remaining
goodwill relating to that associate and any related accumulated
foreign currency translation reserve. If an investment in an
associate becomes an investment in a joint venture, the Group
continues to apply the equity method and does not remeasure
the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its
associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is an arrangement of which two or more
parties have joint control. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous
consent of the parties sharing control. Relevant activities are
activities that significantly affect the returns of the arrangement.
When assessing joint control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties, to determine whether it has joint control. A potential
voting right is considered only if the holder has the practical
ability to exercise that right.

A joint arrangement is either a joint operation or a joint venture.
A joint operation is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the assets,
and obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement. A
joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties that have
joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the arrangement.

In relation to its interest in a joint operation, the Group
recognises in its consolidated financial statements, its assets,
including its share of any assets held jointly; its liabilities,
including its share of any liabilities incurred jointly; its revenue
from the sale of its share of the output arising from the joint
operation; its share of the revenue from the sale of the output by
the joint operation; and its expenses, including its share of any
expenses incurred jointly, in accordance with the HKFRSs
applicable to the particular assets, liabilities, revenues and
expenses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Investment in a joint venture is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements by the equity method and is initially
recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and liabilities of the joint
venture in an acquisition are measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. The excess of the cost of acquisition over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the joint venture’s
identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as goodwill. The
goodwill is included in the carrying amount of the investment and
is tested for impairment together with the investment at the end
of each reporting period when there is objective evidence that the
investment is impaired. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost
of acquisition is recognised in consolidated profit or loss.

The Group’s share of a joint venture’s post-acquisition profits or
losses is recognised in consolidated profit or loss, and its share
of the post-acquisition movements in reserves is recognised in
the consolidated reserves. The cumulative post-acquisition
movements are adjusted against the carrying amount of the
investment. When the Group’s share of losses in a joint venture
equals or exceeds its interest in the joint venture, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise
further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture. If the joint venture
subsequently reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its
share of those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a joint venture that results in
a loss of joint control represents the difference between (i) the fair
value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair value of any
investment retained in that joint venture and (ii) the Group’s share
of the net assets of that joint venture plus any remaining goodwill
relating to that joint venture and any related accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve. If an investment in a joint venture
becomes an investment in an associate, the Group continues to
apply the equity method and does not remeasure the retained
interest.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Joint arrangements (Continued)

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and its joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interests in
the joint ventures. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
presentation currency and functional currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period. Gains
and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair values in
foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rates at
the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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mE B R M

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. EXEHBR®

(Continued)
Foreign currency translation (Continued) HIVEEIRE ()
(c) Translation on consolidation (c) ZARENKRE

The results and financial position of all the group entities
that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the
exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are recognised in the
translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities and of
borrowings are recognised in the translation reserve. When
a foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences are
recognised in consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain
or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated at
rates sufficient to write off their costs less their residual values
over the estimated useful lives or annual rate on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

10%-33.33%
10%-33.34%

Equipment and machinery
Vehicles and others

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset, and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets
Computer software

Intangible assets mainly include computer software. They are
initially recognised and measured at costs incurred to acquire and
bring them to use. Intangible assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives (generally 10 years based on
management’s expectation on the technological lives of the
computer software), using the straight-line method which reflects
the pattern in which the intangible asset’s future economic
benefits are expected to be consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Leases

The Group as lessee

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and corresponding
lease liabilities when the leased assets are available for use by
the Group. Right-of-use assets are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Depreciation of
right-of-use assets is calculated at rates to write off their cost
over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. The principal annual rate is as follows:

Land and buildings 20%-33.33%

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the amount
of the initial measurement of the lease liabilities, lease payments
prepaid, initial direct costs and the restoration costs. Lease
liabilities include the net present value of the lease payments
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate
can be determined, or otherwise the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate. Each lease payment is allocated between the
liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease term so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the lease liability.

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as expenses in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the lease terms. Short-term leases are
leases with an initial lease term of 12 months or less. Low-value
assets are assets of value below US$5,000.
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R R HRR MG

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as lessor
(@) Operating leases

Leases that do not substantially transfer to the lessees all
the risks and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted
for as operating leases. Rental income from operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

(b) Finance leases

Leases that substantially transfer to the lessees all the risks
and rewards of ownership of assets are accounted for as
finance leases. Amounts due from lessees under finance
leases are recognised as receivables at the amount of the
Group’s net investment in the leases. Finance lease income
is allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Group’s net
investment in the leases.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis. The
cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of all
production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make
the sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
statement of financial position when the Group becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets are derecognised when the contractual rights to
receive cash flows from the assets expire; the Group transfers
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the assets;
or the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the assets but has not retained
control on the assets. On derecognition of a financial asset, the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified
in the relevant contract is discharged, cancelled or expires. The
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial assets

Financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date
basis where the purchase or sale of an asset is under a contract
whose terms require delivery of the asset within the timeframe
established by the market concerned, and are initially recognised
at fair value, plus directly attributable transaction costs except in
the case of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (the
“Financial assets at FVTPL”). Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of investments at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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R R HRR MG

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Financial assets of the Group are classified under the following
categories:

(i) Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets (including trade and other receivables) are
classified under this category if they satisfy both of the
following conditions:

— the assets are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows; and

— the contractual terms of the assets give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

They are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method less loss allowance for
expected credit losses.

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified under this category if they do
not meet the conditions to be measured at amortised cost
and the conditions of debt instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income unless the Group designates
an equity investment that is not held for trading as at fair
value through other comprehensive income on initial
recognition.

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair
value with any gains or losses arising from changes in fair
values recognised in profit or loss. The fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss are net of any interest
income and dividend income. Interest income and dividend
income are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Loss allowances for expected credit losses

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses
on financial assets at amortised cost as defined in HKFRS 15.
Expected credit losses are the weighted average of credit losses
with the respective risks of a default occurring as the weights.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group measures the loss
allowance for a financial instrument at an amount equal to the
expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of that financial instrument (“lifetime
expected credit losses”) for trade receivables, or if the credit
risk on that financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition.

If, at the end of the reporting period, the credit risk on a financial
instrument (other than trade receivables) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to the
portion of lifetime expected credit losses that represents the
expected credit losses that result from default events on that
financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting period.

The amount of expected credit losses or reversal to adjust the
loss allowance at the end of the reporting period to the required
amount is recognised in profit or loss as an impairment gain or
loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent cash at bank and on hand, demand
deposits with banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and subject to an insignificant risk
of change in value. Bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management are also included as a component of cash and
cash equivalents.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according
to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument
under HKFRSs. An equity instrument is any contract that
evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after
deducting all of its liabilities. The accounting policies adopted for
specific financial liabilities and equity instruments are set out
below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred, and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting period.

Financial guarantee contract liabilities
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially recognised at fair
value and subsequently measured at the higher of:

— the loss allowance; and

— the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation
recognised in profit or loss over the terms of the guarantee
contracts.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2022

BEXEHER @

cHEERERTAR

CRAERESETADNREBEMIIZZEH
RHZABTRREBEBAWHREENHS
BMAEMERTAZERMOE - #ST
ARERRARELHREMBRABRZ
BETHASERZERNSH - TS
BMAEREDRTAMRRZ S BRI
3L e

e

EERVZAABENRMEEI SRR
FERR - ELARE R BRI BOR R M A AT

=
5z °

BRIFA B AL EEIGERHIERT
BRENEEAEREREHARMERD +
—EA - BRIBESHOBERRBARE -

MHBERSHER
MBREREVBBEVIZRAABEER -
HEATHNRSEHtE

- BEBE X

- FHERERRERANVBANBRERE
PR REt#H

BEoRHMEMARIE

B REMBENRBONZEAAEER
R H 1R B A E BRR 3R OA 1% 8 55 A AN 5T
B -FRFEMDRERNR  ERBER
T ARARATIER o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R M

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a
contract with a customer with reference to the customary
business practices and excludes amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. For a contract where the period between the
payment by the customer and the transfer of the promised
product or service exceeds one year, the consideration is
adjusted for the effect of a significant financing component.

The Group recognises revenue when it satisfies a performance
obligation by transferring control over a product or service to a
customer. Depending on the terms of a contract and the laws
that apply to that contract, a performance obligation can be
satisfied over time or at a point in time. A performance obligation
is satisfied over time if:

— the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance;

— the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset that
the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;
or

— the Group’s performance does not create an asset with an
alternative use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If a performance obligation is satisfied over time, revenue is
recognised by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains control
of the product or service.

Other revenue

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

R R HRR MG

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)
Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitiements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the at the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The
retirement benefit scheme cost charged in profit or loss
represents contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

(c) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Borrowing costs (Continued)

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount of borrowing
costs eligible for capitalisation is determined by applying a
capitalisation rate to the expenditures on that asset. The
capitalisation rate is the weighted average of the borrowing costs
applicable to the borrowings of the Group that are outstanding
during the period, other than borrowings made specifically for the
purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them with
the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.

Government grants relating to the purchase of assets are
recorded as deferred income and recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the useful lives of the related assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and deferred
tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit or loss
because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable
or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is
calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits
can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets
and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit
nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the deferred tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities reflects the
tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which
the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its
current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purpose of allocating resources
and assessing the performance of the Group’s various lines of
business.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the nature
of products and services, the nature of productions processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of the
regulatory environment. Operating segments which are not

BEXEHER @

SERE

REDHRVBREMEBE DN
B DREERAARESEXEOEE
BREFHEEREMERAREEZTHTH
EEEBRHNMBER -

EREZMEED BTG A FETHMHE
W BN EFLED BB IEAEUA
HERMRBHME  FETFHMEE
BEPERIKEE - 2 HE m IR HE RS
ERANTTAAREERRNEEREL - A
1Rl o AR TEENKE D HWRFTE
A EXRBD &M - RIAHHER—ERSE D

individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority of 7B o
these criteria.
Related parties )]

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the Group.

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s family is related
to the Group if that person:

(i)  has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of the
Company or of a parent of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Related parties (Continued)

(b)

An entity is related to the Group (reporting entity) if any of
the following conditions applies:

(i

(il

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Company are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary and
fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or an associate or joint venture of a member of
a group of which the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group. If the Group is itself such a plan,
the sponsoring employers are also related to the
Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)()) has significant influence over
the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Company or to a parent of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Impairment of assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets except
inventories and receivables to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If
any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order to determine the extent of any impairment
loss. Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset.

If the recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment loss is
treated as a revaluation decrease.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the
increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined (net of amortisation or
depreciation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset or cash-generating unit in prior years. A reversal of an
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless
the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation
increase.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(Continued)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where the time
value of money is material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed in the
notes to the consolidated financial statements when material.

CRITICAL KEY ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year, are discussed below.
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5. CRITICAL KEY ESTIMATES (continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Impairment for trade and other receivables and
prepayments

The Group makes impairment loss for bad and doubtful
debts based on assessments of the recoverability of the
trade and other receivables and prepayments, including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of
each debtor. Impairments arise where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. The identification of bad and doubtful debts
requires the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
actual result is different from the original estimate, such
difference will impact the carrying value of the trade and
other receivables and doubtful debt expenses in the year in
which such estimate has been changed.

Income taxes and deferred tax

Significant estimates are required in determining the
provision for income taxes. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the
period in which such determination is made.

Deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses carried forward
and deductible temporary differences are recognised and
measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the relevant assets and
liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at
the end of each reporting date. In determining the carrying
amounts of deferred tax assets, expected taxable profits are
estimated which involves a number of assumptions related
to the operating environment of the Group and require a
significant level of judgement on the part of the directors.
Any change in such assumptions and judgement would
affect the carrying amounts of deferred tax assets to be
recognised and hence the net profit in future years.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and interest rate
risk. The Group’s overall risk management programme focuses on
the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group only has certain exposure to foreign currency
risk as most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in the functional
currencies of the Group entities RMB. The Group currently
does not have a foreign currency hedging policy in respect
of foreign currency transactions, assets and liabilities. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

If the RMB had weakened/strengthened 5 per cent against
the Hong Kong dollar and United States dollars with all
other variables held constant, consolidated profit before tax
for the year would have been approximately RMB709,000
(2021: RMB13,904,000) higher/lower, arising mainly as a
result of the foreign exchange loss on cash and cash
equivalents denominated in Hong Kong dollar and United
States dollars.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligation resulting in a financial loss to
the Group. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to
cash at bank and trade, loan and other receivables.
Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures
to these credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

Apart from trade receivables due from related parties, the
Group has large number of customers and there was no
concentration of credit risk.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s cash at bank is mainly held by well-known
financial institutions. Management does not foresee any
significant credit risks arising from these deposits and does
not expect that these financial institutions will default and
cause losses to the Group.

The Group assessed that the expected loss rate for trade
receivables from related parties were low considering the
good finance position and credit history of the related
parties.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
expected credit losses (“ECL”) prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for trade receivables due from third parties. To
measure the ECL, trade receivables due from third parties
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. The ECL also
incorporate forward-looking information.

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade
receivables due from related parties is considered to be low,
since they have a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term. The Group has
assessed that the ECL rate for the amounts due from
related parties are immaterial under 12 months ECL method
and considered them to have low credit risk, and thus the
loss allowance is immaterial.

For loan and other receivables other than those from
related parties, management makes periodic collective
assessments as well as individual assessment on the
recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experience.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group considers the probability of default whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing
basis throughout each reporting period. To assess whether
there is a significant increase in credit risk the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the asset as at
the reporting date with the risk of default as at the date of
initial recognition. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

— actual or expected significant adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant change to the
borrower’s ability to meet its obligations;

— actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of the borrower;

— significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrowers, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers and changes in the
operating results of the borrowers.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. LEEMER
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERRE @
A summary of the assumptions underpinning the Group’s AEBEHEESEEAZRHR
expected credit loss model is as follows: RABEAT

Basis for recognition of expected

Category Group definition of category credit loss provision

5l AREHHZEOESR EZEHEEGRERNEE

Performing Customers have a low risk of default and a 12 months expected losses. Where
strong capacity to meet contractual cash the expected lifetime of an asset is
flows less than 12 months, expected

losses are measured at its
expected lifetime

ac EFENRRREAARENELEANERNER KRE12EANBHER - HNEHEF
TRE BHE1REAZANEE  RHE

BENERGTEDRFE

Underperforming Receivables for which there is a significant Lifetime expected losses
increase in credit risk; as significant increase
in credit risk is presumed if interest and/or
principal repayments are 180 days past due

2hzd EERBBEZEMOERZE : M8k % FEAHEEHER
Re BB 180K - B EEER R K
EE N

Non-performing Interest and/or principal repayments are 365  Lifetime expected losses
days past due

TR B RGBS A365 K FE R TE B g 18
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expected credit losses on a timely basis. In
calculating the expected credit loss rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic
data. As there was no significant change of the customer
base, historical credit loss rate of customers and
forward-looking information for the vyears ended
31 December 2021 and 2022.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2022, the loss allowance
provision for the trade and other receivables due from third
parties was determined as follows. The expected credit
losses below also incorporated forward looking information.

n‘/-ﬁ

6. £REEER»
(b) SEREPE s

AEEBBMBEEEWATEREE
BEREELBERFEEERR © 5
ERHAEEBERER  ~AEEZE
FRERRENESBER Y
ATRE M R B B ESRETAZE - B
R E = 20214 K& 2022412 A31H
EEENERFE BAEAXFPEEE
BEEKAEEERT EERNEE) -

#2021@&2022@12)%31 =R
WE =78 5 K& H b fE Y 5118 &Y &5
ia%%%mﬁﬂ o NXIEHEEE
BB EREEER -

2022 2021
20224F 20214
Gross Gross
Expected carrying Loss Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance loss rate amount allowance
Ta g 1R X IR E 4% EaEE EREtilagiES BRIE 485 EEEE
At 31 December 2022 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Trade receivables B SRl RIE
Related parties RAHsE T 2% 111,510 2,299 0.5% 29,945 149
Third party aging FE=HERE
Within 1 year 1 AR 3% 181,089 5,588 5% 124,674 6,234
1 to 2 years 1224 9% 52,855 4,622 10% 29,904 2,990
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 30% 12,135 3,628 30% 4,862 1,459
3 to 4 years 3FE4AF 50% 6,900 3,273 50% 5,569 2,785
Over 4 years 45 A E 100% 5,798 5,798 100% 4,025 4,025
Total st 370,287 25,208 198,979 17,642
Other receivables H ity FEUWFRIE
Related parties E2)pa) 0.5% 267,529 1,345 0.5% 53,994 270
Third party aging F=7RER
Within 1 year 1E A 1% 97,377 942 1% 178,684 2,508
1 to 2 years i|ZspaE 8% 4,214 337 8% 7,198 582
2 to 3 years 2E3F 17% 1,225 208 17% 323 54
3 to 4 years 3E4F 14% 159 22 14% 916 129
Over 4 years 4FEP E 42% 4,920 2,066 42% 5,316 2,211
Total @t 375,424 4,920 246,431 5,754
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. SRIEMERE
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b) EEREPE s
The movement in the allowance for impairment of trade RER - B 5 K E AU FKIE 2R
receivables and other receivables during the year, including EBERE 28 (BERRIREEEE
both specific and collective loss components, is as follows: D) AT -
Impairment of trade and other receivables B SR H R FRIERE

Trade (011,1-1¢
receivables receivables Total

BIEKRIE HitEKRIE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T N ARBTIT

At 1 January 2021 K2021F1A18 16,604 7,474 24,078
Impairment loss recognised/ R, (EE) RHEEE

(reversed) 1,038 (1,720) (682)
At 31 December 2021 and ~ 72021F 12831 H &

1 January 2022 2022F1 A1 H 17,642 5,754 23,396
Impairment loss recognised/ B, (BE]) B E 12

(reversed) 7,566 (834) 6,732
At 31 December 2022 R2022912 A31H 25,208 4,920 30,128
As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the gross carrying R20224 K2021F12A31H &
amount of trade and other receivables (excluding S5 R E A E W ERIE (T BB TER
prepayments) was RMB745,711,000 and RMB445,410,000 B)MNEEHBEIIRARK
respectively, and thus the maximum exposure to loss was 745,711,000 & A R ¥
RMB715,583,000 and RMB422,014,000 respectively. 445,410,0007T + B It f A HY B3 48 K

05 5l A ARET715,683,0007T & A
R #422 014,0007T °

134 DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED » ANNUAL REPORT 2022



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R M

6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 6. SRIEEER &

(c) AENEEIE

AEEBRETEHER B A ME
HRBEETRURRELERT
RESHE MEHEEHRREHZ

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

AEETHRARERATRASR
EFEEZBBMBDFET

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of
the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and

(d)

1 year 2 years 5 years Total

1R 1E25 2F5%F #ast

31 December 2022 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
2022512F31H ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR
Trade and other payables B 5 K E A e 3R 329,246 - - 329,246
Lease liabilities HEaE 1,287 1,061 - 2,348
Borrowings BE 55,835 - - 55,835
386,368 1,061 = 387,429

Less than Between 1 and Between 2 and

1 year 2 years 5 years Total

1ERA 1224 2E5F st

31 December 2021 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
20214128318 ARBF T ARBF T ARBF T AREF T
Trade and other payables B 5 R E b FER B 249,562 - - 249,562
Lease liabilities HEAE 3,524 438 199 4,161
253,086 438 199 253,723

Interest rate risk

(d) == pa

RREMAEEEWIN AEEL
BHMWEANFEEERAE X
SENEERSREEARATEMS

Other than cash and cash equivalents, the Group has no
significant interest-bearing assets and liabilities, the Group’s

operating cash flows are substantially independent of
changes in market interest rates.

HREBHTE -
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. ERIEEER &)

136

(e) Categories of financial instruments

() &R TI AL

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ETFIT ARETF T
Financial assets: ERBEE

Financial assets at amortised cost R AGTEZ CRIEE

(including cash and cash equivalents) (BERENRESEEY) 1,240,438 1,172,848
Financial liabilities: TEREBE:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost HEEKATEZCRIAE 371,665 238,435

() Fair values H AREE

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost as reflected in the
consolidated statement of financial position approximate
their respective fair values.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value:

Level 1 inputs: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the Group can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2 inputs: inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs: unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or change
in circumstances that caused the transfer.

(@)

Reconciliation of assets measured at fair value based on level
3

mE B R M

7. AREHEE®

AEBZBRRB/NERER 2 SHHIBN
HEBZEE AERE = ERBRFHER—
EERcEBANREL -

(@)

REF=-MBRAABEFENEE
ZHE

Financial
assets
at FVTPL
BRAREENE
BHEZEE NS
HHEREE
RMB’000
ARBFIT
At 1 January 2021 202141 H1H 3,540
Addition NE 163,500
Disposal & (168,095)
Fair value gain recognised in profit or loss (#) REEER AR BEREH 1,055
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 2021 F12 4318 &
20221 A1H =
Addition NE 2,800
Disposal = (2,800)
At 31 December 2022 R2022% 12 A31H =
(#) Include gains or losses for assets held at 2022 HBRIER2022FFF 2 EE
B U 28 B 5 18 =
#) Include gains or losses for assets held at 2021 HBRER2021FHFZEE
B W Sk s 1R 1,055
Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and (o) AEBPEAMNGERER  (HEKD

valuation techniques and in fair value

measurements:

inputs used

The Group’s chief financial officer is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to the
Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

R f B B AR AR A B A B
HE

AEBEREUBERAEMEARE
KNEERRBEAABENE B85
FZERAR(EEFE - WHHEEER
BEREFEREXSFAABEE -
MEREREER =V EBFETM
IRIRAE IR Fr R AE R AT
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8. REVENUE

Revenue represents income from property management services,
value-added services to non-property owners and community
value-added services.

8. Wiz

Wetta R B MEEERS - IEXERER
BRAEEREREZHEA -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETIT

Revenue from contracts with customers: RKEZE&HBWA :
Property management services W) 25 1B AR TS 609,696 507,083
Value-added services to non-property owners 3E 3 = 12 (E R 1% 188,978 180,914
Community value-added services [ 1% {E AR 75 159,923 182,425
958,597 870,422

For the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, revenue from
entities controlled by the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and
joint ventures and associates of the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholder contributed to 27% and 29% of the Group’s
revenue, respectively. Other than entities controlled by the
Ultimate Controlling Shareholder and joint ventures and
associates of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholder, the Group had
a large number of customers and none of whom contributed
10% or more of the Group’s revenue for the years ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers:

The major operating entities of the Group are domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all the Group’s revenues were derived in the
PRC for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

HE2022F 2021 F 12 A31HIEFE -
IR B B AR AR R P I Y B BB DA SR AR AR 4
ARAR R A& 2 1b 35 KB A Rl U aR 5
AR EE W ZEHI27% K% 29% o BR AR IR
PRI HIA TR M R RIERIREN S &0
ERBERRIN  AEBBEBERERS -
HE2022F K2021F 12 A31HIEFE -
AR R = B R A S B U 2= &9 10% 3k A
J: °

REEFSHKmZHS

AEBNEBLEERUNPE - At -
AREBRE 220224 £ 2021F12 A31H
IEEFEERERATREFE -

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETF T

Timing of revenue recognition W N B 2R B9 B
Over time & By ] 850,046 764,910
At a point in time R 108,551 105,512
958,597 870,422
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mE B R M

REVENUE(%MM%)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services and value-added services to
non-property owners, the Group recognises revenue in the
amount that equals to the right to invoice which corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s
performance to date, on a monthly basis. The Group has elected
the practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these type of contracts. The majority
of the property management services contracts do not have a
fixed term.

For community value-added services, they are rendered in short
period of time, which is generally less than a year, and the Group
has elected the practical expedient for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for these type of contracts.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by the chief operating decision-maker (the
“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segment, has been
identified as the executive directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group is
principally engaged in the provision of property management
services, community value-added services, and value-added
services to non-property owners. Management reviews the
operating results of the business as one operating segment to
make decisions about resources to be allocated. Therefore, the
CODM of the Company regards that there is only one segment
which is used to make strategic decisions.

The principal operating entities of the Group are domiciled in the
PRC. Accordingly, all of the Group’s revenue were derived in the
PRC for the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, all of the non-current assets
of the Group were located in the PRC.

Wiz @)
KBITHRBLYOSR

IMEEERGMIEXETRERBME -
AEEIZ AEREERARAZ SR
A RERERUEASEECOHEFE
MEE ARBCEENTERENE
THEZSRULSHORBBELOET - K
Mo MEEERE A XA EEEHRR

A EIBEREME - R EHARE
#H HRAETE—F  AREDEET
TREE  NBBARBEZSHRIEH
BRI BRI TS ©

SEHEH
ERECREEIBREARRE ([XEE
BRRE]) ZHNREEELEDH - X
BREARECHBERARANTE
Z AR EEREFABEES MR
3 o

HE2022F M 2021FE12 831 B IEFE
AEETERFREVEESERY L=
BERGMIEEERERE - EEEHE
B EE A — AR E D IHETER -
LUREERDE - At - XARMNEEL
BRERERE  E—ED AR EL BB
R o

AEEMNFELLETRBAUATH - F
Il - B E 20224 2021912 A31H IE4
B AEEMFEREHEREFRE -

MR2022F 2021 F12 A31H » KEBEFR
BHEREBEELMNPATE -
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R R HRR MG

10. OTHER INCOME 10. Hbig A

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Government grants (note) BAT A BE (M9 RE) 20,026 12,530
Income from financial guarantee contract BT IEIR A AU A 14,297 —
Value-added tax deductibles EE R 388 1,964
34,711 14,494

Note: Government grants mainly consisted of financial support funds granted by the MisE : BUSHBIE B RIEM N BT R FOMBER -

local governments.
11. OTHER GAINS/(LOSSES) — NET 11. Hihlgss (§518) iF8E

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETIT
Recognition of financial guarantee contract MR IEIEFR S 4 (30,000) —
Derecognition of financial guarantee contract HUBHER B IEIERE 4 30,000 —
Exchange gains/(losses) & 5 Uzt (5 18) 3,622 (12,504)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & — B A 7 M s 4,273 —
Others (losses)/gains Hib (BER), W= (1,372) 921
6,523 (11,583)
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12. FINANCE INCOME — NET

mE B R M

12. BN FHE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETT ARETF T
Finance income B & WA
Interests income from loan receivables JE U B ZF) B IR A 5,011 =
Interests income from bank deposits SRITIE KA B U A 5,772 3,782
10,783 3,782
Finance costs Bl & A AN
Interest expenses for borrowings BRAEFAZ (1,873) (369)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEAEBEMNERAX (108) (229)
(1,981) (598)
8,802 3,184
13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES 13. FIREBAX
2022 2021
2022 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETIT AR¥ETF T
Current tax — PRC Enterprise Income Tax  BIHifEIE — BB EME
(“EIT”): i ([E¥FHR
Bl
— Provision for the year — FREE 39,125 35,303
Deferred tax (note 29): FEERIE (FI5E29) (1,516) 73
37,609 35,376

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability and accordingly, is
exempted from Cayman lIslands income tax. The Company’s
direct subsidiary in the BVI was incorporated under the
International Business Companies Act of the BVI and,
accordingly, is exempted from British Virgin Islands income tax.

Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5%. No provision for Hong
Kong profits tax was provided as the Group did not have
assessable profit in Hong Kong.

ARBRRFASHSEMAK LN —RER
REREEAR  AHERRARNFSE
EMGEH - ARRRRBEBARESNE
EMBARIIREEBEEBAESERR
ERADEEMMK - AR HNEE
HBARBEEMEN -

BENEHHEXR16.5% ARAEE L

BELTARBNERNNE KU ERE
BIE AT E R

20225 o BMIERSKEAFRAF
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A B R M

13. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
Mainland China has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on
the estimated assessable profits for the year, based on the
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

The general corporate income tax rate in PRC is 25%, with the
exception of any preferential treatments received, such as the
15% preferential tax rate that Hangzhou Xier Technology Co., Ltd.
(“Xier Technology”, a PRC subsidiary of the Group) can enjoy as
a result of its qualification as a High and New Technology
Enterprise (“HNTEs”) from December 2021 to November 2024.

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
Implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on
6 December 2007, dividends distributed from the profits
generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their
foreign investors shall be subject to this withholding income tax
of 10%, a lower 5% withholding income tax rate may be applied
when the immediate holding companies of the subsidiaries in
Mainland China are incorporated in Hong Kong and fulfil the
requirements to the tax treaty arrangements between Mainland
China and Hong Kong. The Group has not accrued any
withholding income tax for these undistributed earnings of its
subsidiaries in Mainland China as the Group does not have a
plan to distribute these earnings from its subsidiaries in Mainland
China.

The reconciliation between income tax expense and the product
of profit before tax at applicable tax rates is as follows:

13. Fife B

AEBE T B A E B L LIRS
BETDREREMEE  2BREMNY
FAREFERVNBIRERREFTE -

FEE—REEMSHRER25% - BE
BEEFBRIN  flamNERERERA
A ([BERH ~5ENTRENBAE])
ARESETEMEE ((SHRfitE )
B B2021F 12 AE2024F 11 A =
Z15% B EMEFRIE o

RIEF 2007 F 12 A 6 HEMAI B EFTER
EEHEEG > R2008FE1A1H % - A
Bl A Bl E AR T E R EEIMEEE D IRE
f&% B REIE 10% R R AN TR0 FTIS B + 19
BRI B A R BRI A RIE RS
MRS R FE B B A B R B TR L
R IR AL PR T - BE A 5% B IE
TEFTSHIME - ARAKB W E S D
KRB B A B AR MZEREF - i
AN £ B 3 AR 5 A B R B B A RIAY R IR
BT EEHERTENAMER o

FSHiR X BB A B R 5t B Z R B AT
R RN

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
Profit before taxation B 5t Al A 162,669 145,426
Tax calculated at applicable income tax rate %@ RS E25%51 5
of 25% COETRE 40,667 36,356
Preferential income tax rates applicable to AR AEBETE T A A
certain companies comprising the Group KB EFTEH X (262) (1,622)
Tax effect of income not taxable and AR A RS0 05
expenses not deductible for tax purposes AR & (2,095) 8,775
Utilisation of tax losses previously not E) S5 B M) AR FERR Y B IR
recognised B 18 (701) (3,133)
37,609 35,376
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mE B R M

14. PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME FOR THE YEAR

The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/(crediting)
the following:

14. FRFEREZEWEEEH

AEBFERFBIENG,GEA) A TE
RRIE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Auditor’s remuneration 2% S4B %7 B 2,700 3,000
Depreciation of property, plant and Wz - BB RFEER R
equipment and right-of-use assets EREEENE 7,793 10,688
Amortisation of intangible assets A 628 554
Listing expenses EmZ 7,419 13,123
Impairment/(reversal of impairment) loss on B 5 & i i U 2 18 5l &
trade and other receivables BER/CREEEREmD) 6,732 (682)
LEWE  BERZEZ
Loss on disposal/written off of property, plant  E48 MEWE  ME &
and equipment B 39 31
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: E LKA (BIEEERE) :
Wages, salaries and bonuses TITE  ¥e Mt 245,280 204,482
Social insurance expenses and housing tERRASTREEET
benefits (Note (i)) (H3E() 46,851 35,572
Other employee benefits E b g B &7 12,875 13,387
Total staff costs B TR AN/ 305,006 273,441
Note: Ft sk -
0] Employees of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are required to participate in a (i) REBEFENE A AR IESELEBE TR

defined contribution scheme administered and operated by the local FIE R I & il ) e RET B o 258 B B B

municipal governments. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute funds to the
scheme to fund the retirement benefits of the employees. The contributions
are calculated based on a certain percentage of the employees’ salaries as
agreed by the local municipal governments. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries
and its employees are required to make monthly contributions. The only
obligation of the Group with respect to the defined contribution scheme is to
make the required contribution to the scheme. There is no forfeited
contribution under the defined contribution scheme available to reduce the
existing level of contributions in future years.

The Group has no other material obligation for the payment of retirement
benefits associated with these schemes beyond the annual contributions
described above.

B2 E Mzt R - B IE B AR KR A B
& o WHREE T BT 15 E 1B 8 F & 0k
EANLAE - AKENTEMBARREE
SR AR o AN B R ARG BIRY
BAEEARMZ EEHPHRHR - REFREH
et & - IR U FRIA R D R R FEHIER
BHRFKFE -

B bR HEFN - REERERMEANREE
%Lt BB RRRIKEA -
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R R HRR MG

15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 15. EERRRTHRASNE
EMOLUMENTS

Housing

allowance and
contributions to Discretionary
For the year ended HF20224612R318 a retirement  bonuses and
31 December 2022 LEE Directors’ fees Salaries benefit scheme  other benefits

i1 1.3
BHEHHE BREAR
EEfe i #=® RtbEH @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREFR  ARBTR ARBTR AR  ARBTR

Executive Directors BTES
Mr. Hu Yiping H—¥EE = = = = =
Mr. Tang Junjie ERELE - 1,000 88 56 1,144
Ms. Zhu Xiaoll KEMZ LT - 500 88 56 644
Independent BUERTES

Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Jia Shenghua (note ) BAEZESHE 4 (Hi ) 171 - - - 171
Mr. Rui Meng (note i) BRI D)) 171 - - - 171
Mr. Yang Xi (note ) BER S (&) 171 - - - 171
Total @t 513 1,500 176 112 2,301
Housing
allowance and
contributions to Discretionary
For the year ended B Z2021F12A31H a retirement bonuses and
31 December 2021 LEFEE Directors’ fees Salaries  benefit scheme other benefits Total
EERER
BB B BB R
k) e R H g A @it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT  ARETI ARBTT ARBTT  ARBTR

Executive Directors BTEE
Mr. Hu Yiping =Tk - - - - -
Mr. Tang Junjie ERfETE - 550 77 136 763
Ms. Zhu Xiaoli REFRL - 300 "7 71 448
Independent BUFHRTES
Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Jia Shenghua (note i)~ B4 ZE &4 (i) 86 = = = 86
Mr. Rui Meng (note ) WER A (FiEeEi) 86 - - - 86
Mr. Yang Xi (note ) R A (fE) 86 - - - 86
Total 8t 258 850 154 207 1,469
Note: o 5E -
[0) Appointed as director of the Company on 21 June 2021. i) R2021F6 A1 HEZE AR ARES -
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mE B R M

15. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S 15. EEREHITHASMNE »
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
No loans, quasi-loans or other dealings were entered into by the FA - AREWETINES EHEES
Company in favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by THEZEREFAEEE A ANE
and connected entities with such directors during the year (2021: K EERFHMZS -
Nil).
No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation NER B AR ET S AR SO AT s R
to the Group’s business to which the Group was a party and in FEMEAEBEEKBBAAARRAEEN
which a director of the Company had a material interest, whether HAEESEEREEARRNEAR
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the years or at any 5 > ZHREH (20214 : £&) o

time during the year (2021: Nil).

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year FRREENAEA = HHA TR EIERM
included two (2021: two) directors whose emoluments are H(2021F WMB)EFT ZESEEME
reflected in the analysis presented above. The emoluments of the EREXZEINNDTAINR - =%
remaining three (2021: three) individuals are set out below: (20214 : =F) ALHBN ST IT
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT
Wages, salaries and bonuses IE& - #% M4 1,800 1,392
Social insurance expenses and
housing benefits fteRBRERREFMAEM 264 211
Other employee benefits H b 2 B 18 7 168 32
2,232 1,635
The emoluments of the three (2021: three) individuals with the B e =2 (20214F : =) A LBl
highest emoluments are within the following bands: SHEWOT :

Number of employees

EEAY

2022 2021

20224 20214

Nil to HK$1,000,000 £ %1,000,000% 7T 3 8
During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the FR - AEBWERNESKA AT M
directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to ATZAEAME - FERIMAREE KM
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of ARE B Er ZEISERBERAE - &
office. None of the directors has waived or agreed to waive any 5 A & A (B 5 T2 U EE ok (R 2= B A 1) B

emoluments during both years. & o
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R R HRR MG

16.

17.

18.

DIVIDEND

A final dividend of the year ended 31 December 2021 of
HK$0.059 (equivalent to RMBO0.048) per ordinary share totalling
approximately HK$59,994,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB51,769,000) was approved by the Company’s shareholders
annual general meeting on 6 July 2022.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year is
based on the profit for the year attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately RMB122,023,000 (2021:
RMB98,222,000) and on the weighted average number of shares
in issue during the year of approximately 1,001,234,899 (2021:
873,040,255).

In determining the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue for the year ended 31 December 2021, the ordinary shares
issued as on the date of incorporation of the Company and the
correspondence capitalisation issue (note 30) of 712,249,712
shares were deemed to be issued on 1 January 2020 as if the
Company has been incorporated by then. The ordinary shares of
37,749,288 were deemed to be issued on 20 November 2020
(the date of capital injected by a third party investor in
Shengquan Property).

No diluted loss per share is presented as the Company had no
potential ordinary shares outstanding for the vyears ended
31 December 2022 and 2021.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

16. 52

17.

18.

HE2021F12A31B L FE 2 KRR E
T E R R0.059 T (HHE N ARK
0.0487T) & $£ #759,994,00078 7t (FE R
# N R #51,769,0007T) B 1R 202247 A
6RERD AR RBEFE RS HE

BhxREF

FRERERBFTIAKNRQRES ARG
R F 4 A R #122,023,0007T (2021
F: AR¥08,222,0007T) K EFERNE 31T
f% 17 o0 # F 5 £ 491,001,234,899 %
(20214 : 873,040,2550%) 5154

RETFTHE2021F12A31BIEEEZE
BT BB INETHEE - BEAR R
RS B HAE B8 1T E AR R AR FE B AN b 3%
77 (Bt3E30) 2 712,249,712 IRAXAD # 4R A
M2020F1 A1 8 817 MK R R E R
AR EMASL ° 37,749,288 0% & i AR 448
BR2020%11 A20B (E=HEEE M
BREYETENBE) T

RN E 20224 2021512 A31 B IE4F
EARARWEAMEBETEINEELE
% - B0 A 25 B E S IS o

ME BERRZHURERE
BE

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment (a) M - BB k&M@ 8,438 8,582
Right-of-use assets (b) £ R#EAEE D) 2,438 3,091
10,876 11,673
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18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment

VAN
n A

B R R AR MY

18. W% - = R sk 6 LA R 3 A #E
BE®

(@) B% - WERRE

Equipment
and Vehicles
machinery and others Total
RERMEE HREIEM4 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT AREFTT ARETT
COST R
At 1 January 2021 R2021%1H1H 11,621 13,926 25,547
Additions NE 1,330 6,745 8,075
Disposal/write-off kP 6! (31) (38) (69)
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F 128318 &

1 January 2022 202241 H1H 12,920 20,633 33,553
Additions NE 643 6,116 6,759
Disposal/write-off HE, M (109) (28) (137)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE&E— MK EAR T (181) (153) (334)
At 31 December 2022 M2022412 A31H 13,273 26,568 39,841
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION Z:HifERRE{E

AND IMPAIRMENT
At 1 January 2021 R2021%F1 A1 H 8,240 8,622 16,862
Provided for the year FRRE 1,187 6,960 8,147
Eliminated on disposal/write-off S B 4 8 (31) @) (38)
At 31 December 2021 and MR2021F12H31H &

1 January 2022 202241 A1H 9,396 15,575 24,971
Provided for the year FNEE 1,108 5,626 6,734
Eliminated on disposal/write-off 65 s 8 (77) (21) (98)
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—RKEB AR (102) (102) (204)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%12 A31 H 10,325 21,078 31,403
CARRYING VALUES ARE{E
At 31 December 2022 202212 A31H 2,948 5,490 8,438
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12 A31 H 3,524 5,058 8,582
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A

R R S

18. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

(b) Right-of-use assets

BE
(b) ERESE

18. ¥ - &= Rk 6 LA R 3 A #E

2022 2021

20224F 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

At 31 December: ®12A318 : AREFT ARET T

Land and buildings T RAEF 2,438 3,091
Lease commitments of MEAEMEERE

short-term leases 1,395 2,148

The maturity analysis, based on undiscounted cash flows, of
the Group’s lease liabilities is as follows:

ERAURAESRENAEEHE
BEMNZHBERIFAOT

Less than 1 year —F YR 1,287 3,524
Between 1 and 2 years —EMF 1,061 438
Between 2 and 5 years WERF - 199
2,348 4,161
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
Year ended 31 December: HE12A31HILEE : ARSTRT ARETTT
Depreciation charge of CREEENEEHR
right-of-use assets
Land and buildings T i REF 1,059 2,541
Expenses related to short-term FEHIFEEMEAX
leases 5,090 6,074
Lease interests HER S 108 229
Total cash outflow for leases HERSRTEEE 1,400 3,010
Additions to right-of-use assets NEFTREEE 2,377 990

The Group leases various land and buildings. Lease

AEERES T L REF - HEHH

FRIBETHY  SEME=F - HEK
RIREBELERER - B2 8B TRGHRR
Rt - MEBRL EwNEARE - B
EEETSREEERR -

agreements are typically made for fixed periods of 2 to 3
years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis
and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants and
the leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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mE B R M

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

19. B EE

Computer
software
HERER
RMB’000
AERET T
COST 5%
At 1 January 2021 R202151 A1H 2,728
Addition NE 942
31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R2021F12A318 &
202241 A1H 3,670
Addition NE 1,203
31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 4,873
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Ret#isE
At 1 January 2021 R20214%F1 A1H 713
Provided for the year FARE 554
At 31 December 2021 R2021F 12831 H 1,267
Provided for the year FANEE 628
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 A31H 1,895
CARRYING VALUE BRT (B
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F 12 431 H 2,978
At 31 December 2021 R2021F 12531 H 2,403

20225 o BMIERSKEAFRAF
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R R HRR MG

20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

21.

20. REEATIH/E

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Share of net assets: B FEE 2,809 2,450
The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the TRINTA R EARZ ANEBEREFTA
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are (DRI N 2 vl A /N PGSR

accounted for using the equity method.

2022 2021

2022 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

Year ended 31 December: ﬁ§125 31 E-Itﬁjg . *E#*i }\Eﬁg:':ﬁ

Loss from continuing operations REFECEER BB (267) —

Profit after tax from discontinued REDRIEEEEG 2 g

operations A E = —

Other comprehensive income H b 2 Uz = —

Total comprehensive expense EHASBE (267) —
INVENTORIES 21. B8

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTT ARET T

Raw materials R4 #t 2,321 3,694

Others Hh 5,628 4,655

7,949 8,349
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 22. B 5 R H ith FEWFRIE LA & T8 1
PREPAYMENTS ™MIE
2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSFRT AR¥ET T
Current: BDHA :
Trade receivables 2 5 EWNFRIE
— Related parties — R 111,510 29,945
— Third parties — =5 258,777 169,034
Less: allowance for impairment of trade & : & 5 FE W EIERE B
receivables (25,208) (17,642)
345,079 181,337
Other receivables H fth FE W TR IE
— Deposits — &B& 268,424 79,975
— Payments on behalf of property owners — &% F 72 %
(Note (b)) (P 7 (b)) 59,200 27,476
— Others — Hith 46,098 1,324
Less: allowance for impairment of other  J& : £ {th & 2k TR (E B
receivables (4,920) (5,056)
368,802 103,719
Prepayments AR ENE]
— Prepayments for inventories — FEBRMHE 21,265 19,204
— Other prepayments — HtFEMKRIE 19,844 8,361
41,109 27,565
Loan receivables (Notes (c)) e E X (M 5E(c) 1,702 137,656
Less: allowance for impairment of loan A ERE FUR B R G
receivables = (698)
1,702 136,958
756,692 449,579
Non-current: FEEDES :
Loan receivables (Notes (d)) FE W= R (MY EE () 315,000 —
Prepayments TET IR
— Third parties (Notes (e)) — B=7 (M) = 5,880
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22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (continued)

(@)

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management services income to
property owners and value-added services to non-property owners. Property
management services income are received in accordance with the terms of
the relevant services agreements. Service income from property management
service is due for payment by the residents upon the issuance of demand
note.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the ageing analysis of the trade
receivables based on recognition date of trade receivables before impairment
were as follows:

22. & 5 K H fth FE W =R I8 LA & T 4+
FIE (@)

@ BIREFRARIBRAAEIRHENDEETE
RN RIEE T IRERTY - WEEERBIK
A TR I AE B8 AR 7% 150 % 0 G R IR © (£ 5 R
BHHAGBAER N EIRNDEE R R
BRASUEA ©

R2022%F K 2021612 A31H » ZRBEMNE
5 EWGRIERER B N B 5 e WGRIE R R DT
W

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBTR ARBTT

0 to 180 days 0E 180K 237,110 145,674
181 to 365 days 181 % 365K 35,711 7,127
1 to 2 years 1524 70,706 30,987
2 to 3 years 2FE34F 13,441 5,481
3 to 4 years 3FE4F 7,419 5,664
Over 4 years AFP 5,900 4,046
370,287 198,979

The balance represented mainly the payments on behalf of property owners in
respect of utility costs of properties.

As at 31 December 2021, loans to third parties with aggregate principle amount
at approximately RMB133,534,000 are unsecured, interest bearing at 7.2%
p.a. and repayable within one year.

As at 31 December 2022, loan to a third party with an aggregate principal
amount of approximately RMB315,000,000 are secured by certain car parks
space with value not less than RMB630,000,000, interest bearing at 8% per
annum and are repayable in December 2024.

On 21 December 2021, the Group entered into a framework agreement to
acquire the 39.2% equity interest in a third party company, Hangzhou
Kaichuan investment management Co., Ltd (“Hanzhou Kaichuan”), at a
consideration of RMB5,880,000. The Group has prepaid all of the
consideration in December 2021. On 7 April 2022, the transaction was
completed and Hangzhou Kaichuan become an associate of the Group.
During the year, the associate was disposed of.
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b) HHREIBAREINVENLAEEEM -

(©) MR2021F12A31H B FE=SASLRELH
AR #133,534,000 2 ERAEKT - BF
FRT7.2%+ B RABR —FRNEE -

(d) M2022F12A31H  ME=FIREAREE
#) A R #315,000,0007T B B 5% B /B (B K R
A R #630,000,0007TH) & T 12 B H B 1EER
R F R E8%st B K FEN2024F 12 A &
1% o

©) M2021F12A21H « AEEF I —HHEZR %
# o WRES =AM EERER
AR ([HMMELN ) 239.2% 054 - REAAR
#5,880,0007T ° N5 B E 72021 F 12 ATEf
FiERE - R202254878 X HE5EMK *
MM AAEENEE AR - FA - X5
BARBHE -
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23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSIT AND CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

As at 31 December 2022, the pledged bank deposit and cash
and cash equivalents of the Group denominated in Renminbi
(‘RMB”) amounted to 207,744,000 (2021: RMB471,841,000).
Conversion of RMB into foreign currencies is subject to the
PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations.

23. ERFRITERURRE R
E%EY

MR2022F12A31H  KEBEUARE
([ANRE D HEN B IRIPRITERIARIR
& MRS EEYW A ARK207,744,0007T
(20214 : AR #¥471,841,0007T) ° AR
B WA INEE B SR EE AR RN B S E
EIREBI)FTIR o

24. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 24. ES R HIEMNIRIE

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTT ARKETTT
Trade payables Z ST HIR (@)
— Related parties — AR 92 25
— Third parties — $£=F 120,859 86,977
120,951 87,002
Other payables H b B 5 3R
— Deposits — &% (©) 31,468 35,143
— Amounts temporarily — EEFm, A E WEE
received from/on behalf of k|
property owners 136,035 79,336
— Amounts due to related — FETEEEE 5 IR
parties (b) 457 740
— Amounts due to — IR ERIA
non-controlling interests (b) 5,665 1,172
— Payables for listing expenses — 5 & 7018 = 1,231
— Accrued payroll — EAtHE 14,866 24,428
— Other taxes payables — HibpEEHIIE 14,797 15,116
— Other accrued expenses — HitbfErtFA 5,007 5,394
208,295 162,560
329,246 249,562
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R R HRR MG

24.

25.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued) 24. 5 REMEMARIE

Notes: B 5 -

(@) The aging analysis of trade payables based on the invoice date were as follow: (@ B P REMRIEENEE AHANRR DT

2022 2021

20225 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETR AR¥EFIT

Within 1 year 1F AR 111,601 72,841
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FE%E2FER 6,129 13,075
After 2 year but within 3 years 2F1E{B3ER 2,775 1,022
Over 3 years HBIB3F 446 64
120,951 87,002

(b)  Amounts due to related parties and non-controlling interests were unsecured, (b) FESTRAES 5 RIEIE RS RIBREER - 28
interest free and repayable on demand. RIRERER -

(© The amounts mainly represented utility expenses collected from the property () ZEFBEEZRMEFIWIRAIKEESE  UEX
owners to be paid to related service providers and rental fee collected from HE B BARBIRER - A KmEGE A WEREE
leasees to be returned to the property owners. SEBA UEREXE -

BORROWINGS 25. {&®

2022 2021

20224 20214

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETT ARET T

Secured bank loans (Note i) BEBRITER (MI=ED 25,000 —
Unsecured bank loans (Note ii) AR IR 1T E B (B &Eii) 30,000 —
55,000 —

Notes: B & -

[0) The secured bank loans represent loans which are secured by the director 0] BEFRITEFIERESEAERERENE
personal guarantee, while loan amounts of RMB12,000,000 is carried a fixed ;- B &% AR 12,000,000 1% E € F 5
interest rate of 4.5% per annum and for loan amounts of RMB13,000,000 E45%ET S - MEXE T A R #13,000,000
are secured by corporate guarantee provided by subsidiaries of the TCEANA A KB A AR A A RIERERA -
Company, carried a fixed interest rate ranging from 4% to 6% per annum BEEEFNEN F4%E6%t 5 W EKRE
and repayable on demand/within one year. kR —FEREE -

(ii) The unsecured bank loans are arranged at fixed interest rate of 4.2% per (ii) A BT ERIREE FHEL2%5T 8 I
annum and repayable on demand/within one year. BIRER /N —FREE -
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26. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

mE B R M

26. SHAEE

As at As at As at
31 December 31 December 31 January
2022 2021 2021
2022 20214 20214
12A31H 12H31H 1H31H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
IRl ARETT ARMTR
Contract liabilities aEHEE
Property management I ER-BEN s
services 103,301 102,913 105,525
Value-added services to  FEZ E B {E RS
non-property owners 1,499 1,060 1,066
Community value-added — #t [& 12 {E AR 7%
services 2,553 3,780 5,254
107,353 107,753 111,845

Transaction prices allocated to performance obligations
unsatisfied at the end of year and expected to be recognised as
revenue in:

RERDEERZRBHEERIEHRIA
THEEBERRRANRHER

— 2022 — 20224 - 107,753
— 2023 — 20234 107,353 —
107,353 107,753
Revenue recognised in the year that R A TER AU A
was included in contract liabilities at GIAFIHNE LA E)
beginning of year 107,753 111,845
Unsatisfied performance obligations AETHEHEE

For property management services and value-added services to
non-property owners, the Group recognises revenue in the
amount that equals to the right to invoice which corresponds
directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s
performance to date, on a monthly basis. The Group has elected
the practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these type of contracts. The majority
of the property management services contracts do not have a
fixed term.

For community value-added services, they are rendered in short
period of time, which is generally less than a year, and the Group
has elected the practical expedient for not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for these type of contracts.

MR BRI REREME -
AEERZ AEREERERAZ SR
A RERERHRARELSHEFPE
MEE ARBCEENTEREND L
THEZERUENNRBBEOERET - K
MAMEBEERG A AL EEEHR -

A EIBEREME - R EHAE
o BETE—F  AEEDEERATHE
HA  THREZFEASONNRELD
BfE-
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27. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

On 29 December 2021, Shanghai Xuquan Trading Co., Ltd. (&
BHEEmEAMRAFR) (the “Shanghai Xuquan”), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the
guarantee agreement with Hangzhou Ruiyang Supply Chain
Management Co., Ltd. (M/MImGHEERER AR D A) (the
“Hangzhou Ruiyang”), a business partner and an independent
third party of the Company, pursuant to which, Shanghai Xuquan
shall provide a guarantee for the amount of RMB496 million
borrowed by Hangzhou Ruiyang from Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.
Hangzhou Branch (the “Ping An Bank”) and receive 8%
guarantee fee from Hangzhou Ruiyang.

On 29 December 2021 and 6 January 2022, Shanghai Xuquan
entered into the 3 pledge contracts with Ping An Bank to pledge
the certificate of deposit of a total value of RMB300 million and
RMB204.5 million, respectively. In December 2021 and January
2022, Shanghai Xuquan pledged the certificates of deposit to
Ping An Bank of a total value of RMB250.6 million and
RMB504.5 million, respectively, to provide guarantees for
Hangzhou Ruiyang, for the amount of RMB496 million by way of
pledge. Shanghai Xuguan will receive an aggregate of 10.1% of
the total amount of the pledge contracts as the income (including
the 2.1% interest income per year generated from the pledge
contracts and 8% guarantee fee per year from the guarantee
agreement). The financial guarantee contract was effective in
January 2022 which is the Hangzhou Ruiyang issuance of bills
and commencement of the borrowing.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, all guarantees in

favour of Ping An Bank provided by the Shanghai Xuquan are
released.
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27. BEIEREYN

MR2021F12 8298 » AR RMEEE2E
MEBAR LEMEmERRAR ([ LB
2| BERARANEFSERHRELE=
HinMmis At rEEE IR A R A T (B
B 1) AT LR - B - B8R AER
MINERE AL RITRHD BRAFMIND
T([FERRIT) EAMARE4906EET
RHER - W RHIN 5 U E8% B #E 1R
.

M20215E12 A29 8 k202251861 -
EEMEEFERRITEIZINERER
D BIERREEREARKEI0HETTRA
R¥204.5ABILHERE - 12021412
A K2022F1 A+ EBMWERFELZIRITS
FlERBEEAARKE2506BETRA
R¥50458 BT FERE - LAMMNEE
BiRHEEAARK406H & THE FE
# o BEHEBKMERARASENA
HI101%IEAWA (BIFEERERATEL
FEFE2.1% K F) B UL A LA B2 & 1R 175 P 22
ETFSRMIERE) - WBERE RN
2022F1 B (MM BBEITEE REERH
&A1) £ o

HE2022F12A31HILEE - EEME
LAFLRTT AZ e AR AT B £ RG &
R o
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28. LEASE LIABILITIES 28. HE&E
Present value of
Lease payments lease payments
HEMFR HEARMRE

2022 2021 2022 2021

20224 20214 20224 20214
RMB’000 EEEIVISXel RMB’000 [alYI=Xeleo)
ARE Tt ISRl \ RE Tt PN S

Within 1 year —F A 1,287 3,524 1,190 3,420
After 1 year but within 2 years 1FBE2FRN 1,061 438 1,026 375
After 2 year but within 5 years 2FBESFN - 199 - 194
2,348 4,161 2,216 3,989
Less: Future finance charges B RKENE B A (132) (172)
Present value of lease liabilities HEABEMIRE 2,216 3,989
Less: Amount due for settlement & : 121 B R EI HAE f~+
within 12 months (shown MNeEBE(RRBaRE
under current liabilities) EHT2£7%) (1,190) (3,420)
Amount due for settlement 121E A 1& B B3 E 5 A
after 12 months S HE 1,026 569
The effective interest rate of the Group’s lease liabilities as at R2022F 12 A31BEAKEHEGENE
31 December 2022 is 5.44% (2021: 5.44%). BXFI| R 55.44% (2021 4F : 5.44%) °
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20, IRIEHIH
AT AAEBRANTSREHEEE,

29. DEFERRED TAX

The following are the major deferred tax assets/(liabilities)

recognised by the Group. (BR) -
Allowance
on doubtful Tax
debts losses Others Total
RAIREE BiIERS1E Hith st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 1 January 2021 R20214F1 A1H 5,784 2,088 (430) 7,442
Credited/(charged) to profit B2t A (F1%)
or loss (34) (469) 430 (73)
At 31 December 2021 and 2021F12 A31H &
1 January 2022 202241 A1H 5,750 1,619 = 7,369
Credited/(charged) to profit &zt A (1K)
or loss 1,937 (421) = 1,516
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—HEE R A (155) - - (155)
At 31 December 2022 2022412 531 H 7,532 1,198 = 8,730

RI|EHR - AEBIFE R BHEEE
A R #10,295,0007T (20214 : A R #&

At the end of the reporting period the Group has unused tax
losses of RMB10,295,000 (2021: RMB15,003,000) available for

158

offset against future profits that will expire within ten years. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of
RMB2,305,000 (2021: RMB4,209,000) due to the unpredictability
of future profit streams.

The Group has not recognised deferred tax liabilities as at
31 December 2022 in respect of undistributed earnings of
RMB288,978,000 (2021: RMB177,113,000) as the Company
controls the dividend policy of the subsidiaries and it has been
determined that these profits will not be distributed in the
foreseeable future.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2022

15,003,000z ) + AT 85 AR S0 A1) (AR
+EREHE) o B KRG R RIRATA]
fHET 1 - BBt & B A R %2,305,0007TC
(20214F : AR#4,209,0007T) fERIE T
TRIBEE -

R2022F 12 A31H » AEBIEH KD
ik 2 A A R #288,978,0007T (2021 4 :
AR ®A177,113,00070) ERELEFIEE
& RERAD REHIH B A R A IR S
RAPETZEmMABETSRA RERD
K °



30. SHARE CAPITAL

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

mE B R M

30. &

Number of
ordinary
shares

LiEREA

Amount
equivalent to
RMB’000
AL
ARETRT

Nominal value
ordinary
shares

il m(E

Authorised:

Shares of the Company
with nominal value of

HK$0.01 each

AR

NN S ETEETON O Bz
JTHI AR

At 1 January 2021 R20214%1 A1 H 38,000,000 380,000 334
Additions (Note a) AE (fizka) 4,962,000,000 49,620,000 43,613
At 31 December 2021, R2021%F12A8318 -

1 January 2022 and 2022F1 A1 &

31 December 2022 2022412 A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000,000 43,947

Issued and fully paid: BETRAE

1 January 2021 R2021%F1 A1 H 1,053 11 —
Capitalisation issue on R2021F6 21 HE

21 June 2021 (Note b) L2 1T (Mi5EDb) 749,998,947 7,499,989 6,241
Company’s listing (Note ¢) AAaER LT (HsEe) 266,851,000 2,668,510 2,221
At 31 December 2021 R2021%12A31 H 1,016,851,000 10,168,510 8,462
Repurchases and cancellation B % K 5F 88 AR 10

of shares (Note d) (Fff7Ed) (37,990,000) (379,900) (347)
At 31 December 2022 2022412 H31H 978,861,000 9,788,610 8,115

Notes: B 5E -

(a) Pursuant to the written resolutions passed by the shareholders on 21 June (a) RIERRR20216F6 A21 BB B 2@ RS
2021, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from R A QA /YA E MR 2N 51380,0007 T 15 =
HK$380,000 to HK$50,000,000, divided into 5,000,000,000 shares with a par 50,000,000% 7T * % %5,000,000,000 8 & &
value of HK$0.01 each. HE{E0.01 B TTHIRR D °

(b) Pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholder passed on 21 June 2021, (b) BIERRR2021566 421 B BB 2 E RS

conditional on the share premium account of the Company being credited as
a result of the global offering, the Directors are authorized to capitalize an
amount of HK$7,499,989.47 (equivalent to RMB6,242,000) standing to the
credit of the share premium account of the Company by applying such sum
towards the paying up in full at par a total of 749,998,947 shares for
allotment and issue to holders of shares whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on the date of passing such resolutions in
proportion to their then existing respective shareholding in the Company.

R FARARKRMDREREZREE MRS
ERE  EERBEEEARRRRG ®ERNE
B £ 87,499,98047B T (HER AR
6,242,00070) BFREAR  FIEREBAZSBEIR
B R & $£749,998,947 % B {7 » #E 1 A7
BiBA BIREER B HE 5 AR R AR & A AR
DREA  BEEREFERSERARRNREGR
TELL B AR 3 R BT 2 ERAD ©

20225 o BMIERSKEAFRAF
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30. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(©

On 15 July 2021, the Company issued a total of 250,000,000 ordinary shares
at a price of HK$3.06 per share as a result of the completion of the global
offering (the “Global Offering”). 16,851,000 shares were issued upon the
exercise of the over-allotment option in connection with the Global Offering
on 11 August 2021 at a price of HK$3.06 per share. Gross proceeds from
the issue amounted to HK$816,564,000 (equivalent to RMB679,593,000).
After deducting the underwriting fees and other capitalised listing expenses,
net proceeds from the issue amounted to RMB661,565,000, of which,
RMB2,221,000 was recorded as share capital and RMB659,344,000 was
recorded as share premium.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group repurchased a total of
46,090,000 ordinary shares listed on Stock Exchange. The total amount paid
to repurchase these ordinary shares was approximately RMB119,908,000. As
at 31 December 2022, 37,990,000 shares repurchased during the current
reporting period has been cancelled. Upon the cancellation of the
37,990,000 ordinary shares repurchased, the issued share capital of the
Company was reduced by the par value of approximately RMB347,000, and
the premium paid on the repurchase of these cancelled shares of
RMB98,415,000, including transaction costs was deducted from share
premium of the Company. The remaining 8,100,000 repurchased ordinary
shares were subsequently cancelled in March 2023.

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

30. lg& )

(©

MR2021F7A150 AR AIEATK EHREE
([RIRBE ) RTR3.06/E TMERA LT
250,000,000% & i@ i% - 12021F8 A 118 17
FRE2RFEEFHENBHERRKRER KSR
3.0678 TTRIE K %£1716,851,000 8 AL © 1T
B8 F B 4858 /816,564,000 7T (GEER AR
#679,593,0007T) ° MK EHE AR EMER
{btEmERE BTMBREFEAARK
661,565,0007T * HH ARE2,221,0007T AR
B AR - T A R #659,344,0007T Al A BR 51|
B HE -

REE2022F 12 A1 B I FE - AEEOE
4 $£46,090,000 R REE R FT ETTH) L3RR © A
BAEESELEERAITNESENBARK
119,908,0007T ° 2022412 A31 8 » A&
HA A (31 88 #9 37,990,000 A A& 17 B 4 A1 85 © A 5E
34 P 2] /937,990,000 % @A 14 - AR A
BB /TR AR EE R 2 49 A R#347,0007T
MERNEEEFHRMOEMEEARE
98,415,0007T (BIER HHA) B AR BRI
%8 {8 0B o #78,100,0000% 2 [ & 38 A%
BE 1% 1202343 A 7L 8H ©

31. KATMBRATREE

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ETIT ARETTT

Non-current assets IERBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R—EWBRRMNIEE 58,602 58,602

Current assets MENEE
Prepayment TE{F 58 3,462 3,462
Amount due from a subsidiary & U — R B /B A B Fk A 514,733 628,955
Cash and cash equivalents ReMBESEEYD 916 25,097
519,111 657,514
Current liabilities mEBAE

Other payables H b fE < 5KI8 11,207 11,207
Amount due to a subsidiary &S — REI B B R R FIE 129 112
11,336 11,319
Net current assets mENEEFE 507,775 646,195
Total assets less current liabilities BEERMEBBE 566,377 704,797
Net assets EEFE 566,377 704,797

Capital and reserves BEAR RS
Share capital [N 8,115 8,462
Reserves B 558,262 696,335
Total equity B R 566,377 704,797
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32. RESERVES

mE B R M

(@) Group
Share premium

Share premium

represents the difference between the

consideration and the par value of the issued and paid up

shares of the Company.

Capital reserve

32. e
(a) =&E
B itz (8

B BEERARBEETERRD

WREEmMEZHNER -

EXfm

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AREET T
Reorganisation =4 (@) 64,599 64,599
Purchase of additional BE—HEAAN
interest in a subsidiary REIME = 38(a) (21,459) -
Repurchase of shares ARl ) 30(d) (21,146) =
Deemed contribution RIELE (b) 7,331 7,331
Xier Technology BRBHE (©) 15,837 15,837
Shengquan Property BREYE (d) (114,374) (114,374)
Zhida Xiaorui B RE () 7,508 7,508
(61,704) (19,099)
(@) The accumulated capital contribution from the then shareholders of the (a) SEARERBRENZHEIEBLAE

group companies in excess of the consideration given in relation to the
Reorganisation.

The Group disposed of Zhejiang Shengquan Security Services Co., Ltd.
(the “Shengquan Security”) to an entity controlled by Mr. Hu at a
consideration of RMB11,000,000 during the year ended 31 December
2018 and the Group bought back Shengquan Security during the
Reorganisation. Shengquan Security was engaged in the Listing
Business, the consideration received was accounted for as a deemed
contribution from the controlling shareholder of the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2018.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group injected capital
of RMB3,669,000 to a company engaged in the Excluded Business.
Since the financial information of the Excluded Business, the capital
injection was accounted for as a deemed distribution to the controlling
shareholder of the Group.

The shareholder of Xier Technology has acquired or disposed of certain
equity interests in Xier Technology, which resulted in increases or
decreases in non-controlling interests and corresponding decreases or
increases in capital reserves.

ERENRERD

HE2018F12A31 A ILFE  AEEH
LARE A E ¥ 11,000,0007T A 8 7t A 45
FINEBEENIRE2RLREERA
Al ([BE2RR])  AEENEHBHEE
EBRE2RE - BERTZHELWES
HZE2018F12 831 A It EEWEHR
BARY ARIEREBZRRR L E -

HE20190F 12831 LFE - A£EH
M—RESHRIIEBHARFEARE
3,669,0007T ° H PABR SN 15 7 81 765 &
B EE ARSI AR IER A S B ZERAR
HEAIE °

BENEBRRBARHETRBRET
et - R IFE R NSRS - B
Ao A I AR FE R 23 A

20225 o BMIERSKEAFRAF
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32. RESERVES (continued) 32. f#iE @

162

(@) Group (a) =%HE
Capital reserve BXE
(d) During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2019, the then (d) #H £20184F &2019F 12 A381H IEF

shareholder of Shengquan Property acquired additional interests in
Shengquan Property, which resulted in decreases in non-controlling
interests of RMB1,644,000 and RMB4,851,000 and corresponding
increases in the capital reserves.

On 16 November 2020, Shengquan Technology acquired 95% equity
interest in Shengquan Property at a consideration of RMB55,800,000
from its then shareholders. Upon completion of the transaction,
Shengqguan Property was 95% owned by Shengquan Technology and
5% owned by Zhida Xiaorui.

In August and September 2020, Shengquan Property acquired certain
fellow subsidiaries engaged in the Listing Business from the entities
controlled by Mr. Hu at total consideration of RMB72,665,000.

In September 2020, Shengquan Property disposed certain subsidiaries
engaged in the Excluded Business to the entities controlled by Mr. Hu
at a total consideration of RMB7,596,000.

(e) On 1 November 2020, Zhi Da Xiao Rui (Hong Kong) Limited (“Zhida
Xiaorui”), an entity controlled by another pre-IPO investor, agreed to
inject HK$8,900,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB7,508,000) to
Shengqguan Property in return of 5% of its equity interest.

Statutory reserves

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC,
when declaring dividend, the Group’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to appropriate not less than 10% of their profit after
taxation calculated under PRC accounting rules and regulations to
the statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of the fund
reaches 50% of the registered capital of the respective
companies. The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon
approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses brought
forward from prior years or to increase the paid up capital of
respective companies.
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B BEYEERERREEE RN
BIMER - BURIFERERE D IR A
R ¥1,644,0007T & A R #4,851,000
T 0 & A RIAE e A0 o

M2020F11 A16H - 2Rl EKE
YRR HO5% M IR - KB
& A R #55,800,0007T ° X 55K
BEMEABRERBRERB%ER - B
BARE IR B 5% ©

M2020F8 A MOA  REMEBML
ERHINERKEE TRE EMELD
AEMEBEAR  BREAARE
72,665,0007T ©

R20204F9R + BEYEREA L LS
NERBHES THSERIIEBHHNER
A - BREARAR7,596,0007T °

R2020F11 A1H ' B KERK (FH)
BRAR((BXEHR)(—RBS—%
BRARARENBEEEEFNER)R
EMXEYETE 8,900,000/ T (HE
R# AR #7,508,0007T) * M B E
5% K AR # ©

EEE

RIBEFBREERANEER  EERRE
B ANEBA T EINE AR EGIRET R
SR ER AR T E R TRZFER10% A
FEBEATRES  ERATRESH
RETREER S AR MM EARR50%5
1F R ERES R eETEE R B ER B
PRI SH BT FE AEMN BRSNS AR
HEUWE R -
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32. RESERVES (Continued)

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders. To this end, the Group aims to
price services commensurately with the level of risk and secure
access to financing at a reasonable cost. The Group’s overall
strategy remained unchanged throughout the reporting periods.

The Group monitors its capital structure based on the adjusted
net debt-to-capital ratio. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is
defined as total debt (which includes interest-bearing loans and
borrowings, and lease liabilities) plus unaccrued proposed
dividends, less cash and cash equivalents. Adjusted capital
represents total equity attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company, less unaccrued proposed dividends.

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group maintained at net
cash position.

32. f#E

BExEHE
AEEEEEANTIZARRREALHE
BEARERE - eMAES SBIRIEMHE R
RREMFNRERERLNE - Atk - A
SEEEEBRERRKY RRSEENK
RZEEKARSHE - NEEHEER
BN B ER S P2 -

AEBEERKHEBEH FEEALRER
HENRERE - Bt - KHABEHFEE
REBERE (BT SERRETARA
ERE) MARERERRE MRS
BY - KAEERNEAR R EERES
R B ERR AR BURMLE. ©

MR2022F K2021F12 A31H » KEB#
RPN -

(b) Company (b) EAF
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserves losses Total
B 13 i 8 B RitisE b
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETR
At 1 January 2021 2021F1A1H — 58,602 (12,285) 46,317
Total comprehensive 2HEAZBE
expense — — (3,085) (3,085)
Issue of shares BTG 659,344 — — 659,344
Capitalisation issue BT (6,241) = = (6,241)
At 31 December 2021 and 72021 F 124318 K&
1 January 2022 202241 B1H 653,103 58,602 (15,370) 696,335
Total comprehensive FHMAZ B
expense = = 33,257 33,257
Dividend paid BERERE = - (51,769) (51,769)
Repurchase of shares BE kG5 (98,415) (21,146) - (119,561)
At 31 December 2022 202212 A31H 554,688 37,456 (33,882) 558,262

2022F 3 « BMEERSKEARMRAT
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33. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group did not have any material capital commitments as at
31 December 2022 and 2021.

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Except for note 27 disclosed, the Group did not have any
material contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022 and 2021.

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

33. EXKiIE

MR2022F K2021F12 A31H » AEE T
AT EKE ANHRIE -

34. S REE

BRBTRE27 TR BE & HD -

R 20224 K 2021

F12A31H  "EE Y EEFMERHR

BE-

35. MEFSHEAN BB

Lease

Borrowing liabilities Total

EEN HEEE st

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AREF T ARBF T ARET T

At 1 January 2021 R20214F1 A1H — 5,61 5,551

Financing cash flows BERSRE - (2,781) (2,781)
Non-cash changes RS E

— Addition — ANE — 990 990

— Finance costs — BEMNAER — 229 229
At 31 December 2021 and R2021F 12431 B &

1 January 2022 202241 H1H — 3,989 3,989
Financing cash flows MERETR= 55,000 (1,400) 53,600
Non-cash changes FEIR & B H

— Addition — AE - 2,377 2,377

— Finance costs — BB = 108 108

— Disposal of subsidiary — HEHBQA - (2,858) (2,858)
At 31 December 2022 12022412 A31 H 55,000 2,216 57,216
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

In addition to the related party information disclosed elsewhere in
the consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the
following significant related party transactions for the year ended
31 December 2022.

(@) Name of and relationship with related parties

During the year, transactions with the following parties are
considered as related party transactions:

mE B R M

36. B S @)

BRiGA M BERREMEHFEENRE 5 E
FHASN » REBERE E2022512 A31H
IEFEEFIY NI ERBEHAIRS -

(a) PBAERFGHE &5 R 6
7 B9 A %

FRENIETHRZHEARSH

BHR5 :

Name of related party

Relationship with the Group

)k Yt EARERERF
Mr. Hu Ultimate controlling shareholder of the Company
AL ARR B R B FERCR

Dexin China Holdings Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (“Dexin China Group”)
EEPEERERAFDRAMEAG ((EEPEHER])
(b)

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors and
other members of key management as disclosed in Note
15, is as follows:

Controlled by Mr. Hu

B #A 75 A 2

(b) EEETEAEMSE
AEBTEEEAEWNE (BIEEH
ARREEREMEBEEEAHK
T8 (R ANMIFE 15 AT EE) ) 0T ¢

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT
Salaries and other short-term e MEMEBESEF
employee benefits 4,020 3,104

20225 o BMIERSKEAFRAF
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. BBt A3 5 )

(c) Significant related party transactions (c) EXFHBARS
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the #H £2022%F %2021F 12318 1
Group had the following significant transactions with related FE AEEEBHMAIEENTE
parties. The transactions amounts disclosed represent the ARG - BEHORFH S EIETHEEA
transactions with relevant parties during the periods when T3 A7 55 B B A Bt U7 B B 2 HE T Y
those parties were related parties of the Group. R5 o

2022 2021
20225 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARETTT
(i) Provision of services (i) RS
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EERREEERESE
ventures and associates 1 3 K B N A 112,872 216,694
— Other entities controlled by — MR EEHNEMELS
Mr. Hu 57,379 33,986
170,251 250,680
(i) Rental expenses (short-term and (i) FAER X
low value leases) (EHREEERS)
— Dexin China Group and its joint — BEFREERHEGE
ventures and associates YN l/NE = 1,465
— Other entities controlled by — AR EMELE
Mr. Hu - —
- 1,465
(i) Deposit paid for parking space (i) =& &K IE R
leasing and sales agency b
services
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EEFEEERESZ
ventures and associates 12 KB A a] 250,000 =
— Other entities controlled by — MR E M E
Mr. Hu - —
250,000 —
All of the transactions above were carried out in the normal FFER G EASBEEBHIES
course of the Group’s business and on terms as agreed BER AR ZE T 15 E MR T #E
between the transacting parties. e
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36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 36. BBt A3 5 )

(d) EEEAEET B & ER

(d) Balances with related parties

2022 2021
20224 20214
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETIT
Trade related & S
Trade receivables B 5 FEWGRIE
— Dexin China Group and its joint —— fE{EhHEBE&KEAE %
ventures and associates 3 R E & QA 109,932 21,147
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — &A% A3 HI A H it E 52 1,578 8,798
Other receivables H b fE W SRIE
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EERREBNKEASE
ventures and associates S SE /NG 2,157 54,550
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — #5432 Il B9 E 4th F 28 15,372 45
Trade payables 2 ST R
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EEFREBRELSE
ventures and associates 12 K B & N A 92 25
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — #AE A 3% Il 09 E fth 42 = —
Other payables H b FE S 3R
— Dexin China Group and its joint —— EERHERNKEAE
ventures and associates 12 KB A A 128 358
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — &A% AE3EHI M H b Z 52 329 382
Contract liabilities BRNEE
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EERREBNEAE
ventures and associates P REE QT 2,992 1,434
— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — #A4E A3 B H ith Z 52 = =
Deposit paid for parking space ENBENHEERERBEIES
leasing and sales agency services
— Dexin China Group and its joint — EERREBNKEASE
ventures and associates Y58 /NG 250,000 =

— Other entities controlled by Mr. Hu — #A e A 4% Il 09 E 4th & 48 = —
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. A AT T EMBATIHE

Country/place and date

Attributable equity

of incorporation/ Registered/issued interest of
Company name establishment and paid-in capital the Group Principal activities
AL RIAMER S B2 EBTR
ATEBE B % B # BREX AREEERE EBEH
2022 2021
20225 WPAES

Directly owned:

HiEER:

Shengping International Limited British Virgin Islands Not applicable/— 100% 100% Investment
26 October 2020 holding

BFEBEERAR REHMRES TEA,/ — KB ZR
2020410 H26H

Zhirui International Limited British Virgin Islands Not applicable/ — 100% 100% Investment
21 September 2020 holding

BimBBRAR AR REHMRES TEA,/ — KB ZR
20204 9H21H

Indirectly owned:

EEEE :

Sheng Quan Holding (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong Not applicable/— 100% 100% Investment
2 November 2020 holding

BREER(FE)BRAR i TEA,/ — R E 2R
2020411 A2H

Zhejiang Shengquan Technology Co., Ltd Hong Kong Not applicable/— 100% 100% Investment
16 November 2020 holding

MTEZREER AR i TEA,/ — R E 2R
2020411 A16H

Dexin Shengquan Property Services Co., Ltd. PRC RMB58,740,000/ 100% 100% Property
29 March 2004 RMB58,740,000 management

BEEZVERBERAR B AR #58,740,0007T, MEER
200443 H29H A R #58,740,0007C

Zhejiang Shengjie Environment Engineering Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% 100% Environmental
8 May 2014 RMB10,000,000 cleaning

WTEZRIGETRER DA FE AR #10,000,0007T, REER
201445H8H A R #10,000,0007C

Hangzhou Junde Commercial Operations PRC RMB10,000,000/ 100% 100% Commercial

Management Co., Ltd. 16 May 2019 RMB10,000,000 operation

MMEREEFELEEFTRRA HE AR #10,000,0007, [EE3=3c

2019 5H16H A K #10,000,0007C
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OF THE COMPANY (Continued)
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37. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES 37. A QXTI X EMMBATHTE o

Country/place and date

Attributable equity

of incorporation/ Registered/issued interest of
Company name establishment and paid-in capital the Group Principal activities
ML RINER S S EBTR
ATEHE 2% B # BREX AREEERE BXH
2022 2021
20225 WPAES

Hangzhou Julin Lifestyle Services Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000/ — 100% 100% Wholesale and
2 November 2018 retail

MM AEH AR R AR A A A A R#10,000,0007T HEREE
2018411 A2A /=

Zhejiang Shengquan Security Services Co., Ltd. PRC RMB11,000,000/ 100% 100% Security services
25 June 2015 RMB11,000,000

MIEERZREERAA e AR #11,000,0007T, T Fr 4 o AR 7%
201546 H25H A R #11,000,0007C

Xier Technology PRC RMB32,918,012/ 78% 51% Technology
24 September 2015 RMB29,918,012

AR e AR#32,918,0127T,/ g
201549 H24H AR#29,918,0127C

Dexin Property Services Co., Ltd. PRC RMB50,000,000/ — 100% 100% Property services
2 January 2019

BIENERBER AR e AR #5,000,0007T,— ES
201941 H2H

Hangzhou Deyu Commercial Management Co., Ltd. PRC RMB10,000,000/ — 70% 70% Commercial
14 September 2020 management

MM EHEEEREER QA HE AR #10,000,0007T [EE$:
20206F9 A 14H /=

Hangzhou Xiangyu Property Management Services  PRC RMB1,000,000/ — 68% 68% Apartment

Co., Ltd. 14 September 2020 management

MMNHEEDEEEREERAA HE AR #1,000,0007t, — NBER
20209 H14H

Huzhou Guomao Property Co., Ltd. PRC RMB1,250,000/ 60% 60% Property services
12 July 2001 RMB1,250,000

HMEENERREEAR HE AR #1,250,0007T, ES A
200147 H12H AR #1,250,0007T

EM B A R XA - MR
LBATEEERERRASNERRX
ZTREE TR -

The English name of the subsidiaries represents the best effort by
the management of the Group in translating their Chinese names
as they do not have an official English name.
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 38. Z8IR& R ERM:E

OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Purchase of non-controlling interests

(a) BEFEIER

170

(b)

During the year, the Group acquired 26.91% interests in a
51% subsidiary from the non-controlling shareholders at a
cash consideration of RMB33,288,000. The effect of the
acquisition on the equity attributable to the owners of the
Company is as follows:

FRAEBURERABEARE
33,288,000 7T [7) FF 22 A% B% 58 Uy fE —
MBI %R NN B R AN
26.91%#Eax o YHE FIFE NN A%
EABRGERINZENT

RMB’000
ARET T

Share of net assets in the subsidiary acquired FEAG BT UR BB BT B8 A &) Y
(11,829)
Consideration KRB 33,288
Loss on acquisition recognised directly in equity EERERERNWIEEE 21,459

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

On 26 October 2022, Hangzhou Rongyun Business
Services Co., Ltd, a wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company, entered into the disposal agreement with, among
others, an independent third party to dispose 100% equity
interest in Hangzhou Rongyun Business Services Co., Ltd
and the benefit of the aggregate amount outstanding and
owing by Hangzhou Rongyun Business Services Co., Ltd to
the Group at a consideration of approximately
RMB968,000. The disposal was completed on 26 October
2022 and the Group ceased to hold any interest in
Hangzhou Rongyun Business Services Co., Ltd accordingly.

DEXIN SERVICES GROUP LIMITED « ANNUAL REPORT 2022

(b) HEMBASE

R2022F10 268 » M RLER 5
REBRAR(RARZEWB A
A E(EPEE) — 8B E= 5]
THEWRE  UNHEMMNBERS
BR7& A BR A 71#9100% HEAE K 471 )1 &t
BEREREER AR ERAEER
MAEERSENFR  RENA
AR #968,0007T ° HEEZHEE R
2022% 10 A26 H e/ © AL AEE
TEHEEMMNBEREREBRA
AIAE Al e o
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 38.Z8IR&RERMEE »
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY (Continued) (b) HEMEBAS &)
The net liabilities of Hangzhou Rongyun Business Services MNRLER BRI AR A R & B ER
Co., Ltd at the date of the disposal were as follows: BEFENT
RMB’000

ARET T
Bank balances and cash RITHEHRER 513
Other receivables H b e W 5K I8 905
Inventories & 298
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MEE 130
Deferred tax assets RIETIHE E 155
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE 1,971
Trade and other payables B REMEFKIA (4,068)
Contract liabilities ABHAERE (351)
Lease liabilities HEARE (2,858)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEAEFE (3,305)
Gain on disposal of subsidiary H £ B A TRk
Cash consideration received BHER S KRB 968
Net liabilities disposed of BHEBEFE 3,305
Gain on disposal &S Mz 4,273

Net cash inflow from the disposal of subsidiary HEMBATMRERNEHE

Cash consideration ReRE 968
Less: bank and cash balances disposal of B BEHERTTRE AR (513)
455

39. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 39. IREHIEEIR

As of 31 December 2022, there was no significant event for the H 1£2022F12 A31H » A& HRE AR
Group after the end of the Reporting Period. SEMBEEESEANEHE -

40. APPROVAL OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL 40. #t (& SHBHRE

STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and RER AU HRERN2023F3 424 HES
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 24 March EeHERIERET)E o

2023.
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2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20224 20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
1L ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL

Key financial information TEMBEH

Revenue ON 958,597 870,422 692,319 512,850 397,833
Gross profit E 7 271,374 299,082 235,757 144,926 95,119
Profit for the period HIfE A 125,060 110,050 105,807 50,550 22,462
— Including non-controlling — BEEERES

interests 3,037 11,828 8,617 1,154 101
— Attributable to owners of the — AN RIHA AJENL

Company 122,023 98,222 97,190 49,396 22,361

December December December December December
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
PIivPERPY I 2021F12H 202061283 2019128 2018 12A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
IS ARETT ARETT ARE®TT AR®TR

Non-current assets FRBEE 340,393 29,775 24,254 60,285 72,792
Current assets MEEE 974,496 1,208,762 420,689 384,475 243,140
Total assets BERE 1,314,889 1,238,537 444,943 444,760 315,932
Non-current liabilities FnEaE 1,026 569 2,626 9,858 11,054
Current liabilities MEAE 532,667 377,757 353,889 285,846 202,703
Total liabilities BfERE 533,693 378,326 356,515 295,704 213,757
Total equity BB 781,196 860,211 88,428 149,056 102,175
Interest attributable to the owners AR FIEA AJEIEHEZ

of the Company 764,544 835,657 75,870 150,814 98,615
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